
 

 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny 

Sub-Committee  AGENDA 
 
 

DATE: 

 

Tuesday 6 January 2015 

 

TIME: 

 

7.30 pm 

 

VENUE: 

 

Committee Room 6, 

Harrow Civic Centre 

 
 

 

 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 

   

  Chair: 

 

Councillor Phillip O'Dell  

 

  Councillors: 

 
Kiran Ramchandani 
Adam Swersky 

 

Richard Almond 
Barry Macleod-Cullinane (VC) 
 

  
 

 
 

Reserve Members: 

 
1. Mrs Chika Amadi 
2. Ghazanfar Ali 
3. Aneka Shah 

 

1. Amir Moshenson 
2. Bharat Thakker 
 

  
 

 
 

Contact:  Miriam Wearing, Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Tel:  020 8424 1542    E-mail:  miriam.wearing@harrow.gov.uk 
 



Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 6 January 2015 

 
 AGENDA - PART I   

 
1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising 

from business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Sub-Committee; 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 10) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 November 2014 be taken as read and 

signed as a correct record. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS *    
 
 To receive any public questions received in accordance with Committee Procedure 

Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 
Questions will be asked in the order notice of them was received and there be a 
time limit of 15 minutes. 
 
[The deadline for receipt of public questions is 3.00 pm, Wednesday 31 
December 2014.  Questions should be sent to 
publicquestions@harrow.gov.uk    

No person may submit more than one question]. 
 

5. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

6. REFERENCES FROM COUNCIL AND OTHER COMMITTEES/PANELS    
 
 To receive any references from Council and/or other Committees or Panels. 

 



Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 6 January 2015 

7. REVENUE AND CAPITAL MONITORING   (Pages 11 - 48) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Assurance. 

 
8. STAFF SURVEY RESULTS AND  SICKNESS ABSENCE   (Pages 49 - 146) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director Human Resources and Shared Services. 

 
9. CORPORATE EQUALITY OBJECTIVES - ANNUAL MONITORING AND 

REFRESH   (Pages 147 - 190) 
 
 Report of the Policy Officer – Equalities and Diversity.  

 
10. PERFORMANCE AT QUARTER 2, 2014/15   (Pages 191 - 218) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director, Strategic Commissioning.  

 
11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
 Which the Chairman has decided is urgent and cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 * DATA PROTECTION ACT NOTICE   
 The Council will audio record item 4 (Public Questions) and will place the audio recording on the 

Council’s website, which will be accessible to all. 
 
[Note:  The questions and answers will not be reproduced in the minutes.] 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



�

� ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
������������������������ �������

�
�
�

���������	�
���
�����	�



	������

���	��������




������
�

�

��
��������
����

�
�
��������	� �� ���	

�������
��
 �!"#����
� � �
�
����


��	�
�

�� $

�����%���	��
�� &�'���
(��%���
�)�*��
�

�� +�����&�
���������
	�	��
�� %�����,��'(��
�

�������������	�
��
����


����
�

�� ����%	���'�	�
�� �
��	�+��,	�
�

&
	�������
&
	�������

�� #�	���'�&������ ��'�	��
)�*���#�	���'�
���-�������$�'�����&�����'�
�
�

���� ��������������������������������
�
��� !"�#	� � .�� 	���� ���� ����	��	
�� ��� ���� �����,
	-� ����� 
�	'�
������
$�'�����&�����'/�
��
!��
	����&������
��

$�'�����&������

���	

�����0
��	�$��
��	��	
� ���	

�������
(��%���
�
�

�$�� #��
�����
���
%������������
�
��� !"�#	��.��	������������������,
	-�
	����'�'�,������
�����/�
�
%-�	��� 1���� �� 2� &
�� 3���� 4��� )4���	����� �	�� �����	
��� ��
���*� 5��	��
&�	
���
	-�$� ����
�
���	

�����$

�����%���	����
��������	�	� �
�	
����
	����'��
	���������,�'���
���'�����������6����,��
�
7�	'8�%��

��+�����9��6��,���������
	�
	����������
,�
�'�������������,�'�
�	'
�������	��������� �	9�

Agenda Item 3
Pages 1 to 10

1



�

������� � ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
������������������������

�
���	

���������%	���'�	���
��������	�	� �
�	
����
	����'��
	������'���,�'���
������� ��� ���� �����,
	-� ��-�	
7��
�	'/� %#6#� :� %��
'�� ��  ���� 6����,;�
6����,� %''�

��
�	� ��� #
'������ ��� ��� �	�� ,�'� �� ���	

�� �  �
	����
�� ��'�	���
��� �	� ����6����,�<	�
��	��	���� ������ �	�� ����6����,��������
��	'�����
�	� �����9� � ����,����� ����
	� 
	� ���� �����,�
�'�� �����������,�'�

�	'
�������	��������� �	9�
�
���	

�����+�����&�
���������
	�	����
��������	�	� �
�	
���� 
	����'�� 
	� �����
��� ,�'� �� ������ ��� ���� �
�
7�	'8� %��

�� +������ ��� �� 	��
�	��� �����9� � 6��
,���������
	�
	����������,�
�'�������������,�'�
�	'
�������	��������� �	9�
�
���	

�����%�����,��'(����
��������	�	� �
�	
����
	����'��
	���������,�'���
���'�����������6����,��
�
7�	'8�%��

��+�����9��6��,���������
	�
	����������
,�
�'�������������,�'�
�	'
�������	��������� �	9�
�

�&�� ����������
�
��� !"�#	� �.���� �����
	���'���� ��������
	-�������	�=�!
����������;����
�-������������	�>������
	-9�
�

'(�� )��
���*�����
��+�)�����
���������%����������
�
��� !"�#	� �.��	���� �����	�� ���

�?��'�
�	';� ��
�
�	'���� ������	
�'�,����
��
�
���������
'�����
	-9�
�

��� !"�#��,������
�

'��� ���


��-.����
��)�
/��������
�
.��� ��������
����� ��
�
���� �� �� ���� ��� ������� ������#
��
������
����	� :�
���
�
�'� �	�� ���� #
��
���� ��� �
	�	
�� �	�� %''���	
�� ,�

��  ���
���� �	�
� ����� �	� ���� 
� ����	���
�	� ��� ���� '
����� �> �	'
�	�  ��-������ �	��
��������������'9� �%���
���	��,�

��'������� ������'��� � �������� 
	������
�	�
��-���
	-������
�����<> �	'
�	����-������)�<�*�,�'�������������������
	-9�
�
.��� ���
�� ,��
����� ���� �������
�� 6������ ���� ��
����	;� �
����'� �	�� 3��	-�
��� ��� ��� ���� ����
	-9� � �����,
	-� �� ��
��� 
	�����
�
�	� ��� ���� �� ���� ��� ����
�������
��6�������	�� ���� 1	���
����� ������#
��
���������
����	��	�� ���
�
�';�
&�����'���������������,
	-�
����	�'��	���'(������������,
	-�?��'�
�	'/�
�

•� @���� �� �'� ��� �
��

���
�'� ���� ����
���� �����<�� �	��,��� ���� 
�� ���	�
	�
�''���� ���� ���

��'� ��� ����� ����
	-'� ,
��� ���� 0�� ����;� ����

�	���
���'A�

�

•� .����� ,���� '�'���

� ��
�
	-'� �
��''� ���� 
��	

�� ,
��� ��-���� ��� ����
����'��	��
�	�
�
�	'�������-��
�	���
�'��	��
��,�'�������' �	'
�
�
������
���� ���
�����	�� ����� ��� �	'���� ������ ,���� ���?����� '���-����'�
,�
���	� 
	��� ���-�� 
�	���
�'9� �@��� ���� ��''�	'� 	��� ���	� ����	�� �����
 ���
��'� ��
��
	-� 
�	���
�'� �	��,���� ������  �	����� 
���'�'��	�� '��

��

2



�

��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
������������������������ ���B���

�����
	�'�' �

�
���
	�����
����	��
�	���
�A��@����������
����
�	'�
	�����

�	'���
�
�	����(���	������	��	�


 ������	���
�
-������-�
	'�A��

�

•� @����?���
���
''��'��������������	����������������,��('�
���
����������
����
����	��
�	���
���'��	��,�������'�������'��
��'�	�����A�

�

•� @���,�'��> �
����������-�� �
''��'������
	-�����	-�
	-���
��
	-�,��('�
2�,�'���
'�������' �	'
�
�
������'
���������'�������	

�����

��'A�

�
.����������
��6������'������ ����� ������
	�?���
��� 
''��'�����	������	�
'��
��'� �	���
��	��� ������� ��� '���
������ 
''��'�����,���� �	� ����,�����
�
	��� 
''��'� �������� ��� �
	
'�
	-� ���� ,��(';� ���� �>�� ��;�  �
	�
	-9��
.��'�� ���� �

������ ���� ��� 
	���?����� 
����	

��
�	� ���,��	� ����

�	���
���'� �	�� '
����'9� � .���� ,���� ��'�� �� 
�	'�?��	
�� ��� ��
����	�
	-� '������  ��-������ ��� ,��(� �
����� 
	��� �� '�����	��� CD�
,��(�'���������
���� ��
��9���

�
.��� ��� ������ #
��
���� ������ ����� �� 6���� .��
���'� ��	'�����
���
5��� � ���� ���	� '��� � � 
	� ������ ��� �	'���� ������ �	-�-���	�� ���
'
����'� ,
��� ��
��
	-�  ��	'� �	�� ��� �	'���� -���� 
����	

��
�	�
���,��	�'
����'��	��
�	���
���'9� �.�����-
�	���#
��
�������0�� �����
��������,
���'
���������'���
�	���9��!��

��'�,������(
	-��������������
����	'���������������,�'������������'�  ���
��� ��
�''����,��	�'
�����
����'��	��
��	

�����

��'9��.��'�����'���'�,�������������	��
�����
	-�
 ��'�'�E��	������������<�9�

�
%	� ���

��� ���
'��� ����� ���� ��
��
	-� ������ ���� ���	� 
	� ��
�''
�	� ��
'�
�
�����'��������	��,�'�	�,��> ��
�	

	-�������9��.�
'��� 
��
��	-��
	�
���(���
�	�
�
�	'�����'��	���'��� �
	
���'��
	�
�	'���
�
�	�
�'�'��	��
�� '����	� '��������� ��� ������ 
�	���
���';� ,��� ���� ����
��� ���
��

� �

�
�'����
	-�������
�''
�	9��%�	���������
�-	
�
�	������
'�
��	-��
	�
���(���
�	�
�
�	'�,�'�������F�
	
���'��
	�
�	'���
�
�	�
�'�'����������
<��
��
�	���	�
	-�%-�	
��)<�%*������-�������
'�����9��

�
0�� ����;��
(��������
	�
�	���
���';�������
�	�����������
-�����	��������
'������'�������,�'��	��	-�
	-�
������������
��
��	�,�'�����������������

	
���'��
	�����	�9�����
�	���
���';�,���,������
�	����
��'
	-�,��(;�
,����	�,��
	�
	-�����������
����� 

(��	��
���'��,�

��
�	���
�'������
,
'��������	�����(�9� ���	'�?��	���;� 
������ ��(�	�'�����
�������-����

�'�'��	���
	��
'������
�'����
����	�� ��G�
�'9�

�
.��� �������
�� 6������ '������ ����� ���� ��
-
	��� 
�	���
�� ���� ���	�
	�-��
����� ����� ����� ����'� �-�;� ,
������  �	����� 
���'�'9� � 6�,����;�
-�
	-� ���,���;����

��'�,���� ���(
	-�����
�����	��,��'���� ��
��
	-� ����
 ��'�'� E� �	�� �� ��� ���� �<�� �	�� ,����� '��(� ���� �> ���
'�� ��� ����
��� ������ ��
�����	���������������
'9���

�
.��� ��� ������ #
��
���� ���
'��� ����� ���� 6����,� �����,��(� 
�	���
��
,
��� 0�� ����� )��������� % ����*� ���� ���'�� �� ��� ���� �<�� ���� ���	��
�'������� ��'����
	�����������	'����
�	�
	�
�����������<�9����

�

3



�

���=��� � ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
������������������������

%	����

������
'��� ����� ����'
����'8� '����������(� 
	�������������	�
'����������	��'�����	��
�	'�?��	��������,��('�����
		������(���
�����
�	�� ���	���	� ��
����� �
����'� ���� ���	� �������9� � 6�,����;� ����

�	���
���'��������	����
-������
�� ������������'��	�
	-�,��('�
	����
��
�,	��
����	��������
���,	��> �	'�9�

�

•� @����,�'������
(��
�������������'�
	�����������A��
�

%	� ���

��� '������ ����� ��� �	�


 ����� '���� �����'� 
	� ���� 
����	��
 ��-�����;�,�������'������
��
	-�,��('�,������>��	�� 
	��� ���� �
�'��
,��('��������'
���������;�����
��

����;�����	�,�
��''����'���?�
��������
����'������������	�,������
	��� �������,�������������9�

�
.��� ��� ������ #
��
���� ���
'��� ����� ���� ������ ������  ��G�
�'� ,����
�	�'� �����,����6����,8'� ��' �	'
�
�
����	�� ����� ���'�� ������ ���;�,����
��
	-��	�����(�	��
��
�����������<�%9���

�
!	����� ������
��
	-� ��G�
�'� 
	��<����������	�'���������������;�����
����������'
-	��	�����������������-��;��	��,�����������
�������������
���������	� ��		��;���,����;�
���������	� �''
��������

�������������
 � 
�'�,
��
	�����'
�����'
���,�
�������,��('�
�	�
	���9���

�
�������� ���������'�
�����	�����������	��	�


 ����;� �����>�� ��;����
+����	����
������
����;���
����'������
'
��������>
'�
	-����	���
�	'�
�	��+.������
����';���������,�

������	���������������������	������
�����C�,��(������;�,�

��,�'��������'�	������������������
	-9��1������
��� �''
�������� ������
����'� �����(��� � ��
'� ��'�� �
��9� �6�������������
������,�'��
'(� ���
'
�	�
	��������-�������'�
�����	����
�
�'9�

�

•� @����������� ���

����
�'�'�,�

��,���� 
	��>
�''����CF�����H�	����
�������-��;����	����������A�

�
.��� ��� ������ #
��
���� ���
'��� ����� ���� �<�� ���� �
-��� �
��'
���'�
����
���� �	�� ���������� �������-
	� ���� ������ ,�'� �?������ �
�
���9� � 6��
�> �
���� �����  ��'�� �� ��� ���� �<�� ,����� ��� ���
������ �	� ���-��;�
��,����;�����
�	�
	-�	
��,���������>���'���9��%	���
	������
����
�	'�

	������������
��������������	������' �	���	�����
����
�	'�
	��������(���

������?������
� 
	-���	�����,��('9�

�
%� &������  �� �'��� ����� 
�� �
-��� ��� ����� �'����� ��� -��������� �����
 ��G�
�� �����'� ��� �'
	-� ����� 
�����'� ���	� -���	;� �����;� ���9� � ����
�>�� ��;� ���'�� ,
��� �����'� ��� �� ,��(� ��� ��''� �'� �
-��� -���	;� ���'��
�> ��
�	

	-������'��������,��('��'����(�-���	;���E�,��('��'�������
��
9� �&�����'�,����� �> �
�� ��� '��� ��
'� ������ ��� -��	����� ����� 
	� ����
�� ���9��.������ ������#
��
�����	������(�����	'������
'��������������
��

	��������'�
���� ���'9�

�

•� @����,�'��������	

�8'������
�	'�
 �,
�������<�%��	��,���������������
��' �	'
�
�
��� ���� ��
��
	-�  ��G�
�'A� � @���� ������-�� �
�� ���� ���	

��
�����,
�������
�	���
���'�
	�
�'�'����'�
  �-�A�

�

4



�

��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
������������������������ �������

.������ ������#
��
�������
'��������������������	

���	������'
����'�
����������
�����
	�������	��
	�������+�� ��G�
�';�,�

��,������	�-���
�
��
�����������<�%9��.���<�%�'�������
�'�'��	�� ��
���������9��.���
<�%����� ��
�	���������� ����� ��-
�	��� ��
�����	������	-���	�� 
	���
�
�� ��� ��
��� ��,	� 
�'�'9� �6�������� ����� ���� ��+�� ��G�
�'� �������	�

�	���������	���;�	��������-��6����,����	

����	�
	-9��1��,�'�	����������

��,�'� �''
���������������	

�������	���������
�����+��'
����'���������
<�%������-��
�'� ��
�����	������9�

�
6�� ������ ����� ���� ���	

�� ���� �� '��������� ����� ,
��� ��-���� ��� ����
���
��
�	� ��� 
�
����	� 
	� ���� �����-�� �	�� ,����� �	'���� ,��('� ,����

�� �������	��
��9�1	�
�'�'����'�
  �-�;��������	

��,������	-�-��
	�
�
���-��� ,
��� ���� 
�	���
���'� �	��  ���  ��''���� �	� ����� ��� 
�� �����
,��('� �	� �
��� �	�� ,
��
	� ���-��9� � ��	�
	-�	
�����'���'� ,���� ��'��

����	������
	-��-�����,
�������
�	���
���;�������
��
�'�;������	�� ��G�
�'�
�����������������
	������ ��-�����9�

�

•� 6�,���	���  �

��
�	'����������'
����'��������	���
�
���A�
�

.������ ������#
��
�������
'���������������
�'��������	���
�
�����	��
���� ��-��''����������	�>��'��-�9�

�

•� @���� 
	������
�	�,�'� ������ ��-���
	-� ���� ���,� ���  � 
�'� ��� ���� ����A��
@��������� � 
�'������6����,��������
	-�������������-�����,���������
 � 
�'� ����� ���'
��� ���� �����-�� 
��
	-� ��� '����� 
	� 6����,A� � @�'�
6����,� �� 	��� �> ������ ��� ������ I�	��	� �����-�'A� � 6��� ���� 
��	

���
����
���
�	�����-����	��	����-���
	-������	
?���'
����
�	�
	�6����,A�

�
.������ ������#
��
�������
'������������5I%��������������,�'��'������
��
���������
�
�'� ��� ���

�� ����	���������'
����� ��
�'� �����,��������
��?�
���� ���� � 
	� ��
�	�� ����'� ��
���� ��''� �

������ �	�� ��''�
 ���

������ ���� ��� ����-�� �

� 
��	-�'� �	�� �
�	��

� ��
���'9� � 6��
�������������
�	��'�

�''�����
�'�����-����	��	��-��	�'��������������

�'������6����,8'��	
?�������-�� �

�
''��'���������������
��
�	��	��
6����,� ���� ��
�
���� ��  �� ���
�	������ �
-���� ����	�� ��� -��	�� ���	�
������������
�
�'9�

�

•� .����� ����

�������		
	-��	���
	�	
���'������
-��'�� �
��
����
'('�����
�����<�;���,����;�,�'������������' �	'
�������� �����<�����?�������
'��������	����'���
�������	'�������
�����,
��
	������
��'
���'�'��A�

�
.��� ��� ������ #
��
���� '������ ����� ���� '�

�''� ��� ���� �<�� ,�����
�� �	�� �	� ���� '(
��';� (	�,���-�� �	�� �> ���
'�� ��� ���

��'� �
��''� ����
���	

�;� ���� �>�� ��� ���� ���
�����	�� ����9� � 6�,����;� �� ����� ���-��
 �� ���
�	� ��� '�	
��� ���

��'� 
	������� 
	� ����  ��G�
�� ,���� 
	���
�';�

	
���
	-� �
�'���;� ,�

�� ,�'� �	� ����� ��� 
�	
��	9� � 6�,����;� ����
#
��
��������
	�	
���	��%''���	
���������	�����
������
	���'
-	���������
 ���

���������'�������� ��G�
�������� ��
�
-�����-�
	'����
'9�

�
%	����

������������������ ��-�������������	���
�� �������	��������
�	���������
�������
����	������> ���
'���	��'�  ��������������		
	-��	��

5



�

������� � ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
������������������������

�
	�	
�� �� �����	�'9� � .��� �<�� ,�'� ��'�� '�  ������ ��� �>
����	��
 ��G�
�� ��	�-��';� ���� '
����� �������  ��		
	-� '���

�;� ��� ������
�
	�	
���	�����������	

��
�	'�����9�

�

•� 1	�
�'�'�,�����������,�'�'�
  �-��
	����'����
��
	-�,��('���	�������
����<�%;�������,�'����� ����
�	����
'(�����������	

�;�
	������
���������
��������	G�'���������	�������'�2���,�������
'����	��
�
-������-�
	'�A�

�

•� 6�,�,���������
�����	�� ��'�'���������<����	���A��.����� ����'������
����� 
�� ����  ��-������ ,�'� 	��� ���
�������� ,
��
	� ���� 
����	��
 ��-������ ���	� �����,
	-� ���� ��� ��?�
���9� @���� ,���� ����

� �

��
�	'������
'A�

�
%	� ���

��� ���
'��� ���� ������,���� ��-���������
	-'�,
��� '
����� '����;�
 ���	�'��	��������'��(�������'����(�� ������� �������	��
	����������
 ��-��''�,
��� ��G�
�'9�

�
.������ ������#
��
�������
'��� ����� ����
����	��E� ��'�'���� �����<��
�����
>��� ��	�
	-9� � .�����G��
��� ��� ��	�';� 
�� JE��� ��� ���� JCC�� ����
�<���  ��'�;� ���� ���	� ��
�
���� �'� �� ��'���� ��� '�

�''���� .��-�����
+�'

������).+�*��
�'9�

�
%	� ���

��� ���
'��� ����� ���� ���	

�� ���� �� '��������� ����� ���  ���
���
'���


�	��'
����� ��
�'�����
�
����	�
	����������-���	���������	

��,�'�
�����
	-�����-����	��	���������
�
�	�����	�
	-9��6�,����;�
������
����	��
 ��-������,�'�	������
��������,
��
	� ����<�%� ��	�
	-;� ���	� 
��,�����
���	�
�''������������,�������	��9��.������	

��,�'��
�
�����,��(
	-�
,
��� �����  �

�	�'� ���������'
����'� ������ � ����� 
��	�
����  �� �
����
'
��';��'� �����'����
'���	����������'
����'�,��������
����'������� ����
 ��''��������'
����� ��
�'9�

�

•� @���� '�����-
�'� ,���� ��
	-� �'��� ��� 
� ����� '��	����'� 
	� '
����'A��
@����,�'���������'����
	(
	-�,
�����-�������������'
-	����'
����'������
������� ��'

����	�����
��
�	��� ��' �
�
��A�

�
.��� ��� ������ #
��
���� ���
'��� ����� ��
��� ������
�
�'� ���� �� '���������
��' �	'
�
�
��� ���� ���'��
	-�  �������	
�� �	�� 
� ���
	-� '��	����'� 
	�
'
����'9��.�
'�,��(�,�'�
���
��������������6����,��
�����1� ������	��
����	��'�
 � )6�1�*9� � +���� '
����'� �	�� ���� 
��	

�� 
�	��
������
�
	�	

��������6�1���	��6����,�,�'���
	-�,����
	���
'�����;���������>��	��
�����+��	������
���
''
�	���6�1�� ������
���� 
�'� '
����� 
� ������	��
 ��-�����9�

�
%	����

������
'������������ ��

����-���
	-�'
�������'
-	�����
��	-���
����� ���� ����'9� � !��

��'� ,��(��� 
��'���� ,
��� '
����� ����'� 
	� ����
��'
-	� ��� '
����'9� � ��	����� 5����	��	��  ��'
�
���� '��	����������'�
���� 
��''����'� 
�� ����� '������ ��� ��,� ��
	��	�	
�;� �	��-�� ���


�	�;�
��>
�
'���	������'�����	��������
-��9��%�������'
����'�
	������<��,�����
�����@
�
�	��,��('��	��
	����
�
���,�
�������'9���

�

6



�

��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
������������������������ �������

•� 1	
���'
	-�	�����'���� � 
�'�	�,�,��������
�����'
����� ��
�'��
������
��
��%

�''������
���)�%�*;�,�

�����	�������
��''�'�,��������	������
���
�����		���%��
''
�	��������)�%�*9��6������������	��	�
	
���'��

	�
��''�����'
7�������(���

��	�������
'���
���A��1	����
�
�	;�������,����
�����

� 
�	-�'�
�	� 
''��'� ��� '
�����  

(�� � �	�� ��� ����� �
��'9� �@���
,�'���' �	'
����������
'A�

�

•� .�����,�'�'������
�	-�'�
�	�
	������


	
���������(�6
-���
����;�,�

��
�������	��>�
�����������
	'���


�	���	���
���	�9��.��'��
''��'�,����
�
(���� ��� ,��'�	� ,
��� ���� 
	
���'�� 
	� ���� '
�����  � ����
�	9� � 1�� ,�'�

� ����	������	���'��	����,�.�I��
�'�,��������
������	������
� �
�����
�����<���	����'��,����
����
	������


	
������'
����'���
	-��> �	���9�
@���� ��	'�,����
	� ��
����������,
������'��
''��'A�

�
.������ ������#
��
�������
'���������������������	�	��
	
���'��
	�����
 ��'

���
� �

������
��''����'��	������� ����	�,�
��''����';��'� ����
��� ���� �<�;� ,���� ��
��� ��� �

��������� E��  � 
�'9� � 6�,����;� ���
��
�-	
'��� ����� 
	�  ��
�

�;� '���� 
��''�'� ,����� ���������� ���	� E��
 � 
�'9� � 6�� ������ ����� 
	� ��
�	�� ����'� ���-�� 
��''�'� ���� ���	�

	�����
������(�� � �
��,
���
	
���'
	-�����	�9�

�
.������ ������#
��
�������
'����������
'�,�'��������-��,
���
''��������
��?�
���� �� 
�� ������ ��' �	'�� �� �����-�� �	���
���	�;� '
����� �������
�	�� �

�''�  ��	'� �	�� ���
��
	-�  ���	�'9� � 6�� ������ ����� ���� <�%�
��	�'��
��	���
	
�������	
�'�����
� ������	�������
��� 
	���'���
�����
	�
�����


	
������'
����'9��.����

�
�	-�'�
�	�,�'�������' �	'
�
�
����������
<	�
��	��	���	��<	��� �
'��#
��
������9�

�
.����������
��6���������
'���������������	

��
����	���������	��
������
��������	���
���	�����

����	��������
�	�����
������'�
�	���	�9��+����
����	��������� ������#
��
�����	������(� ��� ���(�����	���
���	������;�

	
���
	-�����
''�������
>�����	��������

�'������
	-����
�	-�'�
�	��	��
 ��(
	-� 
''��'� ���
	-� '
�����  

(�� � �	�� ��� ����� �
��'� �	�� �� ����
��
(����������������
����9�

�
.������
�� ������ ����� ���� '�

�''���� '
����� ������� �	�� �

�''�  ��	'�
,����
	
������
	������
���
	��@��
��
'���	�����,�������
'����
'�
''������
����	�>�����
�8'�+�
��
	-��	���
���
	��I���'�����
	-9�

�
��� !"�#	��.���������� �������	����9�
�

''�� ���� 0���� "��� �"

������� ���� �
�������� ����
��� 1����� �
���
���/�
��.
�����
�
.�����������
�������
�
�������� �������������� ������#
��
������������	
���
6�������	��@����+�
	-;�,�

��'�������
	������
�	��	�������	
���
	-���� ��G�
�'�
��� '���

�'� �,������ -��	�� ��	�
	-� 
	� ������C� �	��  ���
���� �� '������� ���

	������
�	� ���
���������-�	
'��
�	'��	��������
�����������
��'���

�'��'� ����
��������
���������	
���
	-� ��
�''9�
�
.��� ���
�� ,��
����� ���� �������
�� 6������ ���� �����	
��;� �������� �	��
$�'
��	��<	-�-���	�������������
	-9�

7



�

���E��� � ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
������������������������

�
�����,
	-� �� ��
��� �����
�,� ��� ���� �� ���� ��� �	� ���

��;� &�����'� ����� ����
�����,
	-�
����	�'��	���'(������������,
	-�?��'�
�	'/�
�

•� ����� ��� ���� ���
���'� '��� ���� 
	� ���� &�	
���
	-� ����'� ,���� 	���
'���


�	��������
���9��1��,�'�	���
�������,�����-��	�'�,���������'������
�
�
�����������
���'�'������������,����'��,�����������'������������
��-�	
'��
�	� 
	�?��'�
�	������� �������	

�9� �@������� ��
'� 
	������
�	�
	������	������
����������
	����	��' �

�
���
	������� ���A�

�
%	� ���

��� ���
'��� ����� �� ��>
���� ��� JC(� ,�'� ���
������  ���
��-�	
7��
�	��	����'����-�	
'��
�	'� ��
�
���� ��''� ���	� ������>
����
����	�9� � .����� ,�'� ��''� ' �

�


��� ��?�
���� ���� ���� '����� -��	�'9��
�������-�	
'��
�	'����� ���
��������
�������
���'� ����-��	�� ��	����
 ��G�
�'� �	�� '��� ����,��� ����  �� �'��� ��	��


��
�'�,����� ��9� � .�
'�

	������
�	� ,����� ��� ���
������ ��� ���

��� ���
���
�	� �
'
�'� ��� ����
��-�	
'��
�	'�
	�?��'�
�	9�

�
��������������������� ��������,�
���	���������	������������
���
�	��
'
�'�
���� ���	� �	�����(�	9� � 6
'���

����;� �� ����� 
�� ����� ���'
�	� ��� ����
�� ���� ,����� ����� ���	� �� ������ ��� ���� 5��	�'� %��
'���� ��	��� 
	�
#�
�����9������������������������
������'���-��	�'��� ����,�'���'��
'���
������������������	���������
����������	��������
	��9�������������;�
���

��'� ,���� ����� ��� ����� ��
(� ��� ���	� 
��,� ��
(� -��	�'� 
	� 
�'�'�
,�����������-�	
'��
�	�,�'���������������	���� ������
	-9�

�

•� @�'�
�� �''
��������
�����	�
�������,��	����'����-�	
'��
�	'������,����

	� ��
�
 �� ��� ���
�
�	��� ��	�
	-� ����� ������ '���
�'� �	�� ���'�� ,�

��
,����'��������	�������6����,A�

�
%	� ���

��� ���
'��� ����� ��-�	
'��
�	'� ,���� �'(��� ��� 
��	�
��� ������
���
�
�	��� ��	�
	-� '�����'� ���� ���
��  ��G�
�'9� � ���� ������ ����� ����
�  �	�

�'� ��� ���� �� ���� 
�	��
	��� �	��� �>���
�'� ����� ������	
���
	-�
����'��	���
��	���-��
	������������
�9�

�

•� @��� �
�� ���� �>���
�'� 	��� '��� ���� ,�

��  ����
���� -��� '� ,����� ���
���-��������������-�	
'��
�	'A�

�
%	����

������
'����������
'��������������
��,�������������	�' �

�
����	�
������
-
	���-��	���  �

��
�	�����'�'���
��������-��� '9�

�

•� ����� -��� '� �  ������ ��� ��� � ����
	-� 
	� 	�
-�����
	-� �����-�'9��
���������
'�,�'��	��
���	�6����,���'
��	�'A�

�
.����������
��6���������
'��������������,�'��	��> �
���
�	������-��	�'�
�,������ ��� -��� '� 
	� 6����,� ,����� ��� �'��� ��� ��	��
�� 6����,�
��'
��	�'9��6�,����;�'����-��� '�����������'��
�
	-�
	�	�
-�����
	-�
�����-�'9��%	����

�������������������	
���:�4���	�������
����)�4�*�
��-�	
'��
�	'� �
�� 	��� � ������ ,
��
	� �����-�� ���	���
�';� ��,����;�
���

��'�,������> �
�����'�����
��	
��������
��������'���

�'����6����,�
��'
��	�'� ���
	-� ���
�� ���
���
�	� �
'
�'9� � .��� ���

��� ������ ����;� 
	�

8



�

��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
������������������������ �������

�
	�'
-��;�'�������
7��������
��,�������������	�������'�����
�������� ����
���� 
	
������ ����� ���� ��
-
	��� -��	�� �  �

��
�	� ����';� ���� �I%'� �	��
����
�� �������	
���
	-�����'�'���
����������-�	
'��
�	'9��

�
%� &������ '������ ����� 
�� ,����� ����� ���	� �'����� 
�� ���� �� ���� ����
 ���
���� ����� ?���
���
��� ����;� ���--��� � � ���'�� ��-�	
'��
�	'� �����
,�����	���� ������
	-��	���
-��
-���������'����
�	
��	9� �.�
'�,�����
�������

�
������&�����'8�'
���
	����� ���� �� ���9� �%	����

����	������(�
����	'�����������
'��������������
��,�'�
	
������
	��������'�
���� ���'9�

�

•� 6�,��
���������	

����	��
�����������'���

�'��	���
�
�
�
�'� ���
�������
�����4���'�����'�������
��	

��-��	�'A��#
���������	

����������'
��	�'�
���'����'���

�';�'�
���'����	'���
�	�'���

�';� ���
�������'�����������
�4�� -��� 'A� � �������� ��-�	
'��
�	'� '������ ���  ���
��� '
�
����
'���

�'� �	�� ������ �  ������ ��� ��� �� �

��
�	� ��� '���

�'� 
	� ������
����'9� � @��� �
�	8�� ��-�	
'��
�	'� -��� � ��-������ ���  ���
��� '����
'���

�'�G�
	����
	�������������
���� �

��
�	A�

�

•� 1�� ,����� ����� ���	� �'����� ��� (	�,� ,�������  ���

����� '���

�'� ,����
��'�� ���
������������4������������	

�9��.�
'�
	������
�	�
����������
������
	-��	���������	�����-��	������
����;� ���

�������
	�
�'�'�,�����
'���

�'�  ������ ��� �������� ����
�
����� �	���
�	��

�����  ���
���� ���
�����4�9�

�
%	� ���

��� ���
'��� ����� ��	�� �4�� -��� '�  ���
���� �
'
���
�	����
'���

�';�'�
���'����	'���
�	�'���

�'��	���������� �'����'���

�'�,�

��
,����
����	����	��� ���
������� �������	

�9� � ����������� ��������

��'�
,���� 
	��
'
�''
�	��	�������>�� ��;��	
����-
	-� ���-�����-�	
'��
�	'�
���
���
''
�	�'���������-�	
'��
�	'�������
����'����'���

�'�G�
	���9�

�

•� .������
��'����������;�
	��
'��
�,;������
���
	��I����&�����'�	������
����������	���'��	�
	-���� ������������-��	���  �

��
�	��	����	
���
	-�
 ��
�''9��6���'(�����,���
�����

����
����	����'���
��,�'����
������
��������-��	�'� ��
�''A�

�
%	����

������
'��������������,�����9C����

��'��''
-	��������
'���������
,��(;� ��,����;� ���� ��	
���
	-� �>��

'�� ,�'� 
���
��� ���� G�
	���� ,
���
���

��'������������
��	

��#� �����	�'9�����������������'����> �
����
������	
���
	-��
'
�'�������
�� ���������K�	��������C9�

�

•� @�'�����������
��	
'������������

�
�'��������'�

��
���	
��������'��
�4��-��� '�,�

�� ���
����'�  ����
	���
'�����A�

�
%	� ���

��� ���
'��� ����� '�
�� ��������'� ,���� ����9� � 6�,����;� ����
���	

�� �
�� 	��� 
����	���� ��	�� '�
�� 
	
�
��
��';� ,�

�� ,���� ��	����
�����-����������	�
	-�'�����'��	���>
'�
	-��I%'9�

�
��� !"�#	��.���������� �������	����9�
�

9



�

���C��� � ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
������������������������

'2�� �-�
���
��
%�����)���������)��
�����
�
��� !"�#	��.�������� ��''��	�� ���

�����>
�������������������
	-���������
�����,
	-� 
���'� ��� ��'
	�'';� �	� ���� -���	�'� ����� ����� 
	������ ���� �
(����
�
'
��'�������
�	�
��	�
���
	������
�	�
	�����
������	����
-��
�	����
�	�
��	
�;�
��� ��� �>�� �� 
	������
�	� �'� ���
	��� 
	������ 1� ��� �
������� ��%� ��� ���� I�
���
5����	��	��%
���=��/�
��
%-�	���
1�������
�

.
���� #�'
�
 �
�	����<>�� ��1	������
�	�

��9� %  �	�
>� �� ��� 
���� �� 2�
&
��3����4���)4���	�����
�	�� �����	
��� ��
���*�
5��	��&�	
���
	-��� ����
�

1	������
�	� �	����  ���-�� �� ��
)
�	��
	'� 
	������
�	� �����
	-� ��� �	��

	�
�
����'*9�

��9� %  �	�
>� �� ��� 
���� �� 2�
&
��3����4���)4���	�����
�	�� �����	
��� ��
���*�
5��	��&�	
���
	-��� ����

1	������
�	� �	����  ���-�� �� ��
)
�	��
	'� 
	������
�	� �����
	-� ��� �	��

	�
�
����'*9�

�
)����/��.�������
	-;����
	-�
����	
�������9E�� �;�
��'������=9CB� �*9�
�
�
�
�
�
)�
-	��*��!L��1II!$��61II1��!"#<II�
���
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

10



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\2\3\AI00089326\$1yljqkku.docx 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

11December 2014 

Subject: 

 

Revenue and Capital Monitoring for Quarter 
2 as at 30 September 2014 

Key Decision:  

 

No 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Simon George, Director of Finance and 
Assurance 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Sachin Shah, Portfolio Holder for 
Finance and Major Contracts 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

No, as the recommendations are for noting 
only 

Wards affected: 

 

All 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 - Revenue Summary 
(Directorates) 
Appendix 2 – MTFS 2014/15 to 2016/17 
Savings Tracker 
Appendix 3 - Debt Management 2014/15 
Appendix 4 – Capital Programme as at 30 
September 2014 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report sets out the Council’s revenue and capital monitoring position as 
at Quarter22014/15(30 September 2014). 
 

Recommendations:  
 
1. That Cabinet note the revenue and capital forecast positions detailed in 

this report as at Quarter 2 2014/15. 
2. That Cabinet note the changes in Quarter2 to the Capital Programme 

outlined in paragraph 71. 
  

Reason:  (For recommendation ) 
To report the 2014/15 forecast financial position as at 30 September 2014. 
 

Agenda Item 7
Pages 11 to 48

11



2 
 

 

Section 2 – Report 
REVENUE MONITORING 
 
1. The Quarter 2forecast indicate a potential net budget overspend of £262k on 

Directorate budgets. This is offset by an increase in investment income of £350k 
giving an overall revenue budget forecast underspend of £88k for 2014/15. 

2. July Cabinet agreed in year savings of £1.601m for implementation with 
immediate effect, to contribute to future Medium Term Financial Strategy targets. 
November Cabinet approved a second tranche of in-year savings for immediate 
implementation totalling £131k. The variances now reported allow for these 
savings being achieved in full. Table 1 below summarises the Quarter 2 position 
and Appendix 1 provides more detail: 

 
Table 1: Revenue Monitoring – Quarter 22014/15 

  RevisedBudget ForecastOutturn 
Quarter 
2 
Variance 

Variance 
Quarter 
1 
Variance 

  £000 £000 £000 % £000 

Resources 26,629 26,099 (530) -2.0% (377) 

Environment and Enterprise 41,096 40,615 (481) -1.2% 0 

Community, Health and 
Wellbeing 75,811 76,273 462 0.6% 722 

Children and Families 47,166 47,977 811 1.7% 641 

Total Directorate Budgets 190,702 190,964 262 0.1% 986 

Corporate Items (16,276) (16,626) (350) 2.2% (921) 

Total Budget Requirement 174,426 174,338 (88) -0.1% 65 

      

HRA -905 -637 268  396 

 
 
RESOURCES 
 
3. At Quarter 2 an under spend of £530k is forecast, an increase of £153k from 

Quarter 1. The increase is largely due to a reduction in the expected payment to 
Capita (172k).The key reasons for the variance of £530k atQuarter 2are: 
 
Customer Services – A forecast underspend of £361kwhich is due to: 

o Additional grant compared to budget from DCLG for S31 to compensate 
for Business Rate Reliefs granted (£390k) 

o Reduction in the take up of Harrow Help Scheme  (£89k) 
o Savings from restructure of the Project Management Office and Business 

Transformation Programme client team (£44k).  
o Additional income from extra business and reduction in expected spend 

on Harrow helpline kit(£77k) 
o Review of Harrow Helpline  and the WEB team income (£187k) 
o Savings from the new printing contract (£87k) 
o Review of expected service credit and Data Centre Migration credit form 

Capita.(£178k) 
o Additional IT service recharge other service area (58k)  

12



3 
 

 
The underspends arepartially offset by the following overspends: 

o Telephony costs (£148),  
o IT improvements (£300k) 
o Loss of Harrow Helpline income from Brent (£120k) 
o Additional cost for CTS consultation (£100k) 
o Reduction in expected claim from sec 31 grant (£88k) 

 
HRD & Shared Servicesis forecasting an underspend of £133k due to :  

o  Vacancy management and reduction in operational costs(£222k) 
 

The under spends are partially offset by the following pressures: 
o Accreditation of stepping up to leadership programme by Institute of 

leadership and management(£13k) 
o Contract commitment to cover cost if volumes on recruitment contract 

are less than predicted (£59k)  
o Training and development cost (£17k). 

 
Also in Resources, Finance and Assurance are reporting an underspend of £34k 
due to a reduction in audit commission fees.  

 
ENVIRONMENT AND ENTERPRISE 
 
4. At Quarter 2, Environment & Enterprise are reporting an under spend of £481k 

over the total net controllable budget of £23.9m, an improvement of £481k on the 
balanced position reported at Quarter 1.  This includes an under spend of £45k on 
Emergency Relief Scheme (ERS), for which a carry forward will be requested at 
year end.  An element of the ERS was transferred to E & E to fund a project which 
will support residents to gain vocational skills and qualifications, this in turn will 
enable clients to progress in employment and increase their earning power.  
 

5. The under spend relates in the main to increased income from the Civic Amenity 
site £194k, cemeteries £108k and commercial lettings £78k.  This is coupled with 
the budget originally set aside for early termination of waste vehicles which is now 
no longer required £124k.  

 
6. On-going vacancy management has generated further within Commissioning 

Services of £150k and Economic Development £49k.    
 
7. The above favourable variations are partially offset by a forecast overspend on the 

waste disposal costs of £283k due to increased waste tonnage delivered to the 
West London Waste Authority (WLWA). The forecast payment to the WLWA in 
14/15 is £7.8m, which could fluctuate depending on residents’ recycling habits as 
well as seasonal trends on garden waste. 

 
8. Parking income is volatile and the achievement of the income budget is subject to 

a number of factors such as footfall, economic recovery, drivers’ behaviour and 
compliance to traffic rules, and weather condition. At Quarter 2, an overall parking 
income of £10.4m is forecast, which will be closely monitored. Work is also 
ongoing to determine the financial implications arising from legislative changes in 
relation to the use of CCTV cameras for parking enforcement activities.  

 
9. Of the £1.926m 14/15 MTFS targets, there are two red rated savings: 
 

13



4 
 

• £300k saving relating to parking income at Harrow Leisure Centre car park 
as a result of delayed implementation to permit further public and 
stakeholder consultation.  Quarter 2 forecast assumes that implementation 
will not be complete until Quarter 1 2015/16.  The shortfall will be mitigated 
by over recovery of other parking income. 
 

• £25k relating to revenue generation from fleet sponsorship / advertisement 
which remains under review.  The position reported assumes this is not 
achieved in 14/15. 

 
 
COMMUNITY, HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
 
10. The Community, Health and Wellbeing Directorate is forecasting an over spend of 

£462k at Quarter 2, as detailed below. This is an improvement of £260k on the 
Quarter 1 position. 

 
Adult Services 
11. Adults are reporting a projected overspend of £529k against a total net 

controllable budget of £54m, an increase against the Quarter 1 position of £424k. 
 
12. The majority of Adults budgets are demand led and the Council has a statutory 

duty to meet vulnerable adults’ needs. It is therefore challenging to strike a 
balance between safeguarding adults against harm and abuse and simultaneously 
balancing the budgets.  

 
13. There are a number of pressures across the directorate and the key variations are 

detailed below: 
 

• There continues to be an increase in number of referrals and complexity of 
care required to support service users, some of which may impact the ability to 
fully deliver those MTFS savings which were predicated on the costs of care 
being provided in the community at lower weekly cost. As a result of these 
pressures, an overspend of £656k on the purchasing budget is forecast.  This 
assumes that the balance of savings of £1.3m will be delivered and a 
drawdown of £150k from the business risk reserve to offset the Continuing 
Health Care and Ordinary Resident cases.  
 

• These pressures are likely to continue in the longer term and may be resolved 
by wider integration with health once the Better Care Fund (BCF) has been 
agreed. In the short term the priority is to protect service users whilst managing 
the financial position. 

 
• £167k relates tothe Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS), a new legislative 

requirement in the current financial year.   
 

• £127k of the overspend relates to Mental Health S75- Central North West 
London Hospitals Trust (CNWL) in part as a result of Harrow Clinical 
Commissioning Groups  decision to close Roxbourne (which,in the Council’s 
view , has resulted in increased costs for social care), together with increases 
in the number of care packages. The Council is actively supporting CNWL on 
various projects to mitigate, where possible, these pressures.  

 

14



5 
 

14. The mitigations assumed in reporting this position are: 
 

• Reduction of key positions not working directly with service users of £267k 
• Wider determinants of public health delivered by adult social care to be funded 

by public health grant flexibility of £140k 
• Use of £150k of the £750k business risk reserve in relation to the Continuing 

Health Care and Ordinary Resident cases. It is very likely that the remainder of 
the business risk reserve will need to be appropriately drawn down by the end 
of the financial year. 

• Other initiatives across the directorate 
 
15. In addition, it should be noted that the NHS funding transfer for 2014/15 of 

£4.445m, whilst agreed between the Council and the Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG), has yet to be paid by NHS England. 

 
16. The overall movement between Quarter 1 and Quarter 2 is an additional reported 

overspend of £424k and is largely reflected in the detail above. However in the 
first quarter the position on the purchasing budget was assumed to be balanced.  
It was not clear at this early stage whether the increase in referrals was likely to be 
ongoing and as a result the current forecast position at Quarter 2 more accurately 
reflects the anticipated position for the current financial year.   

 
Community and Culture 
17. Community and Culture are reporting a projected underspend of £73k against a 

total net controllable budget of £4.031m. There is a positive movement of £62k 
between Quarters 1 and 2 and relates to underspends on repairs and 
maintenance budgets within the Leisure and Libraries service and settlements 
against historic liabilities for contracted income being less than anticipated (leisure 
service) . 

 
Housing General Fund 
18. The position shows an improvement of £244k against Quarter 1 and reflects the 

impact of a number of initiatives designed to relieve pressure on the General 
Fund. These include an increase in Private Sector Leasing (“PSL”) rents effective 
from 8th October, which now has Portfolio Holder approval, and an anticipated 
increase for Bed & breakfast (“B&B”) from January 2015.  

 
19. Approval by Cabinet, on 17th July, of the Homes for Harrow report, which set out 

plans for the regeneration of the Council’s Grange Farm Estate, together with an 
increased drive for out of London moves using the Council’s Grants to Move 
initiatives, will free up more Council properties for use as temporary 
accommodation. 

 
20. Savings required in the previous MTFS process have been achieved in the Bed & 

Breakfast (“B&B”) budget, as well as savings generated by empty homes and 
grants to move initiatives. This has, however, been obscured by extraordinary 
growth in the numbers of families seeking temporary accommodation over the last 
year, leading to an overall pressure of £244k at this stage in the year, after 
offsetting the £400k carry forward and charging an additional £40k to HRA 
reflecting the allocation staff within the Housing Needs Service. 

 
21. The Housing Service continues to explore new initiatives with the aim of bringing 

the outturn in on budget. These include the extension of a range of incentives to 

15



6 
 

private landlords for the acquisition of properties to mitigate the costs of 
homelessness with the aim of bringing the outturn in on budget and alleviate 
pressures on the Council’s General Fund. 

 
22. The Government’s Welfare Reforms continue to take effect and their impact on 

the bad debt provision is under review. The Council has access to Discretionary 
Housing Payments, only slightly reduced from 2013/14, and is on track for full 
utilisation which helps with homelessness prevention. 

 
Housing Revenue Account 
23. The forecast outturn shows an adverse variation of £268k due mainly to additional 

depreciation charges of £216k for non-dwellings and £187k for dwellings. Both 
result in only a transfer of resources to the Major Repairs Reserve therefore have 
no overall impact on the resources available to the Council's HRA. These arise 
from changes in methodology applied for 2013/14 final accounts. The position has 
improved from Quarter 1 by £128k due mainly to the completion of the leasehold 
billing exercise and reduced contribution to bad debt provision. 

 
24. Impairment charges for non-dwellings estimated at £1.5m have not been included 

in the forecast outturn although, under current regulations, a charge against HRA 
balances is required. This issue has been raised by a number of Councils as the 
regulations are not consistent with the Government’s stated objective of 
encouraging new build. DCLG are in the process of discussing this issue with 
CIPFA and an update will be provided at Quarter 3. 
 

Table 2: Housing Revenue Account – 2014/15 Summary 

Period 6
Original 

budget

Revised 

Budget
YTD Actual

Forecast 

outturn
Variation

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance b/fwd 

(pre audit)
-3,533 -3,533 0 -3,574 -41

Net (surplus) 

deficit
-978 -905 -5,710 -637 268

Balance c/fwd -4,511 -4,438 -4,211 227  
 
Public Health  
25. The budgets for 2014/15 reflect the commissioning intentions agreed by Cabinet 

in December. 
 
26. A £372k underspend is being reported at Quarter 2 against Public Health Grant, 

however of this £140k is reflected within Adult Social Care representing the wider 
public health responsibilities being delivered.  The remaining balance of £232k, 
will not be allocated to the Public Health Reserve at year end but is expected to 
fund the wider determinants of Public Health delivered in other directorates across 
the Council.  As the appropriate schemes are agreed, these amounts will be 
reflected in the relevant directorate position. 

 
27. A balanced position was reported at Quarter 1. The movement of £372k relates 

largely to underspends on Sexual Health Service and Health checks, as a result of 
lower than anticipated activity levels.   

 
28. £178k of the underspend relates to Sexual Health Services (approximately 30% of 

overall Public Health budget), specifically to Genito Urinary Medicine (GUM) 

16



7 
 

service. This is based on the first quarter activity levels and assumes this will be 
representative of activity throughout the year, if this level of activity does not 
continue, the forecast underspend will reduce accordingly. 

 
29. At the end of 2013/14, unspent grant of £666k was carried forward specifically for 

Public Health within the Council’s ring-fenced reserve.  This unspent grant is being 
regularly reviewed and to date £164k is committed against the reserve. 

 
Transformation 
30. Transformation is reporting a projected underspend of £6k against a total net 

controllable budget of £398k. This is due to the start date for Harrow Mutual 
Support Network been pushed back one month to 1st of May 2014 reducing the 
spend by £12.5k which is partly offset by staffing cost pressures. 

 
 
CHILDREN AND FAMILIES 
 
31. As at Quarter 2 the total forecast overspend for the Directorate is £811k. There 

are several areas of pressure. Special Needs Transport (£557k), (£267k) is owing 
to the delay in implementing the service transformation programme after it was 
necessary to carry out additional consultation that delayed the start date of the 
programme and (£290k) due to growth in demand, Children with Disability staffing 
(£91k) and Children with Disability client costs (£169k) due to demand. There is a 
pressure in Targeted Services staffing (£448k) as a result of agency and interims 
covering vacancies and sickness and additional staff to manage caseloads and 
client spend (£732k) due to demand. This is offset by one off un- ring fenced 
grants, staff vacancies and other management actions.  

32. The overall movement between Quarter 1 and Quarter 2 is an additional reported 
overspend of £170k. The forecast spends on Placements and Special Needs 
Transport have increased by £445k and £402k respectively between Quarter 1 
and Quarter 2. These increases have been largely offset by early savings of 
£365k which have been identified and held centrally and other management 
actions. 

 

 

 

 

 

CORPORATE BUDGETS  

Interest and Finance Charges 
33. There is an increase in investment income due to higher than anticipated cash 

balances of £350k. 

Central Contingency 
34. The Central Contingency for unforeseen items in 2014/15 is £921k.  There have 

been no drawdown against the contingency, however an underspend has not 

17



8 
 

been forecast at Quarter 2 pending clarification on the extent to which directorates 
manage to contain the cost pressures faced. This continues to be monitored. 

 
Pay Inflation 
35. £950k has been provided in respect of a 1% pay award with effect from 1 April 

2014. The award has recently been agreed and represents different increases at 
different grades. The effect of the proposal is currently being costed but is 
anticipated to match the provision for the pay award.  

 
Gas and Electricity Inflation 
36. £450k has been provided against increases in price.  The call against this 

provision will not be established until later in the year.  
 
Contingencies and Reserves 
37. The contingencies are there to cover unavoidable inflation pressures for the pay 

award and energy inflation above 1.3% together with other unforeseen items and 
spending pressures and to cover areas of risk and uncertainty.  There are also 
specific reserves for the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) implementation 
costs, carry forwards, Business risks and the Transformation and Priority 
Initiatives Fund (TPIF). The current position is detailed in table 2 below. 

38. In June Cabinet approved carry-forwards of £4.008m which are now included 
within individual directorate budgets. There is also £195k in respect of grants 
brought forward from earlier years that will be drawn down as utilised. The main 
grant is Planning Development Grant. 

39. The balance on the Transformation and Priority Initiatives Fund (TPIF)brought 
forward from 2013/14is £3.370m.  There have been drawdowns of £100k in 
relation to urgent arboriculture works, £150k potholes and £30k to fund the 
Helping You.  £801k was added back to the fund from the in-year savings agreed 
at July Cabinet. This leaves a balance of £3.891m on the fund at Quarter 2. 

40. The balance on the Business Risk reserve brought forward from 2013/14 is 
£2.859m.  This is intended to cover a number of commercial risks that were 
identified and there have been no drawdown to date. 

41. The balance on the MTFS Implementation reserve brought forward from 2013/14is 
£6.074m. A further £800k was added to the from the in-year savings agreed at 
July Cabinet and an additional £131k from the in-year savings agreed at 
November Cabinet to make £7.005m. £311k has been drawndown to Quarter 2 on 
demolition costs for Civic 2 (£174k), severance costs (£115k) and consultation 
costs (£22k) leaving a balance of £6.694m.   

42. Table 3 Contingencies and Earmarked Reserves 

  
Unforeseen 
Contingency 

Pay 
and 
Energy 
Inflation TPIF 

Carry 
Fwd 

Business 
Risk 
Reserve 

MTFS 
Implementation 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Balance 
at start of 
Year 921 1,400 370 4,203 859 3,278 
Addition 
June 
Cabinet     3,000   2,000 2,796 
Addition 
July 
Cabinet     801     931 

18



9 
 

Drawdown 0  * (280) (4,008)   (311) 

Balance 921 1,400 3,891 195 2,859 6,694 

*Note that there is an anticipated drawdown of £950k required in relation to the pay 
award currently being consulted on. 

 
Reserves and Provisions 

43. The Council must hold adequate provisions and reserve balances to cover known 
and anticipated events and in respect of its statutory duties as appropriate. 
General non earmarked balances stand at £10m. All the provisions are reviewed 
on a quarterly basis.  As at Quarter 2 the Council has adequate provisions in 
respect of Insurance, Litigation and Employment cases. 

Debt Management 

44. The latest position on Council Tax, Business Rates and Housing Benefits bad 
debts provision is included within Appendix 3. 

 

MTFS IMPLEMENTATION TRACKER 
 
45. The 2014/15 budget includes approved MTFS savings of £12.939m.  The 

progress on implementation is summarised below in table 4 below and shown in 
more detail in Appendix 2:  

 
Table 4 RAG Rating of 2014/15 Savings 

Resources

Environment & 

Enterprise

Community, 

Health & 

Wellbeing

Children & 

Families Corporate Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Red 0.000 -0.325 -0.140 0.000 0.000 -0.465

Amber 0.000 0.000 -2.825 -0.650 0.000 -3.475

Green -1.730 -1.601 -3.802 -1.348 -0.518 -8.999

Total -1.730 -1.926 -6.767 -1.998 -0.518 -12.939  
 
 
 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
 
46. In Quarter 1 the2014/15 capital programme was forecasting to spend £114.8m, 

97% of the total programme. 

47. A significant review of the capital forecast has been undertaking in Quarter 2 to 
ensure it is robust and that it reflects, to the best of officer’s knowledge, the 
expected outturn at year end.   

Capital Programme Forecast at Quarter 2 

48. The forecast at Quarter 2 is £85.243m, 73% of the total capital programme and a 
significant reduction of 24% when compared with Quarter 1. This will continue to 
be monitored closely. 

19



10 
 

49. Overall an underspend of £31.726m is being forecast. This covers both general 
fund and HRA.  The general fund is projecting an underspend of £28.115m of 
which £27.104m will be slipped into 2015/16 year and £1.011m is no longer 
required.  The HRA is forecasting an underspend of £3.611m. 

50. Tables 5 and 6 below summarise the capital forecast position and Appendix 4 
shows the capital programme in more detail: 

Table 5. Analysis of Outturn variance  

Directorate
Outturn 

variance
 Slippage

Underspend 

after 

slippage

13/14 

Carry 

forward

14/15 

budget
Grant/s106 LBH

Grant 

/Sec 106/ 

HRA

LBH

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

CH&W -3,932 -1,318 -2,614 -1,752 -2,180 -3,835 -1,705 -2,130 -97

Children -19,669 -3,553 -16,116 -18,849 -820 -19,669 -18,849 -820 0

E&E -2,815 -2,040 -775 -255 -2,560 -2,715 -276 -2,439 -100

Resources -1,699 -816 -883 0 -1,699 -885 0 -885 -814

HRA -3,611 0 -3,611 -3,611 0 -2,800 -2,800 0 -811

Total -31,726 -7,727 -23,999 -24,467 -7,259 -29,904 -23,630 -6,274 -1,822

Split of outturn 

variance  by year

Split of outurn 

variance  by funding

Slippage by 

funding 

 

 

Table 6 Summary of forecast by directorate 

Directorate

Original 

Programme CFWD's

Adjust

ments External LBH

TOTAL 

BUDGET Forecast

Forecast 

Variance Slippage

Under - 

spend

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

CH&W 5,428 3,588 0 2,822 6,194 9,016 5,084 -3,932 -3,835 -97

CHILDREN 42,296 11,767 -317 52,836 910 53,746 34,077 -19,669 -19,669 0

E&E 14,790 10,674 -408 4,329 20,727 25,056 22,241 -2,815 -2,715 -100

RESOURCES 9,413 9,322 -60 0 18,675 18,675 16,976 -1,699 -885 -814

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 71,927 35,351 -785 59,987 46,506 106,493 78,378 -28,115 -27,104 -1,011

TOTAL HRA 9,527 949 0 0 10,476 10,476 6,865 -3,611 -2,800 -811

TOTAL GENERAL FUND & HRA 81,454 36,300 -785 59,987 56,982 116,969 85,243 -31,726 -29,904 -1,822  

 

Children and Families 
51. As at Quarter 1 the forecast was £53.746m, 100% of the Children’s 2014/15 

capital budget. At Quarter 2 the revised forecast is £34.077m, 63% of the total 
budget and a significant reduction when compared to Quarter 1.  The forecast 
under spend is £19.669m all of which will be slipped into 2015/16 for the following 
reasons.   

 
52. There is projected slippage on the primary expansion phases 1 and 2, secondary 

expansion and SEN expansion totalling £16m.  This is due to delays with the 
Contracting Partner delivering the programme by approximately 3 months due in 
part to market conditions. A late programme has been received from the 
framework contractor of the outstanding projects to be completed by September 
2015 but it is lacking in detail and the issue is being referred back to so that the 
council can be assured about delivery in time for the new pupil intake in 
September 2015. The current increase in construction work activity in the country 
as a whole has caused some problems in obtaining competitive quotes and 

20



11 
 

employing sufficient resources to deliver a large scale building programme and 
this has caused some delay in agreeing prices and starting works on site. Based 
on current estimates and market conditions it is still expected that it is possible to 
deliver this programme within EFA capital grants, without the need for council 
capital funding. However this is a risk which is being monitored closely. 

53. The phase 3 primary expansion programme is still undergoing statutory 
consultation to determine which schools will be covered and this will result in 
£1.6m of slippage to 2015/16. 

54. £820k of Harrow funded IT development has been re-phased to 2015/16 to reduce 
MRP costs in 2015/16.  

55. School amalgamations are expected to slip by £700k as a result of less schools 
amalgamating in 2014/15 than budgeted. 

56. Schools capital maintenance is forecast to slip by £850kas a result of the 
expansion work taking place on a large number of schools. 

Community, Health and Wellbeing 

57. As at Quarter 1 the forecast was £8.696m, 96% of the Community Health and 
Culture’s 2014/15 capital budget. At Quarter 2 the revised forecast is £5.084m, 
56% of the total budget and a significant reduction when compared to Quarter 1.   

58. The forecast under spend is £3.932m, of which£3.835mwill be slipped to 2015/16 
and £97kis no longer needed. 

59. There are two key reasons why budget is being slipped: 

• The following projects are due to start/have started but it is envisaged that 
projects will not be completed in this financial year and therefore a proportion 
of the budget will need to be slipped into the next financial year. The current 
forecast slippage is shown in brackets, as below; 

o Adults Social Care-Framework-I & IT Integration (£70k) 
o MOSAIC Implementation - Adults & Children's Services (£250k) 
o Leisure centre capital infrastructure (£137k) 
o Carers Services Charges (£50k) 
o Mental Health Supported Housing Repairs (£41k) 

o Empty Property and private sector initiative (£248k) 

o Headstone manor (£407k) 

• The following projects will be slipped into 15/16 on the basis that the strategy is 
not likely to be finalised until the last quarter of this year/ next financial year: 

o Capital Strategic Review (£575k) 
o Quality outcome for People with Dementia (£150k) 
o Sec 106 Banister Sport Pitch (£1m) 
o Market Shaping And Development (£250k) 
o Safeguarding Quality Assurance Quadrants (QAQ) (£175k) 
o Integrated Health Model (£250k) 
o Community Capacity Grant (£232k) 

21



12 
 

 
• The Disabled Facilities grant, Empty Properties grant and Private initiatives will 

underspend by £97k.  

Resources 

60. As at Quarter 1 the forecast was £18.786m, 100% of the Resource’s 2014/15 
capital budget. At Quarter 2 the revised forecast is £16.976m, 91% of the budget 
and a reduction when compared to Quarter 1.  

 
61. The forecast under spend is £1.699m of which £885k will be slipped into 

2015/16and £814kof the budget is no longer required. The main items for slippage 
are detailed below: 

 
• Delay in agreeing schemes with Capita have meant that the SAP/Financial 

ledger and System Improvement projectwill result in £177kunderspend in 
14/15. 

• The expected payment to WLWA in respect of a loan for infrastructure is 
currently projected to slip by £448k, based on the latest payment profile 
supplied by the WLWA. 

• Mobile and Flex project payments are re-profiled resulting in £100k 
slippage.  

• Small schemes will slip £70k. 

• The ICT Infrastructure and Corporate Application Project will slip £90k due 
to the delivery date being moved back. 

62. £814k of budget is being forecast as no longer required as detailed below:  

• 13/14 Business Transformation Programme Refresh project budget of 
£213k that was carried forward from last financial year will no longer be 
needed. The allocated 14/15 budget for this same programme will be 
sufficient to carry out all the works that are needed this year. 

• £50kwas originally classified as capital cost and has now been reviewed 
and re-classified as revenue.  

• Of the £500k contingency budget for the 14/15 IT corporate system refresh 
project, nothing has been spent  to date and £200k is being forecast as 
underspent  based of the profile of spend last year.   

• A cheaper option identified for the CRM replacement has released £250k of 
budget. 

• The 13/14 BTP Hardware Refresh has spent £75k less than anticipated on 
laptops and Wyse boxes.  

• The budget of £80k earmarked for WI-FI will no longer be required as this 
has been subsumed within another project already commission. 

 
Environment & Enterprise 

22



13 
 

63. As at Quarter 1 the forecast was £24.857m, 97% of the E&E’s 2014/15 capital 
budget. At Quarter 2 the revised forecast is £22.241m, 87% of the budget and a 
10% reduction when compared to Quarter 1.   

 
64. The forecast under spend is £2.815m of which £2.715m will be slipped into 

2015/16 while £100kbudget will no longer be required. 
 

65. The main items of slippage and reasons are detailed below: 
• Pinner Park Farm £350k.  2014/15 focused on consultation and planning 

and the work is anticipated for delivery in 2015/16. 
 

• Green Grid £276k – A number of sec 106 projects are in the planning stage 
and it is anticipated that these schemes will be delivered in 15/16. 

 
• Neighbourhood Investment Scheme £200k – Members have already 

approved various schemes and a considerable sum will contribute to Green 
Gym installationthis year. It is anticipated that the £200k budget will be 
carried forward to be spend in early 15/16. 

 
• CCTV Crime reduction cameras £468k - Camera allocation has been 

identified and the service is in the process of agreeing the details and 
delivery timetable with the framework contractor. There is a long lead in 
time before the cameras become operational. 

 
• Public Realm - £1.364m because we are still awaiting Capita to provide a 

detailed delivery plan. 

 
 

66. The Public Realm scheme for £100k re: litter bins is on hold and an under spend 
is forecast.  

23



14 
 

 
Housing Revenue Account 
67. As at Quarter 1 the forecast was £8.719m, 83% of the HRA’s 2014/15 capital 

budget. At Quarter 2 the revised forecast is £6.865m, 66% of the budget and a 
significant reduction when compared to Quarter 1.   

 
68. The forecast under spend is £3.611m. This is as a consequence of better 

sequencing of work, tender savings and preparation works for the development of 
a four year capital programme and a new Better Homes standard. The HRA 
capital programme is currently forecasting spend in the region of 70% of the total 
programme. Any underspend will be retained in the HRA to be used in future 
programmes. 

Virements 
69. There are no virements at Quarter 2.  

Amendments to Capital Programme  
70. The following schemes in the capital programme have been amended to reflect 

changes in the amount of grant funding available, resulting in an overall reduction 
in the programme of £761k. 

 
Table 7: 2014/15 Capital Programme Amendments 

Scheme Comment £000 

14/15 Carbon Reduction 
Project  

The original programme estimated a loan of £1m to 
engage at least 10 schools in the refit project with 
an average spend of £100k including boilers. The 
school expansion programme means that,as some 
of the works (including boilers) are accommodated 
in the School expansion capital programme, a 
reduced  loan from Salix is now required for this 
year. In 2014/15 £350k will be borrowed  and the 
programme is being changed to reflect this. For 
future years capital programme, if any further 
borrowing is done, it will be added to the 
programme. 

650 

TFL Principle Roads 13/14 Project finalised 111 

Total Changes   761 

 
 

Legal Implications 
71. Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 states that without prejudice to 

section 111, every local authority shall make arrangements for the proper 
administration of their financial affairs and shall secure that one of their officers 
has responsibility for the administration of those affairs” . Section 28 of the Local 
government Act 2003 imposes a statutory duty on a billing or major precepting 
authority to monitor, during the financial year, its income and expenditure against 
budget calculations.  

72. Decision makers should have due regard to the public sector equality duty in 
making their decisions. The equalities duties are continuing duties they are not 
duties to secure a particular outcome. The equalities impact will be revisited on 
each of the proposals as they are developed. Consideration of the duties should 
precede the decision. It is important that Cabinet has regard to the statutory 
grounds in the light of all available material such as consultation responses. The 

24



15 
 

statutory grounds of the public sector equality duty are found at section 149 of the 
Equality Act 2010 and are as follows: 

 

73. A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 
need to: 

(a)          eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under this Act; 

(b)          advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 

(c)           foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

74. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between 
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not 
share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to: 

(a)          remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 

(b)          take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 

(c)           encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionately low. 

75. The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different 
from the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to 
take account of disabled persons’ disabilities. 

76. Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves 
having due regard, in particular, to the need to: 

(a)          Tackle prejudice, and 

(b)          Promote understanding. 

77. Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons 
more favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as permitting conduct that 
would otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act. The relevant protected 
characteristics are: 

•              Age 

•              Disability 

•              Gender reassignment 

•              Pregnancy and maternity 

25



16 
 

•              Race, 

•              Religion or belief 

•              Sex 

•              Sexual orientation 

•              Marriage and Civil partnership        

Financial Implications 
78. Financial matters are integral to the report. 

Performance Issues 
79. Good financial performance is essential to achieving a balanced budget.  The 

financial performance is integrated with the strategic performance of the Council 
through quarterly Directorate Improvement Boards  which consider the financial 
position alongside performance including key projects, service KPIs (including 
customer data and complaints) and workforce. Monitoring of finance and 
performance is reported regularly to the Corporate Strategic Board and Cabinet 
and is also considered by the Council's Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub- 
Committee. 

80. The overall projected percentage variance from the revenue budget is forecast to 
be -0.1%.   

81. For the 2014/15 savings built into the MTFS, the overall position is that 70% of the 
savings are RAG rated as green, 27% RAG rated amber and 3% RAG rated red. 

82. There is a performance target of 90% of the approved capital programme for 
2014/15 being spent in year. The current projection is for spend to be 72% of 
budget.   

83. Council Tax Collection: The collection rate is slightly below the target profile at the 
end of the second quarter at 57.62% against a profile of 57%.  

84. Business Rates Collection: The collection rate is 0.5% below profile at 59.5% 
compared to a target of 60.0%.  This reflects a move by a number of payers from 
10 to 12 payments per year. The position is expected to improve as we move 
through the year and is nearly 1% better than at Quarter 1. 

Environmental Impact 
85. There are none directly related to this report 

 

 
Risk Management Implications 
86. The risks to the Council and how they are being managed are set out in the report. 

87. Risks are included on the Directorate risk registers. 

Equalities implications / Public Sector Equality Duty 
88. A full equalities impact assessment was completed on the budget when the 

budget was set by Full Council. Equalities implications are taken into account by 
individual directorates whilst running services and making decisions to vire 

26



17 
 

money. A full equality impact assessment will be completed on the budget for 
2015/16. 

Council Priorities 

89. The Council’s vision is:  

 
Working Together to Make a Difference for Harrow 
 
90. The Council’s priorities are: 
 

Making a difference for the vulnerable 
Making a difference for communities 
Making a difference for local businesses 
Making a difference for families 

91. This report deals with Revenue and Capital monitoring which is key to delivering 
the infrastructure to deliver the Council’s priorities. 

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
 

Name:Dawn Calvert x  on behalf of the  
Chief Financial Officer 

 
Date: 28 November 2014 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Jessica Farmer x  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 28 November 2014 

   
 

 

 

Ward Councillors notified: 

 

 

NO, as it impacts on all 
Wards 
.  

 

EqIA carried out: 

 

EqIA cleared by: 

NO 
.  

 
Information for noting only 
 

 
 
 

27



18 
 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
 

Contact:   
Dawn Calvert (dawn.calvert@harrow.gov.uk), Head of Strategic Finance & Business 
Tel: 020 8424 1393 
 

Background Papers:  
Cabinet Report February 2014: Final Revenue Budget 2014/15 and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2014-15 to 2016-17 and EIA. 
Cabinet Report June 2014: Revenue and Capital Outturn 2013-14 

 
 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 

 

 NOT APPLICABLE 
 
[Call-in does not apply as the 
recommendations are for noting only] 

 
 

 

28



19 
 

 
Revenue Summary

 Revised

Budget

 Forecast

Outturn

Quarter 2 

Variance

Variance Quarter 1 

Variance

£000 £000 £000 % £000

Resources

Controllable Budget

Customer Services 24,037 23,676 (361) (1.5%) (162)

Director of Resources 1,660 1,658 (2) (0.1%) 2

Finance & Assurance 9,912 9,873 (39) (0.4%) (35)

HRD & Shared Services 2,619 2,486 (133) (5.1%) (161)

Legal & Governance 3,353 3,383 30 0.9% (7)

Procurement 973 975 2 0.2% 0

Strategic Commissioning 1,732 1,705 (27) (1.6%) (14)

Total Controllable Budget 44,286 43,756 (530) (1.2%) (377)

Uncontrollable Budget (17,657) (17,657) 0 0.0% 0

Total Directorate Budget 26,629 26,099 (530) (2.0%) (377)

Environment and Enterprise

Controllable Budget

Commissioning Services 9,337 9,187 (150) (1.6%) 0

Directorate Management 958 822 (136) (14.2%) 0

Corporate Estate (458) (545) (87) 19.0% 0

Economic Development & Research 718 623 (95) (13.2%) 0

Planning 318 305 (13) (4.1%) 0

Environmental Service Delivery 12,979 12,979 0 0.0% 0

Total Controllable Budget 23,852 23,371 )481( (2.0%) 0

Uncontrollable Budget 17,244 17,244 0 0.0% 0

Total Directorate Budget 41,096 40,615 )481( (1.2%) 0

Community, Health and Wellbeing

Controllable Budget

Adult Services 54,038 54,567 529 1.0% 105

Community and Culture 4,031 3,958 (73) (1.8%) (11)

Housing General Fund 3,661 3,905 244 6.7% 633

Public Health (373) (605) (232) 62.2% 0

Transformation 398 392 (6) (1.5%) (5)

Total Controllable Budget 61,755 62,217 462 0.7% 722

Uncontrollable Budget 14,056 14,056 0 0.0% 0

Total Directorate Budget 75,811 76,273 462 0.6% 722

Children and Families

Controllable Budget

Management & Business Support 4,354 3,492 (862) (19.8%) (535)

Early Intervention Services 4,921 4,776 (145) (2.9%) (91)

Targeted Services 16,718 17,898 1,180 7.1% 927

Commissioning & Schools 2,608 2,429 (179) (6.9%) (64)

Special Needs 7,506 8,323 817 10.9% 404

Schools (7) (7) 0 0.0% 0

Total Controllable Budget 36,100 36,911 811 2.2% 641

Uncontrollable Budget 11,066 11,066 0 0.0% 0

Total Directorate Budget 47,166 47,977 811 1.7% 641

Total Directorate Budgets 190,702 190,964 262 0.1% 986

Corporate Items (16,276) (16,626) (350) 2.2% (921)

Total Budget Requirement 174,426 174,338 (88) (0.1%) 65

Appendix 1

29



20 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank

30



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\2\3\AI00089326\$1yljqkku.docx 

MTFS 2014/15 to 2016/17 – Savings     Appendix 2 
Item No   2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2014-15   

  
  £000 £000 £000 

RAG 
Status Comments 

  CHILDREN & FAMILIES           

CF 017 
Consolidation of staffing structure including 
proposed deletion of 1 Divisional Director 
post 2015/16 

-148 0 0 Green 

£23k relates to full year effect of a Commissioner post 
which was deleted in 2013/14. £125k relates to deletion 
of a Divisional Director post, of which £25k achieved by 
removal of 0.2 FTE overlap from former job share 
arrangement, £100k achieved by maximising use of 
grant 

CF 018 
Deletion of Head of Education Strategy & 
School Organisation  

-50 0 0 Green Post deleted 

CF 019 
Reconfiguration of Early Intervention Service 
to support the Families First Programme 

-150 0 0 Amber 

The cumulative MTFS saving is £300k. This is currently 
being achieved by using Troubled Families funding to 
support this saving for which a carry forward of £672k 
has been agreed by Cabinet. The continuation of 
Troubled Families Grant is uncertain beyond 2014/15. 

CF 020 
Children's Centres remodelling to reconfigure 
the local offer 

-200 0 0 Green 
Budgets and staffing reconfigured, saving is expected 
to be delivered. 

CF 021 
Special Needs Transport II - demand 
management including Independent Travel 
Training 

-45 0 0 Green Saving delivered  

CF 022 
Special Needs Transport III - full market 
engagement including outsourcing of some 
routes 

-500 0 0 Amber 

Due to delay in Cabinet approval of the final business 
case, implementation has been delayed and there is a 
likely pressure of £267k in 2014/15 not being achieved. 
Full year saving expected to be delivered from 
2015/16. 

CF 023 
Introduction of Charging for non Statutory 
Educational Psychology to schools 

-90 0 0 Green 
Saving delivered - Schools and academies are buying 
back service. 

CF 024 
Review of semi supported provision including 
potential closure of Honeypot Lane 

-410 0 0 Green Facility closed and staff made redundant. 

CF 026 
Savings from commissioning budgets 
including connexions, parenting support, 
drugs & alcohol and clinic in a box 

-255 0 0 Green 
Career Advice and Guidance contract amended and 
Council contribution to Harrow School Improvement 
Partnership reduced. 

31



22 
 

MTFS 2014/15 to 2016/17 – Savings     Appendix 2 
Item No   2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2014-15   

  
  £000 £000 £000 

RAG 
Status Comments 

CF 027 Recommissioning of Respite Care for CWD  -100 0 0 Green 
Short Breaks Contracts have been re tendered and 
saving expected to be delivered 

CF 028 
Consolidation of Early Years training 
functions - including reductions in contracts & 
staffing 

-50 0 0 Green 
Pre School support, Home visiting and relationship 
counselling contracts ceased. 

  Total Children & Families Savings -1,998 0 0     

              

  ENVIRONMENT & ENTERPRISE           

E&E011 
Public Realm Integrated Service Model 
(PRISM) efficiencies.  Towards Excellence 
Programme efficiencies 

25 -375 0 Green 

E&E013 
Public Realm Post reductions. Efficiency in 
management and support to Borough's 
allotments 

-24 0 0 Green 

Towards Excellence restructure completed and staff 
salaries realigned to reflect the new costed structure.  
A shortfall in salaries is being managed through 
vacancies.  Savings profiled to 15/16 (£375K) relate to 
route optimisation work. 

E&E012 
Further management reductions in 
Environment 

-145 0 0 Green 

The Towards Excellence restructure resulted in less 
actual savings than originally assumed in the MTFS 
due to changes to the posts/grades following staff 
consultation. This budget saving is being contained by 
holding the Divisional Director Property Services 
vacant. 

E&E016 
Climate Change - Flexible retirement and 
consumables budget 

-58 0 0 Green 
Climate Change team has been deleted; work is now 
integrated with Commissioning Services division. 

E&E023 
Consolidation of Civic Centre accommodation 
to secure utility cost savings. Transformation 
Project 

-122 -58 0 Green 

Civic 2 has been converted to a car park and schools 
have taken possession of Civic 3, 4, 5 & 6 from 19 May 
2014.  The saving will be a combination of the 
reduction in business rates and utilities costs.  Revised 
valuations have been received in respect of Business 
rates for some of the changes and the forecast charges 
for business rates are based on this.  Utilities savings 
are as yet unclear. 

32



23 
 

MTFS 2014/15 to 2016/17 – Savings     Appendix 2 
Item No   2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2014-15   

  
  £000 £000 £000 

RAG 
Status Comments 

E&E033 
Trading Standards and Proceeds of Crime 
Act savings (linked to review of SLA with 
Brent trading Standards) 

-100 0 0 Green 
The SLA has been agreed on 24 June 2014.  This 
saving will be met by generating additional POCA 
income. 

E&E039 
Revenue maximisation - Fleet sponsorship: 
Explore advertisement opportunities for PRS 
fleet 

-25 0 0 Red 

This is being taken forward by Procurement team as 
part of the corporate initiative 'Using the Market'. 
Potential income for advertising on fleet is £25K, but 
profiled to 2015/16.  

E&E041 Grass Verge Maintenance reduction -165 0 0 Green 

The reduction in grass verge maintenance will be 
implemented in 14-15 resulting in savings on contract 
hire and staffing costs.  It is anticipated that the saving 
will be made in full in 14-15.  

E&E043 Grounds maintenance: Annualised hours 0 -81 0 Green 

A consultation pack on changes to working patterns, 
including the introduction of annualised hours, is being 
prepared.  The consultation with staff will commence in 
Quarter 2 14-15, with a view to implementing 
annualised hours by the end of 14-15. 

E&E046 Review fine turf service standards -29 0 0 Green 

An in house team provides maintenance to keep turfed 
areas, primarily sports / football pitches in good 
condition to enable them to be hired out. In February, 
Cabinet agreed a 2% increase in pitch fees and the 
service aims to increase the marketing and promotion 
of such facilities to generate further income. 

E&E058 Procurement Savings - others -273 0 0 Green 

Every effort is being made to achieve this target 
despite the challenge. Sources of savings are currently 
being identified and it is anticipated that the saving will 
be made in full in 14/15.   

33



24 
 

MTFS 2014/15 to 2016/17 – Savings     Appendix 2 
Item No   2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2014-15   

  
  £000 £000 £000 

RAG 
Status Comments 

E&E 008 
14/15 

Budget Realignments for Parking Services 
(Income re-alignment,  no staff impact)  
Based on the review of historical 
performance, enforcement of parking and 
traffic offences for traffic management 
reasons in 2012/13 recovered more than the 
budgeted figure.  

-700 0 0 Green 
The achievement of this saving is dependent on the 
outcome of the government consultation in relation to 
local authority parking. 

E&E 009 
14/15 

Textiles Recycling  
Additional income generated from textiles 
recycling contract. 

-10 0 0 Green 

New 4 year contract has been signed in August 2013 
with a better price per tonne as a result of favourable 
market prices for textiles. Based on the income for 
Periods 1-6, the additional income will be achieved in 
full. 

E&E 010 
14/15 

Increase in income relating to leisure centre 
car parks 
Increase in leisure centre parking income 

-300 0 0 Red 
Implementation is not expected until later in the year.  
A forecast increase in enforcement, CPZ and parking 
income will mitigate the shortfall in 14-15. 

  Total Environment & Enterprise Savings -1,926 -514 0     

              

  COMMUNITY, HEALTH AND WELLBEING           

  Adults Services           

CHW013 Contract Management - efficiencies -100 0 0 Green 

Expected to be realised and will be evidenced by 
balanced Purchasing budget at year end.  However 
given the increases in referrals and costs associated 
with complexity of care, and forecast outturn variance 
this may be difficult to evidence. 
Potentially this will be delivered through: 
1) Managing inflation £500k 
2) Renegotiation of the supported accommodation 
contracts at Canning Rd / Parkside Way - £50k 14/15 
(£100k full year effect) 

34



25 
 

MTFS 2014/15 to 2016/17 – Savings     Appendix 2 
Item No   2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2014-15   

  
  £000 £000 £000 

RAG 
Status Comments 

CHW015 
West London Alliance (WLA) Joint 
Procurement: Approved Provider Credition 
(APC) Residential Care 

-100 0 0 Green 

Savings on target to be delivered.  Tracking of 
placements made through the West London Alliance 
(WLA) will evidence savings delivered throughout the 
year 

CHW017 
Voluntary Sector Funding. Reversal of 
2012/13 growth 

-100 0 0 Green Achieved 

CHW018 Voluntary Sector Funding -200 0 0 Green Achieved 

CHW019/20 
Reduction in use of residential placements for 
the most complex, by investing in community 
placements. 

-1,500 0 0 Amber 

Plan developed and being monitored weekly.  Impact of 
increased volume of referrals and complexity of care 
required to support service users may impact the ability 
to fully deliver savings which were predicated on the 
basis of costs of care being provided at lower cost in 
the community. 
Anticipate savings being delivered through a mix of the 
following: 
1) Moves to sheltered accommodation  
2) Towards Independence (Shared lives)  
3) Increased community placements  
4) Management of Ordinary Residence and appropriate 
reviews of health cases 
5) Managing inflation (via WLA) to assist delivery of 
MTFS £500k  

CHW021 Day Care Strategic Review -300 0 0 Green savings on target to be delivered 

35



26 
 

MTFS 2014/15 to 2016/17 – Savings     Appendix 2 
Item No   2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2014-15   

  
  £000 £000 £000 

RAG 
Status Comments 

CHW022 

Purchasing Budget [community based 
efficiencies].  Market development providing 
greater choice in services leading to 
reductions in cost. 

-1,000 0 0 Amber 

Plan developed and being monitored weekly.  Latest 
evidence indicates that the some of the costs of 
complex care provided in the community are more 
costly than originally estimated.    
Anticipate savings being delivered through a mix of the 
following: 
1) PB clawback 
2) External day care converted to PB's 
3) Home Care 2 project 
4) Market development (10%) resulting in increased 
choice and therefore lower costs  
5) Top 50 community packages 
6) Innovative care solutions i.e. CSV  

CHW023 
Commissioning Staff.  Review of staffing 
structures. 

-300 0 0 Amber 

Restructure in progress and expected to be fully 
implemented by 1/12/14.  Impact of delay in 
implementing will be compensated by variations on 
other budgets 

CHW024 

Share Complaints team with another local 
authority and/ or aggregate within Council.  
Originally intended theses savings would be 
delivered through a shared service approach 
which will continue to be explored but may be 
accommodated within wider staff changes as 
appropriate to deliver the savings.   

-104 0 0 Green Achieved and delivered 

CHW025 

Sharing of Joint Assessment Team with 
another local authority. Originally intended 
these savings would be delivered through a 
shared service approach which will continue 
to be explored but may be accommodated 
within wider staff changes as appropriate to 
deliver the savings.  

-93 0 0 Green 

Assumed £50k delivered via charges for managing 
client finances, although latest indications suggest that 
compensatory savings may necessary to fully deliver 
saving.  Restructure in progress and expected to be 
fully implemented by 1/12/14 

36



27 
 

MTFS 2014/15 to 2016/17 – Savings     Appendix 2 
Item No   2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2014-15   

  
  £000 £000 £000 

RAG 
Status Comments 

CHW028 
Supporting People - targeted efficiency 
savings through specific contracts 

-1,324 0 0 Green 
Savings fully delivered through efficiencies and 
renegotiated contracts 

CHW032 
Meals on Wheels.  Review options for service 
provision. 

-190 0 0 Green 
Plans in place. Ongoing monitoring will evidence 
achievement of savings as per plan. 

  Total Adults Savings -5,311 0 0     

  Housing           

CHW004 

Homelessness [100 families & anticipated 
B&B HB changes).  Savings from 2012-13 
MTFS assumed to arise from increased 
subsidy for B&B placements which did not 
actually materialise. 

-100 0 0 Red 

A review of activity levels during 2013-14 showed some 
30 families were provided with accommodation, 
thereby avoiding the requirement to use B&B. This 
resulted in the achievement of B&B savings for 2013-
14. The same review however identified extraordinary 
growth for temporary accommodation over and above 
that anticipated at the time of budget construction due 
primarily to uncertainties around the timing and content 
of the Government's Welfare Reforms. Although a 
number of initiatives to mitigate the cost of B&B are 
being considered, political ascent is required before 
they are reported and implemented. The same applies 
to CHW047 below. 

CHW037 
Housing Needs - Private Sector Leasing 
Scheme.  Income generation 

-25 0 0 Amber Considered achievable at this stage 

CHW038 
Housing Service Efficiency Review.  Saving 
in staffing costs 

-70 0 0 Green On target 

CHW041 

Invest to Save - cash incentives.  Used to 
free up HRA properties to house families 
from the waiting list. Savings result from 
reduced B&B expenditure. 

-48 0 0 Green On target 

CHW047 
Empty Homes Initiative. Reduced cost of 
temporary accommodation as a result of 
bringing empty properties back into use. 

-300 0 0 Green 

Expenditure on B&B has been reduced as a result of 
the empty home initiative. The extraordinary growth in 
families seeking temporary accommodation has 
however obscured the achievement of this saving. 

37



28 
 

MTFS 2014/15 to 2016/17 – Savings     Appendix 2 
Item No   2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2014-15   

  
  £000 £000 £000 

RAG 
Status Comments 

  Total Housing Savings -543 0 0     

  Community and Culture           

CHW048 Cultural Services review of structure -15 0 0 Green Achievable - 3rd year of payment protection 

CHW051 
Library Volunteers.  Support provided by 
volunteers. 

-40 0 0 Red 

Historic MTFS item related to library volunteers that is 
no longer relevant under new contract with Carillion. 
New saving identified under self service at Hatch End 
library, however this could only be implemented by late 
October at the very earliest and would require 
agreement with the new contractor. 

CHW053 
Cultural Strategy Review efficiencies - 
savings subject to tender with Ealing & Brent 

-400 0 0 Green 
This saving is split between, £135k split over libraries 
and leisure contracts and £265k managed through a 
grant saving. 

CHW055 
Reduce Adult Learning Subsidy. Services to 
be funded by grant. 

-50 0 0 Green To be achieved 

CHW056 Reduce subsidy to harrow young musicians  -10 0 0 Green To be achieved 

CHW062 
Deletion of post supporting community 
festivals 

-48 0 0 Green 
Achieved - postholder left 2013. Restructure not yet 
carried out. 

  Total Community & Culture savings -563 0 0     

  Public Health           

CHW068 
Further Public Health Efficiencies. Funding 
existing Council revenue funded services. 

-100 0 0 Green On target 

CHW009 
14/15 

Reduction in Council’s Contribution to Public 
Health Budget 

-250     Green On target 

  Total Public Health -350 0 0     

  Total Community, Health & Wellbeing -6,767 0 0     

            

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

38



29 
 

MTFS 2014/15 to 2016/17 – Savings     Appendix 2 
Item No   2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2014-15   

  
  £000 £000 £000 

RAG 
Status Comments 

  RESOURCES           

  Customer Services           

RES027 

Use of Artificial Intelligence to divert 
switchboard calls. Reducing use of staff, 
introduced in 2013-14 with full year impact of 
saving in 2014-15 

-60 0 0 Green 

Delivered -Artificial switchboard is in place, staffing has 
been reduced accordingly 

RES029 

Further channel shift through roll out of My 
Harrow account. Reduction in Access Harrow 
staffing resulting from self serve via MHA, 
website and IVR 

-60 -60 0 Green 

Delivered-60,000+ MHA accounts handle 14,000+ 
enquiries per month.  Staffing levels have been 
reduced. 

RES030 

Close Face to Face (F2F) and Telephony 
Channels for Public Realm Enquiries. Over a 
3 year period close face to face contact in 
Access Harrow for Public Realm queries and 
migrate to Internet contact. 

-30 -70 -50 Green 

Delivered-TE project delays mean that full functionality 
is not available, however staffing levels have been 
reduced. 

RES031 
Reconfigure One Stop Shop to self-serve 
area and close F2F (face to face) advice 

-100 -190 -100 Green 

Delivered -Face to face appointments reduced by 61% 
in 2013/14 with further 20% reduction due in 2014/15.  
Staff reduced in line with expectations. 

RES045 
Print Contract Savings. Letting of contract for 
printers and photocopiers at lower cost. 

-100 0 0 Green 

Delivered - Based on the new contract. However, there 
is still an uncertainty around the cost of annodata 
decommissioning and outstanding invoices, however 
the expectation is that this will be covered by an 
accrual & carry forward from 13/14. 

  Strategic Commissioning           

RES036 

Merger of Corporate Performance Team and 
Service Performance Team, reducing 
staffing. Merging of two management posts 
undertaking similar specialisms across the 
council to one single Business Intelligence 
team and the delivery of the new operating 
model (next saving).  

-93 0 0 Green Delivered 

39



30 
 

MTFS 2014/15 to 2016/17 – Savings     Appendix 2 
Item No   2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2014-15   

  
  £000 £000 £000 

RAG 
Status Comments 

RES038 

Performance, Research & Analysis Business 
Case and New Operating Model Strategic 
Commissioning. Aggregation of posts 
undertaking similar specialisms across the 
council to one team which is then reduced to 
deliver the saving through a more efficient 
delivery of the service. 

-97 0 0 Green Delivered 

RES040 

Communications - reduction in number of 
campaigns.  This is a reduction in the 
contract price for the next two years agreed 
with Westco. 

-46 0 0 Green Delivered 

  HRD           

RES042 Reduction in HRD posts. Deletion of 2 posts. 0 -75 0 Green On target 

RES046 

Cessation of External recruitment 
Advertising. Reduce the volume of 
recruitment advertising in journals and papers 
and increase use of internet advertising 
including the council's own site 

-75 0 0 Green On target to Deliver 

  Internal Audit           

RES048 
Reduce co-sourcing budget. Reduce the use 
of external partners to provide specialist 
support to audit. 

-16 0 0 Green Delivered 

  Insurance Service           

RES053 
Reduced broker fees through more in-house 
handling and increased income on third party 
insurance schemes 

-3 0 0 Green 

On target through increased handling of injury claims 
in-house.  Current savings in 2014/15 £4,268. 

RES058 
Deletion of Corporate Risk Management 
Support Service. Deletion of post in 2013. 

-30 0 0 Green Delivered 

40



31 
 

MTFS 2014/15 to 2016/17 – Savings     Appendix 2 
Item No   2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2014-15   

  
  £000 £000 £000 

RAG 
Status Comments 

RES059 
Cross Council Insurance Claims. Reduce 
cost of insurance claims against the Council 
by better risk management. 

-70 0 0 Green 

On target through several initiatives: 1) A pro-active 
approach to injury claims handled in-house is resulting 
in fewer claimants resorting to instructing solicitors.  In 
2013/14 there were seven such claims delivering 
typical savings of £10k per claim. 2) Joint working with 
Health & Safety and Waste Management has resulted 
in funding being made available for four way cameras 
on the refuse fleet, which is expected to lead to claim 
savings.3) A project is underway to mitigate the cost of 
tree root claims against the Council.  

RES060 
Reduced Contribution to Insurance Provision. 
Reduce cost of insurance claims against the 
Council by better risk management. 

-100 0 0 Green On target 

  Legal & Governance           

RES068 
E-canvass Project. Reduced staffing 
following electronic canvas. 

-20 0 0 Green waiting for commentary from department 

RES072 

Increase to Registrars Fee Income Target. 
Income budget reduced in 2012-13 to reflect 
actual received, additional income to be 
received from 2013-14. 

-100 0 0 Green waiting for commentary from department 

  Corporate Finance           

RES073 Finance restructure.  Reduced staff costs. -300 0 0 Green 
Saving has been built into the budget and saving is on 
track to be delivered in full. 

  Collections and Benefits           

RES078 Deletion of 4 FTE posts in Housing Benefits 0 -140 0 Red 
Delays in the implementation of Universal Credit put 
this saving at risk.  

RES080 
Staff reductions to match DWP Admin grant 
reduction 

-48 0 0 Green Delivered 

41



32 
 

MTFS 2014/15 to 2016/17 – Savings     Appendix 2 
Item No   2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2014-15   

  
  £000 £000 £000 

RAG 
Status Comments 

RES081 

Concessionary Travel - Changes to Transport 
for London (TFL) grant distribution. 
Reallocation of levy costs between London 
Boroughs. 

-102 0 0 Green Delivered 

RES082 Revenues Staffing Reductions 0 0 -40 Green On target 

RES083 

Housing Benefits Staffing Reductions as 
Benefits moves to DWP. Reduced staffing 
required as Housing Benefits transfers to 
Universal Credit and is no longer 
administered by Harrow. 

0 0 -125 Red 
Delays in the implementation of Universal Credit put 
this saving at risk. 

RES 003 
14/15 

To delete the post of Chief Executive and 
associated business support 

-280 0 0 Green Delivered 

  Total Resources Savings -1,730 -535 -315     

              

  CORPORATE           

Tech 029 
Terms and conditions. Savings arising from 
renegotiated terms and conditions with staff. 

-268 -187 -31 Green Delivered 

Tech 002 
14/15 

Saving in use of Consultants across the 
Council 

-250 0 0 Green Built into 2014-15 budget 

  Total Corporate -518 -187 -31     

       

  Total -12,939 -1,236 -346     

42



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\2\3\AI00089326\$1yljqkku.docx 

Appendix 3 
Debt Management 2014/15 
 
Council Tax 
Currently, bad debt provisions (BDP) of £4.590m exist [£4.898m- £0.308k; w/offs done 01/04/14-30/09/14] for Council Tax against a potential 
BDP of £4.109m for debts accrued to 31 March 2014.  

 

COUNCIL TAX 
 

Arrears as at 
1

st
 of April 

Arrears as at 
Qtr2 

BDP  BDP as at Qtr2 

 £000 £000 % £000 
Pre 2008-2019  654 590 100 590 
2010-2011  566 513 100 513 
2011-2012  707 649 100 649 
2012-2013  1,015 879 100 879 
2013-2014 3,131 1,970 75 1,478 
2014-2015 n/a n/a 65 0 
Total 6,073 4,601  4,109 

 
National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) 
Currently, bad debt provisions of £2.235m[£2.496m- £0.261k; w/offs done 01/04/14 to 30/09/14] 
exist for business rates (NNDR) against a potential BDP of £2.488m.Under Business Rates 
retention, the effect on the local authority is 30% of any surplus or deficit. 
 
 
NATIONAL NON DOMESTIC 
RATES (NNDR) 

Arrears as at 1
st
 

of April 
Arrears as at 

Qtr2 
BDP  BDP as at Qtr2 

 £000 £000 % £000 
Pre 2013-2014 1,262 936 100 936 
2013-2014 2,101 1,552 100 1,552 
2014-2015 n/a n/a 50  
Total 3,363 2,488  2,488 

 
Council Tax and Business Rates Court Cost 
Currently, bad debt provisions (BDP) of £950k (CT £850k+ NDR £100k) exists for Court Costs 
against a potential BDP of£1018k. From previous years trends, this amount of provision 
appears to be adequate and in line with our overall provisions policy. 
 
Court Cost Arrears as at 

1
st
 of April 

Arrears as at 
Qtr2 

BDP  BDP as at Qtr2 

 £000 £000 % £000 
Pre 2011-2012  235 207 100 207 
2011-2012 129 116 100 116 
2012-2013 190 158 75 118 
2013-2014 616 478 60 286 
2014-2015 0 582 50 291 
Total 1,170 1,541  1018 

 

43



34 
 

Housing Benefits 

Currently, bad debt provisions of £2.930m [£3.936m- £1,006m w/offs 1/4/14 to 30/09/14] exist 
for Housing Benefit overpayment debt against a potential BDP of £3.595m (£2,289m + £1,306m 
= £3,595m). It is anticipated, at this stage, that the shortfall in provision will be funded from the 
subsidy on overpayments.  
 
Housing Benefit 
DEBTORS 

Outstand as at 
1

st
 of April 

Outstand as at 
Qtr2 

BDP  BDP as at Qtr2 

 £000 £000 % £000 
Pre 2012-2013 1,204 864 100 864 
2012-2013  764 479 100 479 
2013-2014 1,882 986 50 493 
2014-2015 0 1,510 30 453 
Totals 3,850 3,839  2,289 
     

 
 

Housing Benefit 
LIVE CASES 

Outstand as at 
1

st
 of April 

Outstand as at 
Qtr2 

BDP  BDP as at Qtr2 

 £000 £000 % £000 
Pre 2012-2013 413 290 100 290 
2012-2013  596 397 75 298 
2013-2014 1,395 796 50 398 
2014-2015 0 1,064 30 320 
Totals 2,404 2,547  1,306 
     

 
 
 

44



Capital Monitoring At Quarter 2 Appendix 4

Project Definition

Original 

Programme CFWD's Adjustments

TOTAL 

BUDGET Actuals

Commit-

ments  Forecast

Forecast 

Variance Slippage

Under / 

Overspend

Adults Social Care-Framework-I & IT 

Integration

0 140,591 0 140,591 12,956 0 70,591 -70,000 -70,000 0

MOSAIC Implementation - Adults & 

Children's Services

250,000 522,604 0 772,604 77,925 14,342 522,604 -250,000 -250,000 0

Milman's Day Centre - Remodeling & 

Refurbishment

0 0 0 0 0 5,693 0 0 0 0

Bedford House Boilers 0 0 0 0 0 594 0 0 0 0

Mental Health Supported Housing Repairs 0 51,078 0 51,078 2,918 2,207 10,078 -41,000 -41,000 0

Renovation Grants 70,000 0 0 70,000 12,875 0 70,000 0 0 0

Disabled Facilities Grants 1,500,000 0 0 1,500,000 392,817 263,222 1,500,000 0 0 0

Disabled Facilities Grants (additional 

Grant) 

0 50,000 0 50,000 0 0 0 -50,000 0 -50,000

Empty Properties & Private Sector 

Initiatives Grants

676,000 269,743 0 945,743 184,668 0 650,743 -295,000 -248,000 -47,000

Headstone Manor 0 1,218,155 0 1,218,155 47,619 29,552 811,155 -407,000 -407,000 0

Upgrading the People's Network and 

Installing Wi-Fi

0 43,534 0 43,534 37,285 0 43,534 0 0 0

Upgrading Library Management System 0 0 0 0 -18,060 5,000 0 0 0 0

Leisure Centre Capital Infrastructure 300,000 43,055 0 343,055 53,784 16,333 206,055 -137,000 -137,000 0

Sec 106 Banister Sport Pitch 1,000,000 4,000 0 1,004,000 0 4,000 4,000 -1,000,000 -1,000,000 0

Leisure Capital Investment 0 6,988 0 6,988 0 0 6,988 0 0 0

Sports & Leisure Short Breaks Grant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Refurbishment of 64 Pinner Road 0 0 0 0 0 2,538 0 0 0 0

Stanmore Library - Meeting Room 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Adults Personal Social Services - 

Community Capacity Grant

632,000 338,334 0 970,334 133,789 0 638,334 -332,000 -332,000 0

Capital Strategic Reviews 0 684,633 0 684,633 64,153 19,039 210,000 -474,633 -474,633 0

Aztec Cafe and The Bridge - Phase 1 0 15,584 0 15,584 270 0 15,584 0 0 0

Quality Outcome for People With Dementia 150,000 0 0 150,000 0 0 0 -150,000 -150,000 0

Reform Of Social Care Funding 250,000 0 0 250,000 0 0 250,000 0 0 0

In House Residential Establishment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Integrated Health Model 250,000 0 0 250,000 0 0 0 -250,000 -250,000 0

Carers Services Charges 100,000 0 0 100,000 0 0 50,000 -50,000 -50,000 0

Market Shaping And Development 250,000 0 0 250,000 0 0 0 -250,000 -250,000 0

Safeguarding Quality Assurance Quadrants 

(QAQ)

0 200,000 0 200,000 5,720 0 25,000 -175,000 -175,000 0

TOTAL CH&W 5,428,000 3,588,299 0 9,016,299 1,008,719 362,520 5,084,666 -3,931,633 -3,834,633 -97,000

Schools Expansion Programme - Phase 1 5,870,000 1,656,604 -725,000 6,801,604 998,629 2,647,272 4,068,575 -2,733,029 -2,733,029 0

Schools Expansion Programme - Phase 2 14,375,000 3,066,754 0 17,441,754 2,493,204 3,621,787 12,435,843 -5,005,911 -5,005,911 0

SEN Provision 5,325,000 1,243,284 -394,692 6,173,592 1,332,127 580,536 3,688,133 -2,485,459 -2,485,459 0

Secondary Expansions 10,100,000 2,958,687 1,049,436 14,108,123 562,659 253,306 8,639,000 -5,469,123 -5,469,123 0

Schools Expansion Programme 

contingency

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

School Amalgamation 700,000 622,959 0 1,322,959 71,459 48,501 622,959 -700,000 -700,000 0

Bulge Classes 150,000 0 -26,896 123,104 94,420 12,676 123,104 0 0 0

Free School Meals 621,000 0 -116,000 505,000 76,456 2,886 505,000 0 0 0

Schools Capital Maintenance 1,350,000 69,191 0 1,419,191 169,713 238,872 569,191 -850,000 -850,000 0

1 18/11/2014

45



Capital Monitoring At Quarter 2 Appendix 4

Project Definition

Original 

Programme CFWD's Adjustments

TOTAL 

BUDGET Actuals

Commit-

ments  Forecast

Forecast 

Variance Slippage

Under / 

Overspend

Schools Expansion Programme Phase 3 1,805,000 0 0 1,805,000 0 0 200,000 -1,605,000 -1,605,000 0

Devolved Formula Non VA Schools 0 736,710 333,546 1,070,256 947,674 0 1,070,256 0 0 0

IT Development 0 910,000 0 910,000 0 3,467 90,000 -820,000 -820,000 0

Catering in schools (2011-12) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

High School Development (2011-12) 0 0 0 0 -25,783 25,783 0 0 0 0

Whitmore School - Sports Pitch 0 64,750 25,000 89,750 0 0 89,750 0 0 0

Whitmore School 2,000,000 0 -462,207 1,537,793 1,021,716 484,366 1,537,793 0 0 0

Project Fees During Defect Period 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Austistic Spectrum Disorder 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Children's Centre Funding 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Primary Capital Grant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

High School No 1 - rebuild BSF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2 Year Old Entitlement Grant (2012-13) 0 438,100 0 438,100 0 0 438,100 0 0 0

TOTAL CHILDREN 42,296,000 11,767,039 -316,813 53,746,226 7,742,274 7,919,452 34,077,704 -19,668,522 -19,668,522 0

Affordable Warmth 0 86,050 0 86,050 83,143 0 86,050 0 0 0

BTP - Public Realms 0 1,405,759 0 1,405,759 37,901 1,385,628 58,922 -1,346,837 -1,364,255 17,418

Carbon Reduction Programme 2012/13 0 262,199 0 262,199 0 134,676 262,199 0 0 0

Carbon Reduction Programme 2013/14 0 161,963 0 161,963 141,306 1,585 161,963 0 0 0

Carbon Reduction Programme 2014/15 1,300,000 0 -650,000 650,000 0 58,003 622,000 -28,000 0 -28,000

CCTV Camera Extension Project 0 384,862 0 384,862 0 384,838 412,862 28,000 0 28,000

CCTV Crime Reduction Cameras  14/15 575,000 0 0 575,000 0 0 80,000 -495,000 -495,000 0

CCTV Enforcement Monitoring System Re-

engineering

0 86,907 42,000 128,907 0 88,674 128,907 0 0 0

City Farm/Pinner Park Farm 0 717,292 -118,000 599,292 18,745 83,145 249,292 -350,000 -350,000 0

Civic Centre Parking 0 135,245 0 135,245 80,898 21,106 135,245 0 0 0

Corporate Accommodation Maintenance 433,000 264,586 215,000 912,586 636,592 99,316 912,586 0 0 0

Development of a Consolidated, Integrated 

Civic One Building

0 26,268 0 26,268 3,242 450 26,268 0 0 0

Harrow Card 0 140,000 -140,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Harrow Green Grid 343,000 204,377 0 547,377 34,988 19,389 271,377 -276,000 -276,000 0

Harrow On Hill Station 100,000 0 0 100,000 0 0 100,000 0 0 0

High Priority Plan Maintenance Corporate 

Property

430,000 90,102 0 520,102 102,460 116,206 520,102 0 0 0

Highway Drainage Improvements & Flood 

Defence Infrastructure

525,000 177,825 0 702,825 330,619 173,215 702,825 0 0 0

Highway Improvement Programme 5,500,000 789,325 0 6,289,325 2,517,076 3,394,640 6,289,325 0 0 0

Leisure Centre Car Park CCTV 0 0 0 0 -7,351 0 0 0 0 0

Leisure Centre Car Park Charging 0 60,000 34,000 94,000 0 0 64,000 -30,000 -30,000 0

Neighbourhood Investment Scheme 210,000 269,511 0 479,511 15,016 51,200 279,511 -200,000 -200,000 0

Parking Management Programme 750,000 62,209 53,000 865,209 449,460 170,345 865,209 0 0 0

Public Realm Services – Parks, Open 

Spaces & Cemeteries

850,000 318,782 258,000 1,426,782 486,228 101,772 1,326,782 -100,000 0 -100,000

Public realm Services – Waste and 

Recycling

200,000 251,014 17,000 468,014 87,045 97,930 450,596 -17,418 0 -17,418

Roxborough Bridge Underpass CCTV 0 7,024 0 7,024 6,681 6,681 7,024 0 0 0

Section 106 Schemes 0 357,528 40,000 397,528 22,690 155,907 397,528 0 0 0

Street Lighting Improvement Programme 1,500,000 733,082 0 2,233,082 622,664 496,432 2,233,082 0 0 0

TfL Major Schemes 0 264 -264 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TfL Principal Roads 868,000 553,390 259,254 1,680,644 578,722 421,459 1,680,644 0 0 0

TfL Transport Capital 1,206,000 872,034 -76,881 2,001,153 927,890 84,341 2,001,151 -2 0 -2

2 18/11/2014

46



Capital Monitoring At Quarter 2 Appendix 4

Project Definition

Original 

Programme CFWD's Adjustments

TOTAL 

BUDGET Actuals

Commit-

ments  Forecast

Forecast 

Variance Slippage

Under / 

Overspend

Town Centre Infrastructure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Town Centre Regeneration 0 2,256,513 -341,000 1,915,513 220,147 1,312,806 1,915,513 0 0 0

Transport Local Implementation Plan 2 - 

Programme of investment 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL E&E 14,790,000 10,674,111 -407,891 25,056,220 7,396,162 8,859,744 22,240,963 -2,815,257 -2,715,255 -100,002

Council Tax Support 0 83,000 0 83,000 60,914 75,662 137,000 54,000 0 54,000

ITO Transformation 125,000 3,544,137 -450,000 3,219,137 1,227,079 1,479,153 3,219,137 0 0 0

My Harrow Services Account Dev Prog 0 97,094 0 97,094 9,874 9,250 97,094 0 0 0

IT Improvement Project 750,000 0 0 750,000 0 0 700,000 -50,000 0 -50,000

SAP: Financial Leger/Systems Control Imp 0 385,592 0 385,592 34,202 84,783 208,592 -177,000 -177,000 0

BTP - Business Support 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

BTP - SAP SRM Procurement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

BTP CCAD - Customer Contact Assess & 

Decide

0 8,000 0 8,000 -236 88,764 8,000 0 0 0

BTP - Mobile & Flex 401,000 1,956,741 60,000 2,417,741 641,570 2,478,674 2,317,741 -100,000 -100,000 0

BTP - Corporate Resources 0 82,000 0 82,000 38,000 57,453 82,000 0 0 0

BTP - PCI Cap 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

BTP Minor Projects 0 236,062 0 236,062 0 150,000 236,062 0 0 0

SAP Minor Developments 0 70,361 0 70,361 -8,391 97,697 70,361 0 0 0

ICT Infrastructure & Corporate Applications 0 729,890 100,000 829,890 63,615 83,827 659,890 -170,000 -90,000 -80,000

IT Corporate System Refresh 1,300,000 0 350,000 1,650,000 132,869 199,303 1,200,000 -450,000 0 -450,000

LAA Performance Reward Grant 0 128,374 0 128,374 0 29,544 128,374 0 0 0

BTP - Hardware Refresh 213,000 488,424 0 701,424 127,180 91,165 413,424 -288,000 0 -288,000

Loan Payment - Capital 6,624,000 1,199,345 0 7,823,345 2,339,054 0 7,375,345 -448,000 -448,000 0

Small Schemes (Council wide) 0 312,857 -152,370 160,487 7,728 5,996 90,487 -70,000 -70,000 0

IER Grrant 0 0 32,370 32,370 -32,370 0 32,370 0 0 0

TOTAL RESOURCES 9,413,000 9,321,877 -60,000 18,674,877 4,641,088 4,931,271 16,975,877 -1,699,000 -885,000 -814,000

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 71,927,000 35,351,326 -784,704 106,493,622 20,788,243 22,072,987 78,379,210 -28,114,412 -27,103,410 -1,011,002

Housing Programme 7,527,000 949,000 0 8,476,000 913,024 1,345,075 6,305,050 -2,170,950 -1,360,200 -810,750

Grant Funded Extensions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Aids & Adaptations 0 0 0 0 0 5,203 0 0 0 0

Affordability Housing 2,000,000 0 0 2,000,000 0 0 560,000 -1,440,000 -1,440,000 0

TOTAL HRA 9,527,000 949,000 0 10,476,000 913,024 1,350,278 6,865,050 -3,610,950 -2,800,200 -810,750

3 18/11/2014

47



48

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT FOR: 

 

PERFORMANCE AND 

FINANCE SCRUTINY 

SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

6 January 2015 
 

Subject:     

 

 

Staff Survey  and Sickness Absence 
Monitoring Results and Action plans 
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Jon Turner, Divisional Director of HRD 
and Shared Services 
 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

Performance Lead Member – 
Councillor Adam Swersky 
Policy Lead Member- 
Councillor Stephen Wright 
 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

Wards affected: 

 

None 

Enclosures:  
 

1. Staff Survey Results 
2. Management  Information –Screen Shots 
3. Data on sickness absence distribution  
4. Directorate action plans 

 

 

  
 

Agenda Item 8
Pages 49 to 146

49



 

 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

Summary 
This report sets out the latest staff survey and sickness absence monitoring 
results and action plans. 

 
Recommendations:  
The committee is requested to consider the adequacy of the action plans 
already being implemented  

 
 
 

Section 2 – Report 
 

Introduction 
 
This report provides: 
 

• An overview of the staff survey results, and proposed departmental 
action plans.  

• An update on the Council’s sickness absence monitoring for 
2014/2015.  

 
By taking action in response to the staff survey results, management will be 
able to respond better to staff, create and establish a vision and act to 
improve staff purpose.  
 
The management and focus on sickness absence will improve the cost 
effectiveness of staff and improve productivity. 
 
Staff Survey  
 
The staff survey was conducted against a challenging backdrop which 
included changes to terms and conditions in 2013/14 and a 1% reduction in 
pay. Looking ahead there is continued uncertainty for staff arising from 
planned budget reductions. 
 
47% of staff completed the survey which is a reduction on the numbers who 
completed the previous survey in 2011, which was 56%. 
 
The headline results of the survey show that our levels of engagement with 
staff have fallen and are now back to 2008 levels.  
 
Overall satisfaction with working for the council has fallen significantly as has 
understanding of the strategic direction and corporate priorities. Perception 
that the council is good at managing change has also fallen.   
 
On a positive note senior manager visibility is high and staff feel more 
empowered to make decisions and that their managers trust them in their 
work. 

50



 

 
When the results are broken down it is clear that there are differences in staff 
views depending on the department they work in. Staff in Community Health 
and Wellbeing provided the most positive results, with above Harrow average 
scores across all indicators, followed by Resources. Results were less 
positive for Children and Families and parts of Environment and Enterprise.  
 
In the Education and Commissioning Department of Children and Families all 
but 3 of the benchmark indicators are below the Harrow average and the 
National Benchmarks.  
 
A number of staff engagement events have taken place over the last few 
months and have provided the opportunity for further feedback from staff.  
 
A council wide communications review has been implemented and the Making 
a Difference Group (a staff group set up to take forward equalities issues, 
offering a signposting service for advice and information) are contributing to 
actions on equalities. 
 
Directorates have analysed their own results and drawn up their action plans 
with input from staff members. Environment and Enterprise set up a project 
team and have undertaken further analysis, and held face to face meetings 
and surveys with staff before producing their action plan. 
 
Action Plans 
 
There are a number of recurring themes across all directorates and 
departments. These are: 
 

• Reviewing corporate communications and communications across 
departments. 

• Understanding the equalities satisfaction gaps and prioritising actions 
with the Making a Difference Group. 

• Transitioning to the new appraisal process including the provision of 
development. 

• Reviewing the Council’s Protocol for Managing Change, providing 
training for managers and ensuring restructures follow the protocol.  

 
Directorate action plans are attached as appendix 1 to this report. Children 
and Families has yet to finalise their plan to respond to staff feedback. It has 
been recommended given results that Children and Families review the 
process completed by Environment and Enterprise in the Environmental 
Services area and complete similar work in Early Intervention Services. Their 
approach being recognised as good practise. 
 
Sickness Absence Results in Summary 
 
The council’s sickness absence records for 2014/15 to the end of Quarter 2 
show an average days lost per full time equivalent (fte) employee (excluding 
schools) of 9.48 days per annum, calculated on a rolling year.  
 
The permanent and temporary fte is 1,842 employees (excluding schools).  
 

51



 

61.5% of the total absence is long term sickness (more than 4 weeks) and 
38.5% is short term sickness.  
 
Information on sickness absence performance is included in the Council’s 
workforce data set which is reported to Improvement Boards on a quarterly 
basis.  
 
The headline data shows the results for each directorate for both short-term 
and long term absence (more than 4 weeks).   
 
By directorate the figures are: 
 

Resources – 7.36 days (43.9% short term, 56.1% long term ) 
E and E- 13.23 days (32.8% short term, 67.2 long term)  
CHWB – 8.83 days (41.8% short term, 58.2 long term) 
C and F- 8.56 days (38.1% short term, 61.9% long term) 

 
Absence rates for CHWB have risen this year and this is in part attributed to 
the transfer of staff from Business Support Services from Children and 
families to CHWB.  
 
In E&E the high levels of sickness absence are partly attributed to the 
physical nature of many of the jobs and working outside in all weathers. Long 
term sickness absence in E&E is a higher percentage of absence rates than 
other directorates. The directorate has carried out more analysis of rates and 
have seen some reduction over Q1 figures following actions taken. 
 
CHWB has set an absence target of 7.5 days per FTE. Environment and 
Enterprise which has the highest absence levels has set a target of 10 days 
per FTE.  
 
In relation to London Councils, Harrow is in the fourth quartile for the average 
number of days lost due to sickness absence for 2013 -2014 according to the 
Human Capital Metrics Survey conducted by Haringey Council on behalf of all 
London Councils.  
 
It is worth noting that the same survey shows Harrow is in the fourth quartile 
for employees aged 50 to 64 and has the highest number of employees aged 
65 and older. 
 
This may contribute to high levels of absence.  When we look at reasons for 
absence Harrow’s levels of sickness due to back problems, is in the fourth 
quartile and has risen since last year.  
 
 
However, it should be noted that the Council cannot verify the information 
submitted for the survey by other Councils.  
 
Some further data on the distribution of sickness absence across the year and 
by grade is Appendix 2. 
 

52



 

Action Plan Summary 
 
HRD has reviewed and streamlined the sickness absence policy and 
procedure. These are currently being consulted on. The aim of the review has 
been to simplify the policy and procedure and help to improve sickness 
absence management. 
 
Directorates have their own action plans to address identified issues and 
improvement. These are set out in summary at Appendix 3. 
 
The Council’s general approach that follows the ACAS guidance 
(http://www.acas.org.uk/media/pdf/q/k/Managing-attendance-and-employee-
turnover-advisory-booklet.pdf) is to:- 
 

• Promote the health and well-being of the workforce- through training 
and events, an employee assistance scheme, an occupational health 
service, work-life balance and flexible working policies and leave 
provisions that include special leave (paid and unpaid as appropriate) 
that Directors can approve to enable staff to cope with difficult domestic 
and family matters. The staff engagement board is planning a Health 
and Wellbeing day for the new year.  

• A sickness absence policy and procedure- the current policy and 
procedure is being reviewed, made simpler and more explicit. 
Managers are being consulted on the policy.  

• Train managers in their responsibilities and good practice in relation to 
sickness absence- various forms of training are already underway and 
a new programme will be included in the further roll-out of manager 
and employee self -service 

• Provide managers with reports from SAP to enable them to understand 
sickness absence in their area down to individual level and to check 
that return to work interviews and trigger points are being implemented 
Screen shots of the kind of information available to managers are 
Appendix 4. 

 
In accord with recognised good practice, the Council uses the return to work 
interview and follow-up action plan as key elements along with ‘trigger points’ 
to manage sickness absence. These are combined with detailed information 
for managers on sickness absence in their service area including the standard 
Bradford Factor ratings as explained below. 
 
The Bradford Factor 
 

The Bradford factor is a way of illustrating how disruptive frequent short-
term sickness absence can be. Bradford factors are a way of highlighting 
those individuals with serious absence and patterns of sickness 
absence, which give cause for concern. 

 
The Bradford factor is not a trigger but should be used when identifying 
“where to start” where large numbers of employees hit the triggers.  This 
information is available to Managers as part of their management 
information on sickness absence. 

 
 The Bradford factor is calculated as S X S X D = Bradford factor. 

53



 

 
     S is the number of spells (occasions) of sickness absence in the last 52 

weeks.   
     D is the total number of days’ sickness absence in the last 52 weeks.  

 
 
The’ trigger points’ 
 

The Council’s sickness absence triggers are as follows: 
 

o Three separate sickness absences of any duration in a three 
month period, or 

o Five separate sickness absences or a total of twelve days 
sickness absence  in a twelve month period, or 

o A pattern or type of sickness absence  that causes concern e.g. 
regular absence, often leaving work a few hours early due to 
sickness, frequent medical appointment, or  

o Single episode of four continuous weeks (long term sickness 
absence) 

 

Financial Implications 
 
The direct cost of all staff sickness absence (excluding the cost of schools 
sickness absence and agency cover) in 2013/14 was £2.5m. 
 
The action plans set out within the report do not require any additional budget 
funding but will require management time in directorates to support their 
effective implementation.  
 

Environmental Impact 
 

There is no environmental impact arising from the action plans 
 

Risk Management Implications 
        

High levels of sickness absence and low levels of staff satisfaction / 
engagement present risks to achieving high performance and productivity.  
Action taken and planned by the Council and Directorates to mitigate these 
risks are set out within the report. 
 

Equalities implications 
 
Equalities are explicit in the Staff Survey. Questions in the staff survey 
included equalities questions. The Making a Difference Group are making 
recommendations to feed into the action plans. 
 

Council Priorities 
 
The action plans are designed to assist the Council’s management of the 
workforce and in turn support the achievement of the Council’s priorities in 
relation to improving services to the community.  
 

54



 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
Not required for this report 

 

 

 

Ward Councillors notified:  

 

  
. NO 

 

 

 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
Contact:  Jon Turner, Divisional Director of HRD and Shared 
Services 0208 424 1225 or Ext 2225 
 
Background Papers:  
 
Enclosures:  
  

1. Staff Survey Action Plans 
2. Sickness absence distribution data 
3. Directorate Action Plans in summary 
4. Management  Information –Screen Shots 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

55



56

This page is intentionally left blank



Resources
Staff Survey Response 
November 2014 

57



Contents
1. Introduction 3 

2. BTP and Customer Services 5 

3. Commercial Contracts and Procurement 6 

4. Finance and Assurance 7 

5. HRD and Shared Services 8 

6. Legal and Governance 9 

7. Strategic Commissioning 10 

7.1 Strategic Commission Action Plan 11 

8. Next Steps 12 

58



1. Introduction 
The following document outlines Resources response to the Council Staff Survey 2014. It 
highlights areas of concern and lists potential actions and initiatives to bring the Directorate 
to the satisfaction levels achieved by others. 

The actions listed are tailored for each Department in the Directorate (based on their staff 
survey results) and will be considered to be part of the workforce development plan for 
2014-15 and subsequently 2015-16. 

The overall result for those indicators that have a national benchmark is shown in the figure 
below.

Figure 1: Resources Overall Staff Survey Result 2014 

The associated triangles on the figure highlight the following areas: 

  Red – Overall Indicators e.g. Proud to Work For. 

  Orange – Change Management satisfaction. 

  Indigo – Personal Resilience e.g. Freedom in Decisions 

  Grey – Equalities Satisfaction. 

  Light Blue – Informed Satisfaction. 

  Purple – Satisfaction in Senior Management. 

  Green – Satisfaction in Line Managers. 

  Yellow – Satisfaction in IPAD. 

3

59



The lines on the figure show; green = Resources result, blue = harrow Council average 
result and red = National Benchmark. In each subsequent section the colouring will remain 
the same except that the green plotted result will be for the individual department. 

4

60



2. BTP and Customer Services 
The following figure shows the staff survey result for BTP and Customer Services.  

The result for BTP and Customer Services shows a variable result when compared to that of 
the Harrow average, performing better in the areas of overall indicators, change 
management, equalities, informed, senior management and IPAD. However, staff were less 
satisfied in the areas of personal resilience and line management. 

Figure 2: BTP Staff Survey Result 2014 

Actions possible following the survey: 

  Investigate Managers abilities and use of 360 degree assessment to identify 
development opportunities for managers. 

  Complete a skills review and investigate how they can be used to benefit the 
department in the future. 

  Ensure change to ‘Appraisal’ in April 2015 is accompanied by development activity to 
state expectations of staff within the department and for its customers. 

  Conduct a Team Agility/Resilience survey to investigate potential workload issues. 

5

61



3. Commercial Contracts and 

Procurement
The following figure shows the staff survey result for Commercial Contracts and 
Procurement (CCP). The results for the area show large amounts of variation in the different 
areas and within the areas highlighted. This can be particularly seen in the area of change 
management where staff are satisfied that change makes them more effective but they do 
not feel that we are good at change, consult on change or support staff during change. Of 
particular concern are that we make good use of peoples skills and abilities, that 
expectations of them are clear, that equality challenges are dealt with and that managers 
use mistakes as learning opportunities. 

However, the department has excellent results in the areas of using IPADs, getting on with 
their managers and managers supporting staff and being informed about the department. 

Figure 3: CCP Staff Survey Result 2014 

Actions possible following the survey: 

  The need exists to interview staff to understand their viewpoint and focus on the 
areas of poor satisfaction similar to the work completed by Environment and 
Enterprise with Environmental Services staff. 

6

62



4. Finance and Assurance 
The following figure shows the staff survey result for Finance and Assurance. Most of the 
indicators lie above the Harrow average except in the areas of good use of skills and 
abilities; work is interesting and senior managers visible. However, it is a good overall result 
for the department. 

Figure 4: Finance and Assurance Staff Survey Result 2014 

Actions possible following the survey: 

  Review the skills and abilities in the department to see how they can be used. 

  Look at how work satisfaction can be improved by job rotation or project working in-
line with original Finance restructure planning from 2013. 

7

63



5. HRD and Shared Services 
The following figure shows the staff survey result for HRD and Shared Services. The results 
are largely above the Harrow average result, however, the department lags in the following 
indicators; positive about the future, change makes us more effective, good at change and 
senior managers (leadership, direction, views, open and visible). The department has good 
results in the areas of equalities, informed and line management. 

Figure 5: HRD and Shared Services Staff Survey Result 2014 

HRD and Shared Service is currently undergoing a major restructuring. This will result in a 
number of redundancies and a number of change job roles. This process has had an impact 
on being positive about the future and upon being good at change. What is required in the 
department are decisions about what the future will look like, preparing the staff for this and 
the preparation for a cultural change programme as part of the restructure process. 

Actions possible following the survey: 

  Review and develop the corporate ‘Protocol for Managing Change’ to improve it and 
check on ‘fit for purpose’. 

  Check behaviours of Senior Managers during the current department change and act 
to improve performance. 

8

64



6. Legal and Governance 
The following figure shows the staff survey result for Legal and Governance. All the results 
are above the Harrow average except for ‘resources to rely on’, ‘informed about Council’ and 
‘work-life balance’. In many cases the result exceeds that of the national benchmark 
organisations. 

Figure 6: Legal and Governance Staff Survey Result 2014 

Actions possible following the survey: 

  Review the resources usedunder a ‘tools for the job’ survey to ensure equipment and 
systems are ‘fit for purpose’ or require improvement. 

Of all the departments shown Legal and Democratic Services will require less activity to 
improve its current results. 

9

65



7. Strategic Commissioning 
The following figure shows the staff survey result for Strategic Commissioning. All the results 
versus the Harrow average are above or at the Harrow average and in the majority of 
indicators outperforming the national benchmark for all similar organisations. This said the 
department is not positive about its future. 

Figure 7: Strategic Commissioning Staff Survey Result 2014 

Actions possible following the survey: 

  Review the resources usedunder a ‘tools for the job’ survey to ensure equipment and 
systems are ‘fit for purpose’ or require improvement. 

Strategic Commissioning have also completed their own action plan following the staff 
survey and have identified the following improvement activities. 

10

66



7.1 Strategic Commission Action Plan 
Objective Description How Who

a. Management Team development – standing 
items

AD

b. Development of the Strategic 
Commissioning Operations Team (SCOT) to 
replace the Senior Professionals Group  

SCOT 

c. Modelling behaviours  All

d. Effective use of divisional meetings  AD

e. Ideas bank where staff can make 
suggestions to improve process or practice  

SCOT 

1. Responding 
to our internal 
challenges – 
building 
respect across 
the division 

The Investors in People exercise 
has enabled us to identify some 
of the challenges we will face 
over the coming years in 
building our new divisional 
identity and ensuring through 
clarity of purpose and the 
development of staff that we will 
ensure we are fit for purpose 
now and in the future.  f. Comments Box, Whiteboard ‘Q&A’, creation 

of ‘ideas room’ 
SCOT 

a. Need to be able to understand changing 
policy/priority context within which the 
council operates and which the division must 
interpret/address for the organisation  

SCOT 

b. Clarifying the role of Strategic 
Commissioning

AD/SCO
T

c. Understanding our current workload and 
customer needs through on-going 
monitoring of workloads to share with 
directorates and partners  

SCOT 

2. Being clear 
on our purpose 
–
understanding 
our customers’ 
needs 

The council is operating within 
an unprecedented period of 
financial constraint. Now more 
than ever we must be clear in 
our purpose to support the 
council to make the right 
decisions with regard to the 
services it commissions. In order 
to do this, we must be sure that 
we are fully aware of the 
changing context within which 
we operate to ensure the advice 
and support we provide is 
exemplary. 

d. Need to understand the policy support 
required by Directorates  

Policy 
Team 

a. Consolidate the service planning process  AD/SCO
T

3. Ensuring we 
maximise our 
effectiveness –
energising and 
improving 

In this time of austerity, we must 
ensure that we target our own 
resources in the most effective 
way and that we utilise all 
intelligence available to us to 
ensure we maximise our impact 
from these limited resources. 
We must be clear on how we will 
prioritise our activities and how 
we will organise our resources.   

b. Collective engagement in service planning 
process - to include what we see as 
‘successful‘ delivery of ‘outcomes’  

AD/SCO
T

a. Develop a clear analysis of skills we need 
and skills we have in the context of the 
borough’s ambition and our contribution to it 
(service plan) and our existing skills base  

Mgt
Team 

b. Develop a learning culture in Strategic 
Commissioning

Mgt
Team 

c. Determine effective use of training budget  Mgt
Team 

d. Develop a flexible approach to the delivery 
of training outside of the budget, e.g. job 
share, mentoring, acting up, YouTube,
‘Course-Advisor’

SCOT 

4. Ensuring our 
staff have the 
skills and tools 
to do the job – 
enabling staff 
to take 
responsibility 
and respecting 
staff

Our staff resource is our most 
precious commodity and without 
talented staff we cannot deliver 
the priorities agreed by the 
organisation in a way which 
meets the organisation’s needs. 
Our lack of resources however, 
also means that the funding 
available to support our staff is 
significantly reduced and we 
must therefore find alternative 
ways of enhancing our skills 
base and providing staff with the 
skills to do the job. 

e. Ensure the correct technical tool are 
available to do the job (within our control)  

Mgt
Team 

a. Develop ways of enhancing communications 
across the division and instilling a sense of 
identity for the Strategic Commissioning 
Division  

AD/Mgt
Team 

b. Create a focus Group to understand issues 
from staff survey around equalities (to be 
independently facilitated) 

AD

c. ‘Mix it up’ – following IT roll out, start to sit in 
different places 

SCOT 

5. Actively one 
team and a part 
of one council 
– engaged 
communication 
– internal and 
external 

Although we are three separate 
units, to truly deliver the 
excellent services the council 
requires, we must ensure we 
apply our skills to the same 
purpose and operate as a single 
entity to maximise the value we 
can bring. We are actively one 
division operating within the 
council as an active part of and 
contributor to the council’s 
direction of travel. 

d. Social events – do more to improve 
networking and relationships across the 

SCOT 

11

67



12

Objective Description How Who

division 

8. Next Steps 
The main themes coming out from the Staff Survey, Staff Engagement /Service Plan launch 
and from the IIP feedback are as follows: 

 Communication (too much, the methodology, can we incorporate for Resources a 
staff suggestion scheme / and feedback mechanism and how to celebrate what is 
good). April to June 2015. 

 Health and Wellbeing (may address the points raised around increased workloads 
during times of recruitment freezes / reduced workforce which may lead to stress, 
slight increase in sickness) Interested in rolling out programme that currently exist in 
Legal and Democratic Services. April 2015 to March 2016 

 Staff Charter (Build on the model in Strategic Commissioning which was specifically 
mentioned as an example of good practice in IIP feedback) Staff should be engaged 
in drafting this charter which may differ in divisions but there should be a shared 
ideal across resources in terms of behaviours. This would align with desired 
changes to management style using coaching based approaches. Post Restructures 
in April 2015 

 Skills Audit (From IIP and was suggested as a way of discovering what skills 
outside of the current role people may have.) Complete post Learning Management 
System implementation in April 2015 possible link with work being completed in 
Housing Department in April 2015. 

 Appraisal Support the rollout of the new Appraisal process between January to 
March 2015 to ensure correct use during the annual review period Aril to May 2015. 

Work is also being carried out looking at: 

  Spans of Control - some managers may be undertaking too many IPAD’s. 

  Mobile and Flexible Working - working at home and associated IT/intranet issues. 

  360 Appraisals. 

  Succession Planning. 

  Reviewing the ‘Protocol for Managing Change’ during the review of all policies and 
procedures as part of the HRD and Shared Services restructure. 

Consideration by the Workforce Development Group in Resources should also be given to: 

  Tools for the Job review prior to the new IT contract being implemented. 

  Potential use of Team Agility/Resilience surveys to understand robustness of current 
Resources teams. 

The results of these initiatives and suggestions may feed into the action plans at a later date. 

68



Children and Families 
Staff Survey Response 
October 2014 - Draft

69



Contents
1. Introduction 3 

2. Early Intervention Services 5 

3. Targeted Services 6 

4. Special Needs Services 7 

5. Education and Commissioning 8 

6. Staff Engagement Event Feedback on Staff Survey 9 

7. Next Steps 11 

70



1. Introduction 
The following document outlines the Children and Families response to the Council Staff 
Survey 2014. It highlights areas of concern and lists potential actions and initiatives to bring 
the Directorate to the satisfaction levels achieved by others. 

The actions listed are tailored for each Department in the Directorate (based on their staff 
survey results) and will be considered to be part of the workforce development plan for 
2014-15 and subsequently 2015-16. 

The overall result for those indicators that have a national benchmark is shown in the figure 
below.

Figure 1: Children and Families Overall Staff Survey Result 2014 

The associated triangles on the figure highlight the following areas: 

  Red – Overall Indicators e.g. Proud to Work For. 

  Orange – Change Management satisfaction. 

  Indigo – Personal Resilience e.g. Freedom in Decisions 

  Grey – Equalities Satisfaction. 

  Light Blue – Informed Satisfaction. 

  Purple – Satisfaction in Senior Management. 

  Green – Satisfaction in Line Managers. 

  Yellow – Satisfaction in IPAD. 

3

71



The lines on the figure show; green = Children and Families result, blue = harrow Council 
average result and red = National Benchmark. In each subsequent section the colouring will 
remain the same except that the green plotted result will be for the individual department. 

4

72



2. Early Intervention Services 
The following figure shows the staff survey result for Early Intervention Services (EIS). This 
is one of two departments that had a had a range of indicators lower than the Harrow 
average result. Employees are less satisfied with the areas of Change Management, 
Equalities, Senior Management and Informed. These areas have fed into the lower 
satisfaction results in the overall (red) indicators. 

Figure 2: Early Intervention Services Staff Survey Result 2014 

Actions possible following the survey: 

  Senior Managers to be more visible by working out at remote locations from Civic 1 
or completing visits on a weekly basis to brief and talk with staff on a face-to-face. 

  Senior Managers to support/open Staff Engagement Event. 

  To review C&F communications to segment and tailor messages and content to 
specific staff audiences (e.g. develop use of Mail Chimp). 

  Train managers in change management principles and the Protocol for Managing 
change.

  Ensure all restructures follow Protocol for Managing Change using dedicated Project 
Managers.

  Review staff resource requirements (‘tools for the job’ survey) and act on results. 

  Further understanding is required into the Equalities satisfaction scores to 
understand the challenges shown by the scores. 

5

73



It appears that EIS communications are not considered effective and senior management 
visibility and the actions to be taken should focus on this. 

3. Targeted Services 
The following figure shows the staff survey result for Targeted Services (TS). The results for 
TS are encouraging in that they are largely in line with the Harrow average result. However, 
work and interventions are required in the areas of Change Management, Equalities, 
Informed and outside these areas providing Resources that can be Relied Upon (circled in 
red).

Figure 3: Targeted Services Staff Survey Result 2014 

Actions possible following the survey: 

  Review staff resource requirements (‘tools for the job’ survey) and act on results. 
Potentially include ‘benchmarking’ with other Children and Families departments to 
see what resources they use and how they are managed. 

  To review C&F communications to segment and tailor messages and content to 
specific staff audiences (e.g. develop use of Mail Chimp). 

  Train managers in change management principles and the Protocol for Managing 
change.

  Further understanding is required into the Equalities satisfaction scores to 
understand the challenges shown by the scores. 

  Regular social work surveys / seminars delivered by Principal Social Worker. 

6

74



The overall results for Targeted Services are at the Harrow average so actions need to   
focus on the areas of lower satisfaction. 

4. Special Needs Services 
The following figure shows the staff survey result for Special Needs Services (SNS). As per 
TS the results for SNS are largely in line with the Harrow average. Its areas of lower 
satisfaction are: Change Management, Equalities, Informed and Manager-Supervision 
(circled in red) which is stands out compared to the rest of the area’s staff feedback in this 
segment.

Figure 4: Special Needs Services Staff Survey Result 2014 

Actions possible following the survey: 

  Investigate the challenge shown by satisfaction with Manager Supervision. 

  Further understanding is required into the Equalities satisfaction scores to 
understand the challenges shown by the scores. 

Given the results Special Needs Services requires less intervention than the other 
departments within Children and Families. 

7

75



5. Education and Commissioning 
The following figure shows the staff survey result for Education and Commissioning (ES). All 
the results versus the Harrow average are significantly lower including Change 
Management, Personal Reliance, Equalities, Senior Management, Informed, Senior 
Managers, Managers and Resources to Rely On. 

Figure 5: Education and Commissioning Staff Survey Result 2014 

Actions possible following the survey: 

  The Education and Commissioning department shows the worse results of the 
Directorate. All but three of the benchmarked indicators are below the Harrow 
Average and the National Benchmarks. 

  The Education and Commissioning Department should consider setting up a focus 
group programme to discuss issues directly with staff to identify why the satisfaction 
scores are dramatically different and what needs to be done to improve them 

  A focus group with senior managers must happen as the satisfaction scores 
demonstrated staff reporting some concern regarding the visibility and access to 
senior managers at the time of the consultation. 

  Review staff resource requirements (‘tools for the job’ survey) and act on results. 
Potentially include ‘benchmarking’ with other Children and Families departments to 
see what resources they use and how they are managed. 

8

76



Of all the departments Education and Commissioning requires immediate attention of the 
Senior Leadership Team. 

6. Staff Engagement Event Feedback on 

Staff Survey 
The following is the views put forward by Children and Families staff at the engagement 
event on October 6th 2014. 

  What can be done to be better at Change? 
o Consistent information about change. 
o Consistent messages and information. 
o Consult, decide, plan, implement, review – constant communication. 
o Different channels of communications, it all needs to be streamlined. 
o A ‘solution focused’ approach. 
o We can hire nearly 2 business support staff for 1 social worker post. If we use 

business support to complete sound social worker tasks, we can more effectively 
manage cases. 

o Informal staff events – bringing people together. 
o More effective inductions – include shadowing and observing. 

  What can be done for us to be more Self Reliant? 
o A well-being programme 
o Tools to deliver the work: ICT (equipment) and streamlined system that is 

efficient (e.g. framework improvements) 
o Make me feel valued 
o Buddy system 
o Create a bite-size questionnaire to be included in annual appraisals in regards to 

self-resilience.

  What can be done to be better at Equalities? 
o Involve all parties – staff, service users, partner agencies to develop training and 

events
o Ensure that information is accessible to our client group, e.g. translations readily 

available
o Focus groups 
o Not think of ‘tolerance’ – think ‘acceptance’ 
o Recruit – workforce that matches Harrow population. Train – ‘grow your own’. 

  What can be done to be better at Informing staff? 
o Tailored emails to job specifications, not spray and pray 
o Consistent information and well developed pathways for communications. Senior 

managers to be visible
o Consistent messages and information at all times. 
o Senior managers attending team meetings 
o Don’t just speak about open and transparent ways of communication – do it! 
o Focus groups 

  What can be done to have better Senior Management? 
o Improve stability of senior management group – R&R 
o Senior management stability. End constant restructuring 
o Enable and empower your staff 
o Permanency of senior position 

9

77



o Consistent procedures – management informed of these and filtered down 

  What can be done to have better Management? 
o Develop staff, provide opportunities, ‘grow your own’ 
o Stable management structure 
o Permanent staff 
o Less management and more resource at lower levels 
o Free managers to manage. Reduce corporate initiatives interfering with delivery 

of services. 

  What can be done to be better at IPAD/Appraisal? 
o Look at the planning so both are prepared for the meeting 
o Bespoke time outside of casework supervision. Training programme (not on 

appraisal, but skill development to deliver services) 
o Link in with supervision and staff development 
o Focus skills, strengths and solutions – how to get ‘there’ 

The responses need to be reviewed, prioritised and actions created. 

10

78



11

7. Next Steps 
The following actions are now required to be agreed and developed by the Senior 
Management Team: 

  Agree and prioritise possible actions from Staff Survey 

  Agree and prioritise responses to Staff suggestions at Staff engagement event. 

  Produce a project plan to implement actions including a timescale by when actions 
and interventions will be completed. Allocate project responsibly and ownership. 

  Build actions into Workforce planning. 

  Report plan to Corporate Operations Board. 

79



80

This page is intentionally left blank



CHW
Staff Survey Response 
November 2014 

81



Contents
1. Introduction 3 

2. Adult Services 5 

3. Community and Culture 6 

4. Housing 7 

5. Public Health 8 

6. Business Support Services 9 

7. Next Steps 11 

82



1. Introduction 
The following document outlines Community Health and Wellbeing response to the Council 
Staff Survey 2014. It highlights areas of concern and lists actions and initiatives to continue 
the work inthe Directorate that has produced good levels of satisfaction. 

The actions listed are tailored for each Department in the Directorate (based on their staff 
survey results) and will be considered to be part of the workforce development plan for 
2014-15 and subsequently 2015-16. 

The overall result for those indicators that have a national benchmark is shown in the figure 
below.

Figure 1: Community Health and Wellbeing Overall Staff Survey Result 2014 

The associated triangles on the figure highlight the following areas: 

  Red – Overall Indicators e.g. Proud to Work For. 

  Orange – Change Management satisfaction. 

  Indigo – Personal Resilience e.g. Freedom in Decisions 

  Grey – Equalities Satisfaction. 

  Light Blue – Informed Satisfaction. 

  Purple – Satisfaction in Senior Management. 

  Green – Satisfaction in Line Managers. 

  Yellow – Satisfaction in IPAD. 

3

83



The lines on the figure show; green = Community Health and Wellbeing result, blue = harrow 
Council average result and red = National Benchmark. In each subsequent section the 
colouring will remain the same except that the green plotted result will be for the individual 
department.

The overall result for the Directorate is excellent and is above the Harrow average in all 
indicators. However, there are variations in each of the Departments and these are 
discussed separately in the sections that follow. For each Department actions are listed and 
in the summary a timetable of combined actions given. 

4

84



2. Adult Services 
The following figure shows the staff survey result for Adult Services. The result for Adult 
Services exceeds that of the Harrow average and in many areas is comparable with the 
national benchmark. 

Figure 2: Adult Services Staff Survey Result 2014 

Actions following the survey: 

  Review of how staff are kept informed about the Directorate and its Departments. 
This will be completed in-line with the Corporate Communications review. 

  To ensure staff are briefed about the new Appraisal process between January and 
March 2015 to ensure a smooth transition from IPAD in April 2015 – January to 
March 2015. 

  To investigate how effective change can be demonstrated and improve how staff are 
supported through change – July to September 2015.  

5

85



3. Community and Culture 
The following figure shows the staff survey result for Community and Culture (C&C). The 
results for the department show a mixture of staff satisfaction. Against some indicators the 
result is above the Harrow average and national benchmark and in others below the Harrow 
average. This gives particular areas of concern against which actions are required. 

Figure 3: Community and Culture Staff Survey Result 2014 

Actions possible following the survey: 

  A review of how change is handled by senior management to ensure that projects 
follow the Councils ‘protocol for Managing Change’. Noting that the Department is 
subject to major savings targets in 2015-16 that will result in dramatic changes in the 
way services are delivered – April 2015. 

  Review equalities data and engage with the ‘Making a Difference’ group to 
understand the equalities satisfaction gap – January to Feb 2015. 

  A review of how staff are kept informed about the Directorate and its Departments. 
This will need to be completed in-line with the Corporate Communications review. 

  Discuss with senior managers the satisfaction gap with their performance to 
understand if this is reflection of the savings regime and develop improvement plans 
with each manger to be implemented in 2015-16 dependent on Service vision and 
transformation – April 2015 through the Appraisal process. 

6

86



4. Housing 
The following figure shows the staff survey result for Housingare excellent and reflect the 
work that has taken place since 2009 and the establishment of the Housing Ambition 
planning cycle. Nearly all indicators are above the Harrow average and in some cases at or 
above the national benchmark. 

Figure 4: Housing Staff Survey Result 2014 

Actions possible following the survey: 

  Review management development and the skills of mangers in relationshipbuilding 
with staff – July to September 2015. 

  The 2014 results show a marked variation from previous Housing surveys that 
focused on satisfaction. It is intended that Housing complete an interim survey in 
April 2015 that focuses on what staff think about Housing alone – April 2015.   

Given the results Housing requires less intervention than the other departments within 
Community Health and Wellbeing. 

It is anticipated that Housings people ambition plan for 2015-16 will also improve results 
compared to the national benchmark with its work into: Appraisal improvement, 360 Degree 

7

87



Skills Mapping and Self-Assessment, Talent Management and Wellbeing programme. These 
activities will form part of the 2015-16 People Ambition Plan. 

5. Public Health 
The following figure shows the staff survey result for Public Health (PH). Nearly all the 
results are above the Harrow average and in many cases at or above the national 
benchmark.

Figure 5: Public Health Staff Survey Result 2014 

Actions possible following the survey: 

  Develop a strategic workforce narrative with regard to development and workforce 
planning to impact on strategic direction – January 2015. 

  Support the rollout of the new appraisal process with development focused on 
objective setting and outcome based work targets January to March 2015. 

  Review how Public Health staff are kept informed about the Council. This to be 
completed in-line with the Corporate Communications review – January to March 
2015.

8

88



6. Business Support Services 
The following figure shows the staff survey result for Business Support Services (BSS). All 
the results versus the Harrow average are significantly lower. A number of indicators show a 
significant difference when compared to the Harrow average in particular: good practice is 
shared; confidence in action following survey, sense of achievement, selection for learning 
and development is fair, job level – equality, senior management quality (all indicators) and 
manager’s deal with performance. 

Figure 6: Business Support Services Staff Survey Result 2014 

Actions following the survey: 

  To set up a ‘town hall’ meeting with all staff to gain feedback and insight into the 
results – January 2015. 

  Develop from the ‘town hall’ meeting responses and projects to deal with staff 
challenges – February to March 2015. 

  Develop a strategic narrative ‘Ambition’ for the department and its purpose within the 
Council – January to March 2015. 

  Review managers’ skills using a 180 degree assessment and from this develop a 
programme to improve abilities and approach of Senior Managers – April 2015 
alongside Appraisals. 

9

89



  Support the rollout of the new appraisal process with development focused on the 
process using the learning from the recent 121 process trial in the Directorate – 
March 2015. 

  Develop an application process for learning and development to be trialled alongside 
the new appraisal process enabling the collation of a workforce development plan – 
April 2015 (Potential to combine with the rollout of the corporate Learning 
management System (Totara)). 

  The base the workforce development plan on the process being embedded in 
Housing that focuses on ‘quarters’ of activity and reinforcement – April to May 2015. 

10

90



7. Next Steps 
The actions given here will be shared with and the responsibility of the CHW Workforce 
Development Group. 

  All: Review of how staff are kept informed about the Directorate and its Departments. 
This will be completed in-line with the Corporate Communications review. 

  Adults: To ensure staff are briefed about the new Appraisal process between 
January and March 2015 to ensure a smooth transition from IPAD in April 2015 – 
January to March 2015. 

  Adults: To investigate how effective change can be demonstrated and improve how 
staff are supported through change – July to September 2015.  

  Adults: A review of how change is handled by senior management to ensure that 
projects follow the Councils ‘protocol for Managing Change’. Noting that the 
Department is subject to major savings targets in 2015-16 that will result in dramatic 
changes in the way services are delivered – April 2015. 

  Community: Review equalities data and engage with the ‘Making a Difference’ group 
to understand the equalities satisfaction gap – January to Feb 2015. 

  Community: Discuss with senior managers the satisfaction gap with their 
performance to understand if this is reflection of the savings regime and develop 
improvement plans with each manger to be implemented in 2015-16 dependent on 
Service vision and transformation – April 2015 through the Appraisal process. 

  Housing: Review management development and the skills of mangers in relationship 
building with staff – July to September 2015. 

  Housing: The 2014 results show a marked variation from previous Housing surveys 
that focused on satisfaction. It is intended that Housing complete an interim survey 
in April 2015 that focuses on what staff think about Housing alone – April 2015.   

  Public Health: Develop a strategic workforce narrative with regard to development 
and workforce planning to impact on strategic direction – January 2015. 

  Public Health: Support the rollout of the new appraisal process with development 
focused on objective setting and outcome based work targets January to March 
2015.

  BSS: To set up a ‘town hall’ meeting with all staff to gain feedback and insight into 
the results – January 2015. 

  BSS: Develop from the ‘town hall’ meeting responses and projects to deal with staff 
challenges – February to March 2015. 

  BSS: Develop a strategic narrative ‘Ambition’ for the department and its purpose 
within the Council – January to March 2015. 

  BSS: Review managers’ skills using a 180 degree assessment and from this develop 
a programme to improve abilities and approach of Senior Managers – April 2015 
alongside Appraisals. 

  BSS: Support the rollout of the new appraisal process with development focused on 
the process using the learning from the recent 121 process trial in the Directorate – 
March 2015. 

  BSS: Develop an application process for learning and development to be trialled 
alongside the new appraisal process enabling the collation of a workforce 
development plan – April 2015 (Potential to combine with the rollout of the corporate 
Learning management System (Totara)). 

  BSS: Base the workforce development plan on the process being embedded in 
Housing that focuses on ‘quarters’ of activity and reinforcement – April to May 2015. 

11

91



12

It will also be the responsibility of the group to share ‘people’ best practice to enable 
departments to learn from each other and the actions given above. 

92



Environment and Enterprise 

 

 

 

Environmental 
Service Delivery 

 

Staff Survey Follow-
Up Report & 

Recommendations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date:  1 December 2014 
Version: 1.1 

93



2 
Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

Table of Contents 
 
 
 
 

INTRODUCTION.........................................................................................................................................................................3 

1.1 Introduction .........................................................................................................................................................................................3 

1.2 Need...........................................................................................................................................................................................................3 

1.3 Harrow’s vision ..................................................................................................................................................................................5 

1.4 Acknowledgements ..........................................................................................................................................................................5 

1.5 Report Structure................................................................................................................................................................................5 

2. THE INTERVIEW SURVEY PROCESS...........................................................................................................................6 

2.1 Methodology.........................................................................................................................................................................................6 

2.2 Development of Survey Content and Questions..............................................................................................................6 

2.3 The Survey Process...........................................................................................................................................................................7 

3. SURVEY RESULTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS........................................................................................................8 

3.1 Survey Responses ..............................................................................................................................................................................8 

3.2 Survey Results .....................................................................................................................................................................................8 

4. DELIVERY OF THE RECOMMENDATIONS ............................................................................................................. 21 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Environment and Enterprise 
Harrow Council 

Civic Centre 
Station Road 

Harrow 
HA1 2XA 

 

Tel: 020 8863 5611 

 

Version Control 

Date Version Name Comments 

23/11/2014 0.1 K. Ratnasingam Draft 

28/11/2014 1.0 H. Islam Revised 

01/12/2014 1.1 H. Islam Revised 

    

    

94



3 
Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1 Introduction 

The June 2014 Harrow Council Employee Survey forms part of the continuous programme 
of engagement and feedback with staff at Harrow Council. The survey which was 
responded to by 47% of staff across the Council but by only 21% of Environmental Service 
Delivery colleagues was held against a challenging backdrop including: a multi-phased 
implementation of terms and conditions changes including a 1% pay reduction in 2013/14; 
pension changes in 2014 which have increased contribution rates; IT challenges affecting 
getting the job done; further expectations of changes in the Council on the basis of further 
savings that are needed; and an uncertain period with various changes in both the 
administration and management including public allegations of institutional racism in the 
Council. 

The responses that were provided by Environment & Enterprise (E&E) Directorate staff for 
the Staff Survey was at the period when restructuring of the Directorate was recently 
completed with a new organisational, management and operating structure in place, 
although with significant vacancies at Team Leader / operational level in some teams and 
undelivered new IT hardware and software.   

 

1.2 Need 

The 2014 Staff Survey for Harrow Council identified that reported staff engagement levels 
has been continuously on the decline and have now fallen to 2008 levels as shown in Fig 
1.1. 

 

Figure 1.1   Harrow Council Overall Organisation Engagement Levels 

 

The 2014 E&E Directorate engagement score indicated that it was below the Council 
average as shown in Figure 1.2. 

95



4 
Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

Figure 1.2   Overall Engagement Scores by Directorate 

 

Figure 1.3 shows the breakdown of survey results for E&E and identifies themes where 
E&E score fell significantly below the Council average. It should be noted that there was no 
survey theme where E&E scored above the Council average. 

 

Figure 1.3   2014 Staff Survey Results for E&E Directorate 

 

Within E&E, the survey results show that despite the low response rate, the Environment 
Service Delivery (ESD) staff provided a higher than average level of dissatisfaction 
response to most themes. The Spider-web chart plotting the ESD score against the 
National Benchmark and Harrow Total scores is attached in Appendix A. The Directorate 
was concerned with this outcome and, as a matter of priority, needed to better understand 
the reasons for such poor responses and lack of feedback to identify opportunities for 
improvement. 

96



5 
Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

Unhappy and discontented staff could lead to lowering staff retention rates, increased 
absenteeism, risks to productivity, customer relations, and organisational effectiveness. 
However, when staff survey results are acted on by Management, it can help reinforce to 
employees that their input is valued by the organisation which in turn can help improve 
morale and loyalty. It is for this reason that ESD has commissioned the follow-up survey of 
ESD staff to verify and to seek clarification on responses provided in the Staff Survey.  

 

1.3 Harrow’s vision 
 
It is essential that every part of Harrow’s community including employees of Harrow Council 
deliver the services and feel their views and opinions are being heard in deciding local 
priorities and that they are empowered to take action and help with service delivery where 
appropriate. The Council recognises the importance of getting these people involved in the 
decision making process which affects their every day lives. This ethos fits with the 
Council’s vision “Working together to make a difference for Harrow” and the four 
Council priorities. 
 
The E&E Service Plan 2014-15 recognises that “developing our workforce is critical in 
securing the delivery of better and more efficient customer focussed public services. Our 
principles are: 

• To recruit and retain high calibre staff; 

• To provide relevant and high quality learning and development opportunities; 

• To encourage staff to take responsibility for their development: and 

• To plan effectively for future developments.” 
 

1.4 Acknowledgements 

The follow-up survey interviews programme was managed by the E&E Policy & 
Performance Team and interview surveys were undertaken by volunteer staff from the E&E 
Directorate. The team members were Kevin Ratnasingam, Hanif Islam, Fuad Omar, 
Tanzina Ferdous, Jon Wilson, Sajni Durve, Bali Rai, David Sklair, Johann Alles, Laura 
McIntosh, Sonia Parmar, and Victoria Isaacs. The interviews would not have been possible 
without the support and encouragement to staff to participate in the surveys by the ESD 
Service Managers; Andy Appleby, Alex Hauck, Mick Wynne, Alan Whiting and Richard Le 
Brun as well as their Team Leaders. Special thanks to the Waste Team and Harrow Pride 
for arranging transport for the on-site interviews. 
 

1.5 Report Structure 

 
Chapter 2 discusses the follow-up survey methodology. Chapter 3 discusses the survey 
results and recommendations. The programme for delivery of the recommendations is set 
out in Chapter 4. 

97



6 
Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

2. THE INTERVIEW SURVEY PROCESS 

 

2.1 Methodology  

 
The follow-up survey methodology is shown in the flowchart below. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2.2 Development of Survey Content and Questions 

 
The survey questions covered all categories from the main Staff Survey addressing the 
following themes: 
 

• Two way communications 
• Fulfilling work 
• Development opportunities 
• Fairness & equality 
• Feeling well informed 
• Wellbeing 

 
 
 
ANALYSIS 

& REPORTING 

 
 
 

FIELDWORK 

 

PLANNING 

Agree text/ documentation 
for follow-up survey 

Face to face surveys at agreed 
location 

Agree method and convey information to service 
managers 

Service managers to inform all 
staff 

Staff info and sampling 
process 

Schedule face-to-face survey 

Option to provide additional information 
over the phone 

Face to face surveys at Policy 
desk at Depot 

Compilation and analysis of feedback 

Training of interviewers 

Appoint Project Team 

Draft Report 

Submission of Report to E&E Director 

Consultation with Service 
Managers 

98



7 
Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

• Senior managers 
• Line management 
• Resources 
• Communications 
• Appraisals / IPAD 

 
The survey questions were open ended to enable respondees to speak their mind and 
to provide honest feedback. Each interviewee was asked to provide feedback on 
selected themes within the 10-15 minutes allowed for each interview. The interviews 
were structured such that responses were collected on all themes. 
 
A copy of the interview questionnaire is attached in Appendix B.  

 

2.3 The Survey Process 

 

Selection and Training of Interviewers 
 
A range of staff volunteered to conduct the interview surveys. Interviewers were 
trained for consistency in interviewing and to solicit the right level of responses. 
 
Target Audience 
 
The interviewing team approached as many staff as possible from all the ESD 
Services to secure feedback. 
 
Face-to-Face Interview Surveys 
 
The face to face surveys were undertaken during work hours at locations which is 
convenient for staff to minimise disruption to their work programme. The interviews 
took place at the following locations: 
 
• depot based staff – at the depot 
• on-site based staff - at the on-site place of work e.g. park maintenance staff 
• drivers – at the start or end of their shift at the depot 
• waste services – on the refuse collection vehicles and at the Civic Amenity Site 
 
Where possible, interviews were undertaken in staff groups of no more than 3. 
Interviewers would ensure that a balanced level of responses is solicited from each 
person interviewed. 
 
All feedback that was collected was not attributed to, nor recorded as being provided 
by the person being interviewed. The only identification made on the interview 
response form was on the job category of the staff interviewed and this is strictly for 
statistical reporting purposes only. 
 
Survey Programme 
 
The interview surveys were carried out over a 4 week period commencing 6/10/14. 

99



8 
Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

3. SURVEY RESULTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

3.1 Survey Responses 

 

A total of 77 interview survey sessions were undertaken securing responses from 153 staff 
from the ESD. This represents 47% of the total 330 staff in the ESD database and has 
achieved a considerably better proportion of total staff responses in ESD compared to the 
2014 Harrow Council Corporate Staff Survey when only 69 (21%) of staff responded. The 
Service Managers were excluded from the survey which had an average of 2 staff 
interviewed per interview session. 

The breakdown of staff that were interviewed from each ESD Service is summarised in 
Table 3.1. 

 

Table 3.1   Staff Interview Breakdown by ESD Service(1) 
 

Service Waste 
Harrow 
Pride 

Parking 
EH, TS 
& PP (1) 

Total 

No of staff 
interviewed 

50 51 24 28 153 

No of staff 114 121 39 56 330 

% Staff 
Interviewed 

44% 42% 62% 50% 47% 

Note: (1) Environmental Health, Technical Services and Public Protection 

 

3.2 Survey Results 

Whilst there was some variation between the responses from staff from the different 
Services, there were more common high level responses. For this reason, for reporting 
purposes, the open-ended survey responses were grouped under the following high level 
topics: 

1. Staff Recognition and Appreciation 

2. Communication and Engagement 

3. IPAD’s and Personal Development 

4. Personal Well-being & Workload 

5. Line Management 

6. Senior Management (ESD Director/ Service Manager) 

7. Equipment and Facilities 

 

The main feedback is identified for each topic and arranged in descending order together 
with the recommendations for improvement. 

100



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

 

1.0   STAFF RECOGNITION AND APPRECIATION 

Responses Clarification on responses obtained 

67 commented that Council consultations are a tick box 
exercise and that their views not listened to 

59 commented that their opinions are not valued 

26 commented that they were concerned that negative 
feedback will lead to consequences to that staff member 

The Directorate has to demonstrate that all staff feedback is 
important and is taken into consideration in decision making. 

The Directorate has to demonstrate to staff that feedback 
provided is confidential and they are able to respond without 
fear or favour. 

Staff need to be convinced that that their views matter and 
that they have a role in influencing Council decisions. 

Recommendations for consideration 

1. Decisions made by the Council should be clearly explained to staff and that staff should be able to seek clarification on 
decisions made by the Council. Although consultation responses are prepared, it seems that the format used is not 
lending itself to be accessible to all Depot based staff. Consideration should be given to providing responses in an 
appropriately summarised way and making sure that all staff including those without access to email have access to the 
responses. This applies to Corporate and Service communications 

2. EE Staff Engagement Event to be held every 3 months at depot and Civic to enable staff to seek face to face feedback 
on Council decisions. 

 

101



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

10 

 

2.0   COMMUNICATION AND ENGAGEMENT  

Responses Clarification on responses obtained 

56 commented that they were only informed of changes and 
decisions in the Council after it has happened 

43 expressed their view that staff who are based at the 
depot are out of touch with events/ actions that are taking 
place compared to staff who are based at the Civic. 

52 staff commented that they feel that they are not getting 
information that is usually made available to Council staff in 
the Civic.  

31 commented that they are well informed through email, 
through the notice boards and leaflets that are distributed to 
staff. 

Notice board messages needs to be updated regularly with 
the most recent information posted made obvious to staff. 

Staff who are site-based have less opportunity to get notices 
either on print or electronically as they spend very limited time 
at the depot. 

Site based staff have no computer access and rely on their 
Line Manager for notices and information 102



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

11 

 

Recommendations for consideration 

1. The Directorate is to make better use of all communication channels to keep staff updated. This includes regular updating 
of the notice board by a dedicated member of staff, distributing leaflets to staff for any key messages and making better 
use of hand-held devices e.g. Bartec, mobile phones, PDAs to provide headlines on a weekly basis so that site staff can 
be informed by their line managers. The directorate is to work with Corporate Communications to ensure that all 
communications/ messages are conveyed in a timely manner to all ESD staff based at the depot. Simply stating: Please 
print for staff without email access is not satisfactory. The responsibility should be to check and ensure the messages are 
getting to staff. If necessary, simplified summary messages should be created for on site staff with details of where to go 
for further information. 

2. All staff should be provided with computer access which is available for use during depot operation times. This can be 
through shared computers that are based at the Canteen or a secured alternative location. This can be used by staff to 
check for information and for information updates. Basic training to use the Hub will be required for some. Corp IT have 
confirmed that internet access can be made available but with no access to the Hub. Technical Services will maintain a 
folder of newsletters, policies, procedures etc. which can be accessed online by staff.  

 

103



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

12 

 

3.0   APPRAISAL & PERSONAL DEVELOPMENT 

Responses Clarification on responses obtained 

15 commented that they have had no IPAD done and 31 of 
having poor IPAD experience. 

43 commented that the training opportunities are limited or 
that they are advised that there is lack of funding for 
training.  

23 commented that they have benefitted from some form of 
training provided by the Directorate.  

34 do not know what training is available or  where to look 
for training opportunities offered by the Directorate 

11 commented that they felt that skills acquired since 
undergoing training is not recognised in their remuneration 

10 commented that Harrow Council has provided them with 
the opportunity to have career progression 

8 commented that they had no follow-up performance 
review or reassessment after under-going training 

The Directorate needs to do more to enable staff to fully 
benefit from their IPADs. Poor Appraisals are demoralising for 
staff and reflect poorly on the Directorate’s commitment on 
staff well-being and development. 

Training and development is to be prioritised by the 
Directorate as part of the work programme and 
clarity/transparency provided on the programme. 

Most ESD staff based at the depot do not have access to a 
computer to keep themselves updated with external and 
internal training programmes that are available. 

104



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

13 

 

Recommendations for consideration 

1. The Directorate should introduce Appraisal month in May and October each year where all staff and managers are 
expected to prioritise IPAD action. This will help raise awareness of the importance of Appraisals as part of the 
Directorate’s staff development and well-being culture. This will be accompanied by a high profile, awareness 
campaign. 

2. Appraisal training needs to be rebranded as a core component of work and responsibility for all staff with supervision 
responsibility in the Directorate, particularly in ESD. A Directorate-wide programme should be rolled-out to actively 
inform staff on the Appraisal process and what they should expect from it. 

3. The Directorate should appoint an Appraisal Champion who has overall responsibility to monitor that the Appraisals are 
correctly delivered and to undertake random monitoring of effectiveness. 

4. All staff who have Appraisal responsibility should undergo tailored specific training to effectively deliver Appraisals. This 
training should include recognising and rewarding staff and customizing the process depending on the target group. 

5. A review of responsibility to deliver the APPRAISALs and APPRAISAL structure/template is to be undertaken for each 
member of staff and Appraisals needs to be customised to appropriately meet the needs of staff at different levels of 
responsibility and by the type of work they do.  

6. The Directorate should have a training register available which should be accessible to all staff. Staff should be 
provided the opportunity to put forward recommendations for training and development for consideration by the 
Directorate. Staff should be informed on the process of applying for training and this form an integral part of the 
APPRAISAL. This should be updated and repeated at least every April and June after Appraisals.  

7. Managers should be given the option of flexibility to determine how to best deliver the Appraisals depending on 
circumstance. Only suitably trained and competent staff would be given responsibility for APPRAISALs. 

 

105



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8. The Policy and Performance Team will take responsibility in monitoring, collating and chasing up Appraisals. 

 

106



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

15 

 

4.0   PERSONAL WELL BEING AND WORKLOAD 

Responses Clarification on responses obtained 

No staff raised any issue relating to fairness & equality at the 
Council. 

78 commented that either they were overworked or that their 
team was short-staffed resulting in them being asked to do 
more work that they would normally do. 

40 commented that they were unhappy that they work on 
weekends at same pay 

35 commented that they feel that staff who are based at the 
Civic Centre have a poor perception of those based at the 
depot. This has in some instances affected the working 
relationship with Civic Central based staff.  

32 commented that the Council supports their well-being 

21 commented that they have a good working relationship 
and/or support from colleagues 

12 commented that their work achievements are not 
recognised by their managers 

The Directorate needs to do more to demonstrate that staff 
based at the depot are not disadvantaged, given equal 
respect and are valued as much as staff based at other 
Council office locations. 

The Directorate needs to recognise that staff who work on 
weekends are sacrificing their weekend time with family and 
need to be compensated accordingly.  

The Directorate needs to recognise the different nature of 
site-based work compared to office based work when 
introducing plans to increase the workload of site-based 
staff.  

The Directorate needs to continue with on-going 
programmes to support staff well-being.  

107



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

16 

 

Recommendations for consideration 

1. The Directorate should create a Plain English summary of the 2012 consultation on Modernising Terms & Conditions 
and explain the decisions taken on weekend and overtime work.  

2 The Directorate needs to complete recruiting to a number of vacant posts to ensure workload is not unreasonably high. 
The 2015/16 Service Plan should consider staff capacity issues.  

3. The Directorate should be proactive in nominating good performing staff for Council Awards such as CREATE. 
Consideration should be made to develop a Directorate level award for deserving staff. Staff should be openly 
recognized for effort and good work. 

 

5.0   LINE MANAGEMENT/ SUPERVISION 

Responses Clarification on responses obtained 

61 commented that they were happy with Line Managers 
whilst 11 said that they were not. 

21 commented that they were unsure on their reporting 
structure due to their team restructuring that has recently 
taken place. 

15 commented that they have benefited from working with 
their Manager who has good hands-on experience 

10 commented that they have faced problems when being 

The Directorate needs to make all staff aware of their 
reporting structure and of the Directorate’s organisation 
chart. 

 

108



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

17 

5.0   LINE MANAGEMENT/ SUPERVISION 

Responses Clarification on responses obtained 

given conflicting instructions from different Line Managers.  

Recommendations for consideration 

1. The Directorate is to publish the ESD organisational chart and displayed it for staff. Service Teams are to ensure that all 
staff are aware of their line management reporting structure.  

 

 

6.0   SENIOR MANAGEMENT (ESD Director/ Service Manager) 

Responses Clarification on responses obtained 

71 commented that their team has no leadership/direction  

55 commented that they have had not meetings with Senior 
Management 

52 commented that Senior Management do not understand 
staff needs whilst 22 did 

51 commented that they never see and/or trust Senior 

The Directorate should demonstrate to staff that the current 
Senior Management team understand the Directorates work 
and responsibilities. 

The Directorate’s strategy on employing Agency staff should 
be made transparent and be understood by permanent staff 

Senior Management are to make themselves more visible/ 

109



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

18 

Management 

34 commented that Agency staff are treated differently  

21 commented that they felt that the PRISM/ Towards 
Excellence did not deliver what it was expected to achieve 

present at the depot more regularly. 

The Directorate should inform staff on progress of 
PRISM/Towards Excellence programme 

Recommendations for consideration 

1. The Directorate should roll-out a regular programme to communicate the Directorate’s Vision and key messages to small 
group face to face meetings with all staff. This would include providing information on what went well and what did not in 
the last period and on changes that will be introduced in the future. 

2. The Directorate should be more transparent and open about recruitment including awareness of adverts and clarification 
of Agency staff roles; why they are taken on and for how long are the contracts are likely to last. This should include a 
summary of comparative costings and benefits e.g. Agency do not get paid leave, paid sick or LG Pension. 

3. The Directorate will print out future job adverts in addition to the usual way of having them advertised for staff who do not 
have internet access. 

4. A coordinated series of invites to visit teams will be extended to ESD Director and Portfolio Holder for staff to engage 
directly on topical issues. 

 

110



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

19 

 

7.0   EQUIPMENT & FACILITIES 

Responses Clarification on responses obtained 

30 commented that the Bartec was not fully operational / 
provides inaccurate information 

21 commented that Citrix/ computers is slow 

55 commented that they were not provided with equipment/ 
tools to enable them to do their job effectively. 

23 commented that they wanted better catering/ rest area at 
the depot 

The Directorate should ensure that site-based staff are well 
equipped to undertake their work. This should meet H&S 
requirements for staff to undertake their work safely and 
comfortably. 

Recommendations for consideration 

1. The Directorate needs to ensure that all staff are aware of the tools/ equipment section process, the appointment of 
safety teams and the risk assessments undertaken. 

2. The Directorate should demonstrate more visibly through line management and safety teams the appropriate allocation of 
tools and equipment, reviewing the process of allocating equipment/tools where necessary and ensuring that all staff are 
aware of the equipment request process and are obtaining them. 

3. The Directorate will continue to press Corp IT that IT issues are promptly dealt with and inform staff on IT changes that 
would be introduced in the near future. 

4. The Directorate should review the provision of staff welfare facilities including vending machines and furniture at the 
depot. 

111



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

20 

 

112



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

21 

4. DELIVERY OF THE RECOMMENDATIONS 

4.1 The above recommendations have been combined into the 10 Point Action Plan below, showing the timescales for 
implementation and resource requirements including costs.  

No Recommendation Timescale Budget Sponsor 

1 Decisions made by the Council should be clearly explained to staff. 
Although consultation responses are prepared, it seems that the 
format used is not lending itself to be accessible to all Depot based 
staff. Consideration should be given to providing responses in an 
appropriately summarised way and making sure that all staff including 
those without access to email have the opportunity to see the 
responses. This applies to Corporate as well as Service 
communications. 

The Directorate should create a Plain English summary of the 2012 
consultation on Modernising Terms & Conditions and explain the 
decisions taken on weekend and overtime work, including the 
alternatives considered at the time. 

2014/15  ESD Director, 
Corp. Comms, 
Corp HR 

2 EE Staff Engagement Event to be held every 3 months at depot and 
Civic to enable staff to seek face to face feedback on Council 
decisions. 

The Directorate is to roll-out a regular programme to communicate the 
Directorate’s Vision and key messages to small informal groups in 
face to face meetings. This would include providing information on 
what went well and what did not in the last period and on changes 
that will be introduced in the future.   

2014/15 £2000 
annually 

Corp Director,  
SMT 
Service Mgrs 

113



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

22 

A coordinated series of invites to visit service teams is to be extended 
to ESD Director and the Portfolio Holder for staff to engage directly on 
topical issues. 

3 The Directorate is to make better use of all communication channels 
to keep staff updated. This includes regular updating of the notice 
board at the depot by a dedicated member of staff, distributing leaflets 
to staff for any key messages and making better use of hand-held 
devices e.g. Bartec, mobile phones, PDAs to provide headlines on a 
weekly basis so that site staff can be informed by their line managers. 

The Directorate is to work with Corporate Communications to ensure 
that all communications / messages are conveyed in a timely manner 
to all ESD staff based at the depot. Simply stating: Please print for 
staff without email access is not satisfactory. The responsibility should 
be to check and ensure the messages are getting to staff. If 
necessary, simplified summary messages should be created for on-
site staff which can be sent to handheld devices with details of where 
to go for further information. 

2014/15  ESD Director, 
Service Mgrs, 
Corporate 
Comms, ESD 
Director, Service 
Mgrs 

4. All staff should be provided with computer access which is available 
for use during depot operation times. This can be through shared 
computers that are based at the Canteen or a secured alternative 
location. This can be used by staff to check for information and for 
information updates. Basic training to use the Hub will be required for 
some. 

Corp IT have confirmed that internet access can be made available 
but with no access to the Harrow Hub. Technical Services will 
maintain a folder of newsletters, policies, procedures etc. which can 
be accessed online by staff.  

2015/16 £5000 + 
£1800/ 
annum 

ESD Director 

Corp IT 

114



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

23 

The Directorate will continue to press Corp IT for IT issues to be 
promptly dealt with and inform staff on IT changes that would be 
introduced in the near future. All staff should continue to be 
encouraged to continue logging issues with IT to ensure an accurate 
picture of problems can be addressed corporately. 

5. The Directorate should introduce ‘Appraisal Month’ in May and 
October each year where all staff and managers are expected to 
prioritise Appraisal action. This will help raise awareness of the 
importance of Appraisals as part of the Directorate’s staff 
development and well-being culture. This is to be accompanied by a 
high profile, awareness campaign. 

Appraisal training needs to be rebranded as a core component of 
work and responsibility for all staff with supervision responsibility in 
the Directorate, particularly in ESD. A Directorate-wide programme 
should be rolled-out to actively inform staff on the Appraisal process 
and what they should expect from it. 

The Directorate should appoint an Appraisal Champion for ESD who 
has responsibility to promote Appraisal Month and undertake 
monitoring of effectiveness of Appraisals delivered by services 
including review of group Appraisals and ensuring training needs are 
being captured. 

All ESD staff who have Appraisal responsibility should undergo 
tailored specific training to effectively deliver Appraisals. This training 
should include recognising and rewarding staff and customizing the 
process depending on the target group. 

2015/16  ESD Director, 
Service Mgrs, 
Line Mgrs 

6. The Directorate should regularly update the Learning & Development 
Plan and ensure that a training register is kept which should be 

2014/15  ESD Director, 

115



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

24 

accessible to all staff. Staff should be provided the opportunity to put 
forward recommendations for training and development for 
consideration by the Directorate. Staff should be informed on the 
process of applying for training and this form an integral part of the 
Appraisal. The L&D Plan and register should be on hand during 
Appraisals and updated and republished at least every April and June 
before and after Appraisals.  

Managers should be given the option of flexibility to determine how to 
best deliver the Appraisals depending on circumstance but they must 
ensure staff are fully aware that they are undergoing formal Appraisal. 

The Policy and Performance Team will be responsible for monitoring, 
collating and chasing up Appraisals. 

Service Mgrs 

Policy & 
Performance 

7. The Directorate is to publish the ESD organisational chart and to have 
it displayed for staff. Service Teams are to ensure that all staff are 
aware of their reporting structure. 

The Directorate needs to complete recruiting to a number of vacant 
posts to ensure workload is not unreasonably high. The 2015/16 
Service Plan should consider staff capacity issues. 

The Directorate should communicate more strongly the fair, 
transparent and open nature of recruitment including awareness of 
adverts.  The role of Agency staff should be clarified including why 
they are taken on, expected contracts duration and include a 
summary of agency costings and benefits to remove misconceptions  
e.g. Agency do not get paid leave, paid sick or LG Pension. 

The Directorate will print out future job adverts and put them on notice 
boards in addition to the corporate methods of publicising vacancies. 

2014/15  Corp HR, ESD 
Director, Service 
Mgrs. 

116



 

Policy & Performance, Environment & Enterprise 
$4ubw3wqb.doc 

 

25 

 
 
 

 

8. The Directorate should encourage Managers to be proactive in 
nominating good performing staff for Council Awards such as 
CREATE. Consideration should be made to develop a Directorate 
level award for deserving staff. Staff should be openly recognized for 
effort and good work. 

2014/15  ESD Director, 
Service Mgrs 

9. The Directorate needs to ensure that all staff are aware of the tools / 
equipment selection process, the appointment of safety teams and 
risk assessments that have been undertaken.   

The Directorate should demonstrate more visibly through line 
management and safety teams the appropriate allocation of tools and 
equipment, reviewing the process of allocating equipment/tools where 
necessary and ensuring that all staff are aware of the equipment 
request process and are obtaining them. 

2015/16  ESD Director, 
Service Mgrs 

10. The Directorate should review the provision of staff welfare facilities 
including vending machines in the canteen and furniture at the depot.  

2014/15 Tbc ESD Director 

117



118

This page is intentionally left blank



119



120

This page is intentionally left blank



121



122

This page is intentionally left blank



� � � �����	�
����

������������

��������
�����
� ����	��

� ���������� ��� ��	
��


� ���������� ��� �	��	
��


� ���������� ��� ����
��


� ���������� ��� ��� �����


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� ��	
��


� ���������� ��� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� ��� ��� �����


� ���������� ��� ��	
��


� ���������� ��� �	��	
��


� ���������� ��� ����
��


� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� ��� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� ��� ��� �����


�� ���������� ��� ��	
��


�� ���������� ��� �	��	
��


�� ���������� ��� ����
��


�� ���������� ��� ��� �����


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� ��	
��


� ���������� ��� �	��	
��


� ���������� ��� ����
��


� ���������� ��� ��� �����


� ���������� ��� ��� �����


�� ���������� ��� ��	
��


�� ���������� ��� �	��	
��


�� ���������� ��� ����
��


�� ���������� ��� ��� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


� ���������� �� ����
��


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� ��	
��


� ���������� �� �	��	
��


� ���������� ��� ����
��


�� ���������� ��� ��� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


����

����

���

���

 	�

!��

��"��	
#	$�%��	#&����%
#���#��	#'��	 �(#

�)#*���#
����+ ���#%��"+�	�'#�*
	��	

123



� � � �����	�
����

������������

��������
�����
� ����	��

��"��	
#	$�%��	#&����%
#���#��	#'��	 �(#

�)#*���#
����+ ���#%��"+�	�'#�*
	��	

�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� ��� ��	
��


�� ���������� ��� �	��	
��


�� ���������� ��� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� ��� ��� �����


� ���������� ��� ��	
��


� ���������� ��� �	��	
��


� ���������� ��� ����
��


� ���������� ��� ��� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� ��� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� ��	
��


� ���������� �� �	��	
��


� ���������� �� ����
��


� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� ��	
��


� ���������� �� �	��	
��


� ���������� �� ����
��


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� ��	
��


� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


� ���������� �� ����
��


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� ��	
��


� ���������� �� �	��	
��


� ���������� �� ����
��


� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


,(�

��


�	*

���

124



� � � �����	�
����

������������

��������
�����
� ����	��

��"��	
#	$�%��	#&����%
#���#��	#'��	 �(#

�)#*���#
����+ ���#%��"+�	�'#�*
	��	

�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� ��	
��


� ���������� �� �	��	
��


� ���������� �� ����
��


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� ��	
��


� ���������� �� �	��	
��


� ���������� �� ����
��


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� ��	
��


� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� ��	
��


� ���������� �� �	��	
��


� ���������� �� ����
��


� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� ��	
��


� ���������� �� �	��	
��


� ���������� �� ����
��


� ���������� �� �� �����


� ���������� �� �� �����


!��

!�%

,�"

&	(

125



� � � �����	�
����

������������

��������
�����
� ����	��

��"��	
#	$�%��	#&����%
#���#��	#'��	 �(#

�)#*���#
����+ ���#%��"+�	�'#�*
	��	

� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


�� ���������� �� �	��	
��


�� ���������� �� ����
��


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� �� �����


�� ���������� �� ��	
��


126



�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�

�

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�
���
�
�
���	



��
�

�
�
�
�
���
�


���
��
���

��
�
�

��

�
�����

��
�
���
�
�
�

�



�
��

��
�



��


���
��

���

����

��
�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�

�

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�
���
�
�
���	



��
�

�
�
�
�
���
�


���
��
���

��
�
�

��

��
�
���
��
�
���
�
�
�

�



�
��

��
�



��


���
��

���

����

��
�

�
�
���

��
�
��

 
�


!
"
�� �

�#


�$

� $


��%

�
�
&
�'


�
�
%��

�!
��
#
 �

�
��

�
�
���

��
�
��

 
�


!
"
�� �

�#


�$

� $


��%

�
�
&
�'


�
�
%��

�!
��
#
 �

�
��

127



�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�

�

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

����	

����	

����	

����	

�	��	

����	

�
��	

����	

����	

����	

����	

����	

����	

����	

�	��	

����	

�
��	

����	

����	

����	

����	

����	

����	

����	

�	��	

����	

�
��	

����	

����	

����	

����	

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�
���
�
�
���	



��
�

�
�
�
�
���
�


���
��
���

��
�
�

��

 
!
����

��"
�
��
�
�
�

�



�
��

��
�



��


���
��

���

����

��
�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

	
�

�
�



�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�

����


����


����


����


�	��


����


�
��


����


����


����


����


����


����


����


�	��


����


�
��


����


����


����


����


����


����


����


�	��


����


�
��


����


����


����


����


�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�	���

�����

�
���

�����

�����

�����

�
���
�
�
���	



��
�

�
�
�
�
���
�


���
��
���

��
�
�

��

�"

���

��
�
!
���
�
�
�

�



�
��

��
�



��


���
��

���

����

��
�

�
�
���

��
�
��

 
�


!
"
�� �

�#


�$

� $


��%

�
�
&
�'


�
�
%��

�!
��
#
 �

�
��

�
�
���

��
�
��

 
�


!
"
�� �

�#


�$

� $


��%

�
�
&
�'


�
�
%��

�!
��
#
 �

�
��

128



�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	


�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
	�



�
�


��
�
�

�
�
	�
�

�


�
�


��
�
�

�
�
	�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
	�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
�
	�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
	

�
�
��
�

�
�
	�
�

�
�
	�
�

�
�
	�
�

�
�
	�
�

�
�
	�
�

�
�
	�
�

�
�
	�
�

�
�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


��
�
�

�


�
�


��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
� 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�!
�
"�
	�
��
�#
�
�
	

$

%
�&
��
�'
(
%
�
��
�
��
(
��
�
)
��
'
(
%
*

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
��
 
!
��
�

�"
�
#�
��
�
�
�#
$
�
�
�
�%
�
�
�
$#


� 
��
"
�

�
�


129



130

This page is intentionally left blank



�
�
��
�
�

�
��
	
�



�
��
�


�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�


�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
	




�
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
	

�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
	�
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�



�
�

�
�
	�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�



�
�

�


	

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�



�
�






�
�
	

�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
	�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
	

�

�
�



�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
	�
�

�
�
�



�

�
�



�
�

�
	�



�
�
�
�
��

�
�

�
�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�


�

�
�

�
	�



�
�
�

�
��


�

�
�
�

�
	�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�



�

�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�

�
�

�
	�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
	�
�

�
 
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
	�
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�



�
�

�
	

�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
	�
�

�
�
�

�
�



�

�
	�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
	�
�

�
�





�
�

�
�

�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
��



�

�
�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
�!
�
�

�
�

�
�



	�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
"
�
��

�
�

�
�

�
	�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
	�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
	

�

� 
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
	�
�

�
��
�
	



�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
 
!
!

"
��
�

#
$%
&
'(
)�
(
*+
,&
-
(
��
+.
/
/
,)
�0
1
-
�0
'(
�2
0
-
(
&
3
�/
4�

5
/
6.
�)
.
/
'6
7
0
1
-
�,
/
1
%
76
(
'2
�0
5
)(
1
+(

8
��
'0
-
(
)�
9
.
$+
.
.
0
:
(
�4
(
9
(
'�
6.
0
1
�)
$*
�

2
(
2
5
(
')
�/
4�
)6
0
44
�.
0
:
(
�5
(
(
1
�.
$-
-
(
1
�)
/
�$
6�
$)
�

1
/
6�
3
/
))
$5
,(
�6
/
�$
-
(
1
6$
4;
�$
1
-
$:
$-
&
0
,)
	

8
8
��
$+
<
1
(
))
�)
.
/
9
1
�4
/
'�
4&
,,
7
0
1
-
�3
0
'6
76
$2
(
�

(
2
3
,/
;
(
(
)�
$)
�+
/
&
1
6(
-
�6
.
(
�)
0
2
(
��
(
	%
	�
$4
�0
�4
&
,,
7

6$
2
(
�0
1
-
�0
�3
0
'6
76
$2
(
�(
2
3
,/
;
(
(
�0
'(
�5
/
6.
/
44
�

)$
+<
�4
/
'�
0
�9
(
(
<
��
6.
(
$'
�)
$+
<
1
(
))
�9
/
&
,-
�)
.
/
9
�0
)�

�
�9
/
'<
$1
%
�-
0
;
)�
$1
�5
/
6.
�+
0
)(
)	
��
!
.
$)
�-
$4
4(
')
�

4'
/
2
�6
.
(
��
=
�

�
�


�+
0
,+
&
,0
6$
/
1
�9
.
$+
.
�$
)�
5
0
)(
-

/
1
�6
.
(
�0
:
(
'0
%
(
�1
/
	�
/
4�
-
0
;
)�
,/
)6
�3
(
'�
#
!
�
	

131



132

This page is intentionally left blank



�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
	
��
	

�
	
��
�



��
�



��
�



�	
	

�
�

�

�
�	
�

�
��
	

�
��
	

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
�	



�
�	
�

�
�	
	

�
�

�

�
��



�
��
�

	
�

�

	
��
�

	
�	
	

	
�	
	

�
�	
	

�
�	
	

�
�	
	

�
�	
	

�
	
�	
	

�
�
�	
	

�
�
�	
	

�
�
�	
	

�
�
�	
	

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	

�
��



��
�
��
�
�
�
��
	
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�



��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
	
��
��
�
�

�
� 
�

�!
"
�
#
�

�
�#
"
��
�
�

�
!
"
�
$
�%
%

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
 
�
!�
��
�
�
�!
"
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
"!
�
��

��
 
��
�
��

#
�$
��
�
�
��
%
�

�
�
�
�
&
�
��
�
%
�
��
!�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
 
�
��
��
��
�!
�
��
��
�
&
�
� 
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

!�

�
��
�
!�
�
�
��

 
��
�!
�
�

�
�
�
!

�'
�

�
�

&

�
�
�
��
�

#
#
��

�
(
�
�
��
��
�
�
%
�
��
�
��
��
��
"
�
�
�
��
�
�!
"!

�
�
��
�
�
��
'
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
!�
�
�!
�
�
��
�
�
�
)�
�
��
��

�
��
��
�
��
"!

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�!
"!

�
�
��
�
�
��
'
�
�
��
��
� 
�
!�

�
��
�

�

�(
��
�
��
�
�%
�
�
(
)�
!�
�

�
��

�
(
�
�
��
�%
�
�
��
��
�
�
%
��
��
�
�%
�
�(

�
�
��
�
'
��

�
� 
�
!�
��
�
��
��
��
*
�

�
��

�
��
��
��
��
�
�!
�
�
�+
,
-
.�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
!

�
�
)
%
�

�
�
�

��
 
�
��
�

�
�
�!
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
'
��
��
�!
��
�
��
�
*
/
�

133



134

This page is intentionally left blank



R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 -

 S
IC

K
N

E
S

S
 A

B
S

E
N

C
E

 A
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 

 

A
C

T
IO

N
 

 

W
H

O
 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

/ 
D

A
T

E
 

 

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 

A
n
a
ly

s
e
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 f

o
r 

lo
n
g

 a
n
d
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

H
R

 
M

o
n
th

ly
/Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
  

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 

A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
re

p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d
 m

o
n
th

ly
 a

t 
th

e
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 D

M
T

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

A
ll 

c
a
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
ri
g
g

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 h

it
 o

r 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

 a
re

 e
x
a
m

in
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n

s
 

ta
k
e
n
 o

n
 t

h
o
s
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
c
a
s
e
s
 a

re
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

s
te

p
s
 a

re
 t
a
k
e
n
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
o
 s

a
ti
s
fy

 s
e
n
io

r 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 C

a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
 

a
p
p
lie

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

. 
  

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 M

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 F

lu
 v

a
c
c
in

e
 t

o
 t
ry

 a
n
d
 l
e
s
s
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

a
n
y
 W

in
te

r 
v
ir
u
s
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 d

a
ta

 e
n
a
b
lin

g
 m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 t
o
 s

e
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

b
y
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 o

n
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

 a
n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

th
a
t 
d
a
ta

 h
ig

h
lig

h
t 
a
n
y
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 i
.e

. 
a
 h

ig
h

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
s
e
s
 o

f 
o
n
e
 d

iv
is

io
n
 t

h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
a
n
y
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

h
a
t 
m

a
y
b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
, 
th

e
 

n
e
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 i
n
 w

o
rk

in
g

 m
e
th

o
d
s
 p

e
rh

a
p
s
 o

r 
ri
s
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 
  
  
  

T
h
e
 n

e
x
t 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 

2
0
1
5
 d

u
ri
n
g

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

4
. 
M

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 i
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
c
o
rd

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 f

o
r 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

s
 ‘
o
th

e
r’
 b

u
t 

to
 

b
e
 p

re
c
is

e
 u

n
le

s
s
 i
t 
is

 a
b
s
o
lu

te
ly

 n
o
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
. 
 

 

E
n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 a

d
v
is

e
r 

to
 

a
s
s
is

t 
s
ta

ff
 w

it
h
 s

h
o
rt

/l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 t

o
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 

M
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 
O

n
-g

o
in

g
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 a
re

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t

o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
c
a
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 f
ro

m
 H

A
D

 w
h
e
re

v
e
r 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
w

it
h
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
. 
T

h
e
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 a

d
v
is

e
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t

h
e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 i
t,
 a

n
y
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

135



a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 /
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 
  

 

E
n
s
u
re

 M
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 a
re

 c
a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 
re

tu
rn

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 

in
te

rv
ie

w
s
 

H
R

/ 
M

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 
O

n
-g

o
in

g
- 

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 s

p
o
t 

c
h
e
c
k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 a
re

 p
e
ri
o
d
ic

a
lly

 r
e
m

in
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
R

e
tu

rn
 t
o
 W

o
rk

 

in
te

rv
ie

w
s
 h

a
v
e
 t

o
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 e

a
c
h
 a

n
d
 e

v
e
ry

 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
s
p
o
t 
c
h
e
c
k
 r

e
v
e
a
le

d
 t

h
a
t 
o
u
t 
o
f 

2
0
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 c

a
s
e
s
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 o

n
ly

 8
 R

T
W

 f
o
rm

s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 H

R
 

fi
le

 w
h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 n

e
g

lig
e
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

’ 

p
a
rt

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 w

a
s
 s

u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 b

u
t 
th

e
 p

a
p
e
rw

o
rk

 w
h
ic

h
 

is
 a

 n
e
w

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
h
a
d
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 
to

 H
R

. 
T

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

s
p
o
t 

c
h
e
c
k
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 /
 2

0
1
5
. 

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 

T
h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 I
IP

 

G
o
ld

 a
w

a
rd

 a
n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
ff

 s
u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

lo
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
a
 H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
e
re

 h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 k
e
y
 f
e
a
tu

re
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 a

t 
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 

s
e
e
n
 a

s
 a

 j
o
in

t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

a
n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
. 

T
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 w

ill
 p

re
s
e
n
t 
a
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
5
. 
  

 

 A
b

s
e
n

c
e
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 b
y
 T

y
p

e
 –

 O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 t

o
 3

0
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 T

y
p
e
 

N
o
 o

f 

D
a
y
s
 

%
 

N
o
  

O
c
c
a
s
io

n
s
 

A
v
e
 D

a
y
s
 

p
e
r 

O
c
c
a
s
io

n
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

/P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 

O
th

e
r 

o
r 

u
n
s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
  

2
4
3
3
 

3
6
.4

 
4
0
1
 

6
.0

7
 

U
n
s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
 (

1
8
0
) 

w
ill

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 a

s
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

S
e
lf
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 (

 e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 l
o
g

g
in

g
) 

w
a
s
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 h

a
lf
 w

a
y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
. 

B
a
c
k
 a

n
d
 N

e
c
k
 

P
ro

b
le

m
s
 

1
0
1
8
 

1
5
.3

 
9
2
 

1
1
.0

7
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 h

a
n
d
lin

g
 a

n
d
 l
if
ti
n
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

136



S
tr

e
s
s
/D

e
p
re

s
s
io

n
  

7
2
3
 

1
0
.9

 
5
5
 

1
3
.1

5
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 O
H

S
 c

o
u
n
s
e
lli

n
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

M
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t

o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r.

 

M
u
s
c
u
la

r 
6
2
9
 

9
.5

 
6
6
 

9
.5

2
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 h

a
n
d
lin

g
 a

n
d
 l
if
ti
n
g
 t

ra
in

in
g

 

C
a
rd

io
v
a
s
c
u
la

r 
5
4
2
 

8
.2

 
3
3
 

1
6
.4

2
 

R
e
la

te
d
 t

o
 a

g
e
 p

ro
fi
le

. 
A

rr
a
n
g

e
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 r

e
d
e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

V
ir
a
l 
In

fe
c
ti
o
n
 

3
7
8
 

5
.7

 
1
1
2
 

3
.3

7
 

 

E
y
e
, 

e
a
r,

 n
o
s
e
 a

n
d
 

m
o
u
th

 
2
8
1
 

4
.2

 
3
9
 

7
.2

1
 

 

R
e
s
p
ir
a
to

ry
 /

C
h
e
s
t 

2
7
5
 

4
.1

 
4
9
 

5
.6

0
 

 

G
a
s
tr

o
 I
n
te

s
ti
n
a
l 

2
2
7
 

3
.4

 
7
6
 

2
.9

9
 

 

P
re

g
n
a
n
c
y
 R

e
la

te
d
, 

H
e
a
d
a
c
h
e
, 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

A
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t,
 

G
y
n
a
e
c
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 

1
4
3
 

2
.2

 
8
0
 

1
.7

9
 

 

 T
o
ta

ls
 

 

*6
6
4
9
 

 

9
9
.9

 

 

1
0
0
3
 

 

6
.6

3
 

 

 

*6
6
4
9
 d

a
y
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 a

ft
e
r 

1
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
  

137



138

This page is intentionally left blank



C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  

S
IC

K
N

E
S

S
 A

B
S

E
N

C
E

 A
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
  

 

A
C

T
IO

N
 

 

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 

 

N
o
te

s
 

 

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 E

v
a

lu
a
ti
o
n
 

A
n
a
ly

s
e
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
n
e
 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 w

ill
 

b
e
 i
n
 m

a
n
a
g

e
r 

s
e
lf
- 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

o
ll-

o
u
t 

 

A
ll 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 a

ft
e
r 

Q
4
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

M
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 
D

o
n
e
 

F
o
llo

w
 –

u
p
 o

n
e
 t

o
 

o
n
e
s
 

 

E
n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 a

d
v
is

e
r 

to
 

a
s
s
is

t 
s
ta

ff
 w

it
h
 s

h
o
rt

/l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 t

o
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 

S
e
v
e
ra

l 
c
a
s
e
s
 

 

R
e
v
ie

w
 w

it
h
 O

H
S

 t
h
e
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 

O
n
 -

g
o
in

g
 

O
n
 c

a
s
e
 b

y
 c

a
s
e
 

b
a
s
is

 

 

M
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

re
d
e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
lo

n
g
 t

e
rm

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
  

O
n
 -

g
o
in

g
 

O
n
 c

a
s
e
 b

y
 c

a
s
e
 

b
a
s
is

 

 

E
n
s
u
re

 M
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 a
re

 c
a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 
re

tu
rn

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 

in
te

rv
ie

w
s
 

O
n
 g

o
in

g
 

R
a
n
d
o
m

 c
h
e
c
k
s
 

 

O
ff

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
a
s
e
-w

o
rk

 

 

O
n
 g

o
in

g
 

O
n
 c

a
s
e
 b

y
 c

a
s
e
 

b
a
s
is

 

 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
fo

c
u
s
e
d
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 a

n
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 ‘
h
o
t 
s
p
o
ts

’ 
F

o
c
u
s
e
d
 w

o
rk

 

d
o
n
e
 w

it
h
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 

N
e
e
d
s
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

 
 

139



S
N

T
 3

 p
ro

je
c
t 

 

140



C
H

W
B

 

S
IC

K
N

E
S

S
 A

B
S

E
N

C
E

 A
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

 

T
y
p

ic
a
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
  

C
o

u
n

c
il
 P

o
s
it

io
n

 
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 

W
h

o
/T

im
e
fr

a
m

e
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

R
e
tu

rn
 t

o
 W

o
rk

 

In
te

rv
ie

w
s
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
o
lic

y
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 m
a
n
d
a
to

ry
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 c

a
rr

y
 

o
u
t 
R

T
W

s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
s
 b

u
t 
re

lia
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e
. 

D
M

T
s
 t
o
 c

h
e
c
k
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
ir
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n

a
g
e
rs

 h
a

v
e
 R

T
W

s
 

a
n
d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

  

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 R
T

W
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 

p
la

n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

D
M

T
s
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

a
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

w
it
h
 H

R
D

 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

 

 Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
  

A
 r

e
m

in
d
e
r 

n
o

te
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 
to

 a
ll 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 i
n

 C
H

W
B

 a
b
o
u
t 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 t
im

e
ly

 R
T

W
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
s
. 
H

R
D

 c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
q

u
a

rt
e
rl

y
 r

a
n
d

o
m

 

c
h
e
c
k
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 R
T

W
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 d

o
n
e
. 

N
o
n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 i
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d
 

to
 t
h

e
 C

H
W

B
 W

F
S

G
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
. 
 

C
H

W
B

 W
F

S
G

 c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 n

o
n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
. 
H

R
D

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
W

F
S

G
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 d

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
le

v
e

l 
re

p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

h
a
re

 w
it
h

 

D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
d

ir
e
c
to

rs
 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 r
e
p
o

rt
 b

a
c
k
 t
o
 C

h
a
ir
 

o
f 
W

F
S

G
 o

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n

 

E
a
rl

y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

b
y
 l

in
e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
o
lic

y
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
ri

g
g
e
r 

p
o
in

ts
 a

n
d
 O

H
S

 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 w
it
h

in
 2

8
 

d
a

y
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 b

u
t 

4
8
 d

a
y
s
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

 

D
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 O
H

S
 

p
ro

v
id

e
r,

 H
M

L
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a

t 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t
a
k
e
 4

8
 

d
a

y
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
. 

D
M

T
s
 t
o
 c

h
e
c
k
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
ir
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n

a
g
e
rs

 a
re

 

m
a
k
in

g
 t
im

e
ly

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

. 
 

T
o
 a

v
o
id

 d
e

la
y
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 

a
c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
s
 

D
M

T
s
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

a
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

w
it
h
 H

R
D

 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

  

 Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 

A
 r

e
m

in
d
e
r 

n
o

te
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 
to

 a
ll 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
b

o
u
t 

m
a
k
in

g
 t
im

e
ly

 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 O

H
S

. 
H

R
D

 c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 c

h
e
c
k
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 

re
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 O

H
S

 P
ro

v
id

e
r.

  
N

o
n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o

 

th
e
 C

H
W

B
 W

F
S

G
. 
 

C
H

W
B

 W
F

S
G

 c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 n

o
n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
. 
H

R
D

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
W

F
S

G
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 d

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
le

v
e

l 
re

p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

h
a
re

 w
it
h

 

D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
d

ir
e
c
to

rs
 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 r
e
p
o

rt
 b

a
c
k
 t
o
 C

h
a
ir
 

o
f 
W

F
S

G
 o

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 

R
e
h

a
b

il
it

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

lo
n

g
-t

e
rm

 s
ic

k
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

re
c
e
n
tl
y
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
te

d
 a

 

n
e

w
 O

H
S

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

w
h
o
 i
s
 f

o
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 

lo
n

g
 t
e
rm

 s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 

c
a
s
e
s
. 

H
R

D
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
r 

to
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
h

e
ir
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

lo
n

g
 t
e
rm

 a
n
d
 c

h
ro

n
ic

 s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 

c
a
s
e
s
. 
S

e
e
k
 l
e
g

a
l 
a
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 

re
c
e
n
t 
c
a
s
e
 l
a

w
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t
o
 

th
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e
s
. 

H
R

D
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 w
it
h
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
r 

to
 

a
d
v
is

e
 D

M
T

s
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
  

H
R

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 
lo

n
g
 t
e
rm

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 i
n

 C
H

W
B

 f
ro

m
 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
re

p
o
rt

 a
n

d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o

 d
iv

is
io

n
a
l 
a
b
s
e

n
c
e

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 

p
a
n
e

l 
le

a
d
s
 o

r 
d

iv
is

io
n
a

l 
S

M
T

 f
o
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 &

 C
H

W
B

 W
F

S
G

 m
o
n
it
o
r.

  
 

H
R

D
 p

ro
v
id

e
 C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
W

F
S

G
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 d

iv
is

io
n
a

l 
le

v
e
l 
re

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
. 

A
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
. 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
b

s
e
n

c
e
 s

ta
ti

s
ti

c
s
 

to
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 -

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

 f
o

r 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 r

a
n
g
e

 

o
f 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
ro

ll-
o
u

t 
o
f 

S
A

P
 b

a
s
e
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

s
e

lf
-

s
e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

re
c
o
rd

in
g
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
  

P
a

y
ro

ll/
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
r 

H
R

D
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

  

to
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 l
in

e
 

A
 r

e
m

in
d
e
r 

n
o

te
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 
to

 a
ll 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 i
n

 C
H

W
B

 a
b
o
u
t 

e
n
s
u
ri
n

g
 t
h

a
t 
re

a
s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

re
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d

 o
n
 S

A
P

. 
H

R
D

 c
a
rr

y
 

o
u
t 
q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 r

a
n
d

o
m

 c
h
e
c
k
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d

. 
N

o
n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

H
W

B
 W

F
S

G
 

C
H

W
B

 

A
b

s
e

n
c

e
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 

141



a
b

s
e
n

c
e
 

A
b

s
e
n

c
e

 T
ri

g
g

e
rs

 

B
ra

d
fo

rd
 F

a
c
to

r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 b
u
t 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 w

e
a
k
 o

n
 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

d
a
ta

. 
 

T
h
e
 s

e
lf
-s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 m

a
n
d
a
to

ry
 

fi
e
ld

s
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 i
n
 

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 

a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

u
s
a
g
e
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 a

n
d

 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
. 

H
R

D
 s

e
n
d

 a
b
s
e

n
c
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
re

p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 C

H
W

B
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 c

h
a

lle
n
g

e
 

p
a
n
e

ls
/ 
S

M
T

’s
 w

it
h

 a
b
s
e

n
c
e
 t
ri
g

g
e
rs

/B
ra

d
fo

rd
 f

a
c
to

r 
h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 b

y
 

d
iv

is
io

n
 s

o
 e

m
p
lo

y
e

e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 a
n

d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 a
c
ti
o
n
 t

a
k
e
n
 

b
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 

C
a
p

a
b

il
it

y
 

P
ro

c
e
d

u
re

 

In
fo

rm
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

s
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th

a
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
re

 n
o
t 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

to
 u

s
e

 t
h

is
 

to
o
l 

 

A
lig

n
 a

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 

T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e

 c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 i
n
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
a
p
a

b
ili

ty
 P

ro
c
e
d

u
re

 

 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 

E
n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
r 

&
 H

R
D

 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 p

la
n
 

fo
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 

T
w

o
 t
h

ir
d
 o

f 
d
e

le
g

a
te

s
 o

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 M

a
n
a
g

in
g
 A

b
s
e
n
c
e
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 

w
e
re

 f
ro

m
 C

H
W

B
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 Q

2
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 f

o
r 

C
H

W
B

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

. 

H
R

D
 d

e
liv

e
r 

1
:1

 a
n
d

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 a
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 

A
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

b
s
e
n

c
e
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 m

a
n

a
g
e
rs

 o
n
 H

R
D

 

a
d
v
ic

e
 l
in

e
 a

n
d
 C

H
W

B
 H

R
D

 t
e
a
m

 o
n
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
c
a
s
e
s
. 

A
b

s
e
n

c
e

 

C
h

a
ll
e
n

g
e
 P

a
n

e
ls

 

 
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
rs

/H
R

D
 

M
o
n
th

ly
/Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 

D
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
re

p
o
rt

s
 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 t
o
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 w

h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 a

 h
ig

h
 B

ra
d
fo

rd
 f

a
c
to

r,
 l
o

n
g
 t

e
rm

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 h

it
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e

 

tr
ig

g
e
rs

. 
M

a
n

a
g
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
s
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 a

re
 c

h
a

lle
n
g

e
d
 b

y
 c

a
lli

n
g

 t
o
 

p
a
n
e

ls
 o

r 
te

le
p
h
o

n
e
 t

o
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
w

h
a
t 
a
c
ti
o
n

 t
h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n

 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 e

g
 g

iv
in

g
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
, 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
to

 O
H

S
, 
in

v
o
k
in

g
 

fo
rm

a
l 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e

d
u
re

 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 h

o
ld

 m
o
n
th

ly
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 p

a
n
e
ls

 l
e
d

 b
y
 m

a
n
a

g
e
rs

 a
n

d
 

H
R

D
. 
A

d
u

lt
s
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
te

le
p

h
o
n
e

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 o
n
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 

d
e
a

lin
g
 w

it
h
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e

. 
 O

th
e
r 

d
iv

is
io

n
s
 u

s
e

 S
M

T
’s

 t
o
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 A

d
v

is
e
r 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

 
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
rs

/H
R

D
/ 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 A
d
v
is

e
r 

M
a
n
a

g
e
rs

/H
R

D
 e

n
g
a
g

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 a

d
v
is

e
r 

to
 a

s
s
is

t 

s
ta

ff
 w

it
h
 s

h
o
rt

/l
o

n
g
 t

e
rm

 d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

R
e
m

in
d

e
r 

n
o

te
 t

o
 

C
H

W
B

 m
a
n

a
g

e
rs

 

 
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
rs

/H
R

D
 

A
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 r

e
m

in
d
e
r 

n
o
te

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 a

ll 
C

H
W

B
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 w

h
a
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
re

 r
e
q
u

ir
e
d
 t

o
 d

o
 

to
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
in

k
s
 t
o
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 o
n
 i
n
tr

a
n
e
t 

e
g
 R

T
W

 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
, 
s
e
lf
 c

e
rt

 f
o
rm

, 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
to

 O
H

S
, 
c
a
p
a

b
ili

ty
 p

ro
c
e

d
u
re

 

C
H

W
B

 A
b

s
e
n

c
e
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0
1
4

/1
5
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0
1
4

/1
5
 i
s
: 

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e
t 
a

n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 

C
H

W
B

 h
a
v
e
 s

e
t 
a

n
 o

p
ti
m

is
ti
c
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e

 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
1

4
/1

5
 o

f 
7
.5

 d
a

y
s
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 5
%

 r
e

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 Q

4
 o

u
tt
u
rn

. 

142



 

8
.1

8
 d

a
y
s
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

) 
&

 

7
.1

4
 d

a
y
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

) 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 

Q
2
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

C
H

W
B

 i
s
 8

.8
3
 d

a
y
s
. 
T

h
e
 a

b
o

v
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

ta
k
e
n
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

143



144

This page is intentionally left blank



E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 &
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

  

S
IC

K
N

E
S

S
 A

B
S

E
N

C
E

 A
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 

C
o

n
te

x
t 

A
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
E

&
E

 s
ta

ff
 i
s
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 t
o

 c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
lly

 d
e

m
a

n
d

in
g
 d

u
ti
e

s
. 
T

h
e

 h
ig

h
 a

b
s
e
n

c
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 c
o

n
c
e
n

tr
a

te
d

 

in
 t

h
e
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
W

a
s
te

, 
H

a
rr

o
w

 P
ri
d

e
 a

n
d

 P
a

rk
in

g
 a

ll 
b

a
s
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 D

e
p

o
t.

 D
u

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 
to

 w
o

rk
 

o
u

ts
id

e
 o

ft
e

n
 e

x
p

o
s
e

d
 t
o

 i
n

c
le

m
e
n

t 
w

e
a

th
e

r 
th

e
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

ic
k
n
e

s
s
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 f
o

r 
E

&
E

 w
ill

 b
e

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 o
th

e
r 

d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
. 

 I
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 o

v
e

r 
tw

o
 t

h
ir
d

s
 o

f 
E

&
E

 s
ic

k
n

e
s
s
 i
s
 l
o
n

g
 t

e
rm

 a
b

s
e
n

c
e

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e
fl
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 t
y
p

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 c
a

ri
e

d
 o

u
t 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 a
g
e

 

p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

th
e

 s
ta

ff
. 

A
C

T
IO

N
 

W
H

O
 

T
A

R
G

E
T

/ 
D

A
T

E
 

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 

A
n
a
ly

s
e
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 f

o
r 

lo
n
g

 a
n
d
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

H
R

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

A
n
a
ly

s
is

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 
A

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t
o
 b

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
. 

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

D
e
p
o
t 
T

e
a
m

 

L
e
a
d
e
rs

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

H
R

/D
e
p
o
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

O
c
t 
2
0
1
4
 -

  
D

ra
ft
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

it
h
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

ta
ff

. 
A

b
s
e
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
 W

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 2

n
d
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

E
n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 a

d
v
is

e
r 

to
 

a
s
s
is

t 
s
ta

ff
 w

it
h
 s

h
o
rt

/l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 t

o
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 

M
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 

 

O
n
g

o
in

g
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

- 
M

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 r
e
m

in
d
e
d
 b

y
 e

 m
a
il 

o
f 

th
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
  

R
e
v
ie

w
 w

it
h
 O

H
S

 t
h
e
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 

H
R

 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

–
 C

u
rr

e
n
t 

d
a
ta

 r
e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 f
ro

m
 O

H
S

. 

M
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

re
d
e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
lo

n
g
 t

e
rm

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
  

M
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 
O

n
g

o
in

g
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

- 
3
 s

ta
ff

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 d

u
ti
e
s
 

E
n
s
u
re

 M
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 a
re

 c
a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 
re

tu
rn

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 

in
te

rv
ie

w
s
 

H
R

/ 
M

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 
1
0
0
%

 O
n
g

o
in

g
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

c
h
e
c
k
 –

 6
 r

e
tu

rn
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 f
o
rm

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 

H
R

 f
ile

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

u
t 
o
f 

2
5
 w

o
rk

 r
e
tu

rn
e
rs

. 
M

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 

re
m

in
d
e
d
 v

ia
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

c
a
s
c
a
d
e
 a

n
d
 P

u
rp

le
 p

a
g

e
s
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 c
o
p
ie

s
 o

f 
R

T
W

’s
 a

re
 s

e
n
t 
to

 S
h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

fi
lin

g
  

145



A
rr

a
n
g

e
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

/a
d
v
ic

e
  

in
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

e
n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n
ts

 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
ff
e
re

d
 a

t 
E

&
E

 s
ta

ff
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
d
a
y
s
 2

8
 a

n
d
 2

9
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
, 

p
u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 O

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 (

O
H

S
) 

to
 

o
ff

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
. 

 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

W
o
rk

p
la

c
e
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 T

ra
in

in
g
 s

u
p
p
lie

d
 b

y
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

in
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

  

146



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

PERFORMANCE & 

FINANCE SCRUTINY SUB-

COMMITTEE 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

6 January 2015 

Subject: 

 

Corporate Equalities Objectives – Annual 
Progress Report and Review 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Alex Dewsnap 
Divisional Director Strategic 
Commissioning 
 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

Performance Lead Member –  
Councillor Adam Swersky 
Policy Lead Member – 
Councillor Stephen Wright 
 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Wards affected: 

 

All 

Enclosures: 

 

Annual Equalities Progress Report 
2013/14 
Revised Corporate Equality Objectives 
2015-19 

 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

This report provides an update on our progress against the Council’s Equality 
Objectives which were adopted by Cabinet in April 2012.  
 

 
 

Agenda Item 9
Pages 147 to 190

147



 
 

 

 

Recommendations:  
Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee are asked to: 
 

• Note the progress made against our Corporate Equality Objectives for 
2013/14); 

§ Note the revised performance measures to support the Equality 
Objectives for 2014/15 

§ Comment on the suggested amendments to the Corporate Equality   
objectives for 2015 - 2019 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Introduction 
 
1. Harrow is one of the most ethnically and religiously diverse boroughs in 

London with people of many different backgrounds and life experiences 
living side by side.  It is the richness of this diversity, and the positive 
impact that it has on the borough and the community, that helps make 
Harrow such a great place to live, work and visit.  The borough’s diversity 
is something to value and encourage and this report highlights the 
Council’s commitment to maintaining and building on our strengths by 
ensuring equality and diversity is integral to everything we do. 

 
2. Harrow’s diverse population generates a range of needs and expectations 

all of which the Council has to understand in order to provide appropriate 
services.  As resources become scarcer, it is even more important to 
understand the community, their needs and aspirations and to be able to 
provide the right services at the right time.   

 
Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty  

 
3. The Equality Act contains a range of rights, powers and obligations to help 

the drive towards equality.  The Act aims to strengthen and simplify the 
equality law that was already in place, such as the Race Relations Act and 
the Disability Discrimination Act. 

 
4. Section 149 of the Act  introduced a new Public Sector Equality Duty 

(PSED) which requires public authorities, in the exercise of their functions, 
to have due regard to the need to:  

 
§ Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 

conduct prohibited by the Act; 
§ Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not; and 
§ Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic 

and those who do not.   
 

148



 
5. The new PSED replaces the previous three Public Sector Equality Duties 

– for race, disability and gender  - and now covers Age, Disability, Gender 
Reassignment, Pregnancy and Maternity, Race (this includes ethnic or 
national origins, colour or nationality) Religion or Belief (includes lack of 
belief), Sex and Sexual Orientation. 

 
6.  It also applies to Marriage and Civil Partnership but only in respect of the 

requirement to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination. 
 
7. The PSED is supported by specific duties which are intended to help 

public authorities to meet its requirements.  Public authorities covered by 
the specific duties are required to: 

 
§ Publish by the 31st January each year information to demonstrate their 

compliance with the general equality duty; and 
 

§ Prepare and publish by 6 April 2012, and at least every four years 
thereafter one or more equality objectives.  

 
Collate and Publish Equalities Information 

 
8. In order to meet the first requirement of the PSED, a number of local 

authorities have published spreadsheets containing equalities data about 
their service users and workforce, whilst others have agreed to continue to 
publish their annual equality in employment report relating to their 
workforce and Equality Impact Assessments (EqIAs) as required by the 
previous duties.    

 
9. Although this approach meets the requirements, the Council decided to 

publish its equalities data in a more constructive way. 
 
10. In order to ensure that the data published is easy to understand and to 

ensure transparency with regard to progress in addressing inequality and 
delivering services reflective of the needs of our community, the Council 
prepared and published equalities information/data in the form of a 
narrative document ‘Our Harrow, Our Story’.This is a narrative of the 
services and projects delivered by the Council which not only support the 
Corporate Priorities but address inequality, advances equality of 
opportunity and fosters good relations.  The document includes real life 
case studies of service users and is supported by a set of Appendices 
which hold the data. 

 
11. In 2012 the Equality and Human Rights Commission undertook a review of 

how public services generally complied with the requirement to publish 
data and singled out Harrow Council as the best practice exemplar for the 
transparency and ease of access to the data that we provided.  This year’s 
compilation is available together with the data it supports at 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/200041/equality_and_diversity/863/public_s
ector_equality_duty 

 
 
 

149



 
Developing and Publishing Equality Objectives 

 
12. In order to meet the second requirement of the PSED, ‘Equality 

Objectives’ were developed based on the research and consultation 
undertaken and the equalities information/data published.  

 
13. The draft Equality Objectives were the subject of public consultation 

including an online questionnaire for staff and elected members and a 
separate questionnaire for members of the public, service users, voluntary 
and community groups, partners and stakeholders and the questionnaire 
was also sent out to the Residents Panel.  As part of the consultation 
workshops for staff and voluntary and community groups, partners and 
stakeholders also took place. A cross party briefing was also held for 
elected members.  The consultation produced support for the proposed 
Objectives which were adopted by Cabinet in April 2012. 

 
14. In light of the change in Administration, the objectives (Appendix 1) have 

been reviewed to ensure they support they are still relevant  to and 
support the corporate plan.  

 
Measuring our Performance against the Corporate Equality 
Objectives 

 
15. In line with the existing performance process, directorates produce 

quarterly progress reports against their directorate scorecards for the 
Improvement Boards.  These form the basis of annual progress reports. 
This will not only mainstream equalities within existing processes and 
service plans but also adhere to the COUNT (collate once use numerous 
times) principle. 

 
Financial Implications 
 

All costs are contained within existing budgets. 

 
Performance Issues 

How we perform against the Corporate Equality Objectives is monitored 
via the Council’s existing performance process via Improvement Boards 
and reported to Cabinet via the Strategic Performance Report.  

 

Environmental Impact 
 

There are no direct environmental impacts of this decision. 
 

Risk Management Implications 
 

There are no direct risk management implications of this decision. 
 
 
 
 

150



 

Equalities Implications 
 

The ‘Equality Objectives’ will address inequality, advance equality of 
opportunity and foster good relations and help the Council to comply with 
the statutory requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty introduced 
by the Equality Act 2010.  

 
Council Priorities 
 

The ‘Equality Objectives’ support all the Council’s Corporate Priorities. 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
Not required for this report 
 
 

 

Ward Councillors notified: 

 

 

NO  
 

 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
 

Contact:  Mohammed Ilyas, Policy Officer, Ext.2322 
 
 

Background Papers:  
‘Our Harrow, Our Story’ 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/200041/equality_and_diversity/863/public_sector_equ
ality_duty  

 

151



152

This page is intentionally left blank



  A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1

  
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 

 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 P
u

b
lic

 S
e

c
to

r 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 
 

 

153



  
1

 

F
o
re

w
o
rd

 
 W

e
lc

o
m

e
 t
o

 o
u

r 
la

te
s
t 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 w
h

ic
h

 o
u

tl
in

e
s
 o

u
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
o
u

r 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 
 T

h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 o
u

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 

a
d

v
a

n
c
in

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
, 

e
lim

in
a
ti
n

g
 u

n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 g

o
o
d

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
k
e

 u
p
 H

a
rr

o
w

. 
 I

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
a

s
e

 
s
tu

d
ie

s
 i
llu

s
tr

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
h

ic
h

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t

o
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
; 
fo

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
; 
fo

r 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
. 

 W
e
 h

o
p
e

 t
h

a
t 

y
o

u
 w

ill
 f

in
d

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n
te

re
s
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
v
e

, 
a

n
d

 w
e

 s
u

s
p
e

c
t 
th

a
t 
y
o

u
 m

a
y
 b

e
 s

u
rp

ri
s
e
d

 b
y
 j
u

s
t 

h
o

w
 m

u
c
h

 i
s
 

d
o

n
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 t
o

 c
e

le
b

ra
te

 t
h
e

 
B

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
. 
W

e
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

c
a

n
 b

e
 p

ro
u

d
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

is
 r

e
p
o

rt
 w

h
ic

h
 b

u
ild

 o
n

 o
u

r 
fi
rm

 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 p
ro

m
o

te
 f

a
ir
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
, 

a
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 o
u

r 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
. 
W

e
 k

n
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 i
s
 

s
o

m
e
th

in
g
 t

o
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 

o
u

r 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 m
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
 o

n
 o

u
r 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

s
 b

y
 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

re
 i
n

te
g
ra

l 
to

 e
v
e

ry
th

in
g
 w

e
 d

o
. 

  
 In

 t
h
e

 c
o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

th
e

 l
a

s
t 

tw
e

lv
e

 m
o

n
th

s
, 
th

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
e

v
e

ra
l 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 r
a

c
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 w

h
ic

h
 c

u
lm

in
a

te
d

 i
n

 a
n

 
a

c
c
u

s
a

ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
a

s
 I

n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

a
lly

 R
a

c
is

t.
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 a
n

 i
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

is
 a

c
c
u

s
a

ti
o

n
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 b
y
 D

a
lw

a
rd

in
 B

a
b

u
, 
O

B
E

, 
th

e
 f
o

rm
e

r 
P

o
lic

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 
C

o
m

m
a

n
d

e
r 

fo
r 

H
a

rr
o

w
 a

n
d

, 
a

lt
h
o

u
g
h

 w
e

 h
a
v
e

 y
e

t 
to

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 

fu
ll 

re
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d
 t

o
 i
ts

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
, 
th

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 

is
 u

n
e

q
u

iv
o

c
a

l 
th

a
t 

“t
h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 t

h
a

t 
I 

h
a

v
e

 s
e
e

n
 t
h

a
t 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
s
 t

h
e

 a
lle

g
a

ti
o
n
 t

h
a

t 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 I

n
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

lly
 

R
a

c
is

t”
. 

 
 

  T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 y

o
u

 w
it
h

 d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

e
 a

re
 

m
a

k
in

g
 i
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 o

u
r 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
a

m
b

it
io

n
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
is

 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
a

h
e
a

d
. 

  
   C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
r 

A
n
n

e
 W

h
it
e
h

e
a
d

  
P

o
rt

fo
lio

 H
o

ld
e

r 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

, 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 W
e

llb
e

in
g
  

154



  
2

 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

 H
a

rr
o

w
 i
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 m
o

s
t 

e
th

n
ic

a
lly

 a
n

d
 r

e
lig

io
u

s
ly

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

in
 L

o
n

d
o
n

 w
it
h

 p
e

o
p

le
 o

f 
m

a
n

y
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
 a

n
d

 l
if
e
 

e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

s
 l
iv

in
g
 s

id
e

 b
y
 s

id
e

. 
 I

t 
is

 t
h
e

 r
ic

h
n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
, 

a
n

d
 

th
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
it
 h

a
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
, 

th
a

t 
w

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 h
e

lp
s
 m

a
k
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 s
u

c
h

 a
 g

re
a

t 
p

la
c
e

 t
o

 l
iv

e
, 

w
o

rk
 

a
n

d
 v

is
it
. 

 W
e
 k

n
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 i
s
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g
 t
o

 v
a

lu
e

 
a

n
d

 e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

is
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
O

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 P

o
lic

y
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 o

u
r 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 m
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
 o

n
 o

u
r 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

s
 b

y
 e

n
s
u

ri
n
g
 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
s
 i
n

te
g
ra

l 
to

 e
v
e

ry
th

in
g

 w
e

 d
o

. 
 In

 s
e

rv
in

g
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
im

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 f

o
r 

it
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
, 

e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
, 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 

ir
re

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

a
g
e

, 
d

is
a

b
ili

ty
, 

g
e

n
d

e
r 

re
a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t,
 m

a
rr

ia
g
e

 a
n

d
 

c
iv

il 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
p

re
g
n
a

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 m
a
te

rn
it
y
, 

ra
c
e

, 
re

lig
io

n
 o

r 
b
e

lie
f,

 s
e

x
 

a
n

d
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
o

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 w

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h
a

t 
in

 o
u

r 
s
o

c
ie

ty
, 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 b
e

 u
n

la
w

fu
lly

 d
is

c
ri
m

in
a

te
d

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

a
n
d

 w
e

 a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 
o

u
r 

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 t
o

 e
lim

in
a

te
 u

n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 g
o

o
d

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 r

ic
h

 
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

's
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
. 

 O
u

r 
C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
d

e
s
c
ri
b

in
g
 a

 v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

re
a

 t
h

a
t 

is
 b

u
ilt

 o
n

 
re

c
o

g
n

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
e

v
e

ry
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
, 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 

a
n

d
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
, 
fa

ir
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 j
u

s
ti
c
e

. 
 A

s
 a

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 l
e

a
d

e
r,

 w
e

 w
ill

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 p
u

b
lic

, 
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 p

ri
v
a

te
 

s
e

c
to

rs
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 w

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

o
u

r 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
 A

s
 a

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

r,
 w

e
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 e

m
p

lo
y
in

g
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
, 

to
 h

e
lp

 u
s
 t

o
 u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 a
n
d

 r
e

la
te

 t
o

 t
h
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 w

e
 s

e
rv

e
. 

 
T

h
ro

u
g
h

 o
u

r 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
, 

w
e

 w
ill

 a
im

 t
o

 

im
p

ro
v
e

 o
n

 o
u

r 
re

c
o

rd
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

lo
re

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 

to
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
p
p

lic
a

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
s
e

c
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

jo
in

in
g
 u

s
. 
 

 A
s
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r,

 w
e

 a
re

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 o

u
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 

o
p

e
n

, 
fa

ir
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 b

y
 t

a
k
in

g
 i
n

to
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 t
h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d
 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

o
u

r 
d

iv
e

rs
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
. 

 W
e
 w

ill
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 

Im
p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
(E

q
IA

) 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 

e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 w

it
h

 a
n

d
 l
is

te
n

in
g
 t

o
 

o
u

r 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
. 

 
 A

s
 a

 p
ro

c
u

re
r 

o
f 

g
o

o
d

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

w
e

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 o

u
r 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 f
a

ir
 a

n
d

 e
q
u

it
a
b

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

n
 o

u
r 

b
e

h
a

lf
 s

h
a

re
 o

u
r 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
. 

 
 

T
h

e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
t 
2

0
1

0
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 P
u
b

lic
 S

e
c
to

r 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 
(P

S
E

D
) 

 T
h
e

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
t 

2
0

1
0

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 a

 n
e

w
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
c
to

r 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 
(P

S
E

D
) 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s
 p

u
b

lic
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
, 

in
 t

h
e

 e
x
e

rc
is

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

fu
n

c
ti
o
n

s
, 

to
 h

a
v
e

 d
u

e
 r

e
g
a

rd
 t

o
 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
: 

 
 §
 

E
lim

in
a

te
 u

n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
, 

h
a

ra
s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 v

ic
ti
m

is
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
c
o

n
d

u
c
t 
p

ro
h

ib
it
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
c
t;

 
§
 

A
d

v
a

n
c
e

 e
q
u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o

 s
h

a
re

 a
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 a

n
d
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t;

 a
n
d

 
§
 

F
o

s
te

r 
g
o

o
d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 s

h
a

re
 a

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t.
  

 
 T

h
e

 P
S

E
D

 i
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 b
y
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 d
u

ti
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
n
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 
p

u
b

lic
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
it
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
. 

 
 

T
h
e

 n
e

w
 P

S
E

D
 r

e
p

la
c
e

s
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 t
h

re
e

 P
u

b
lic

 S
e

c
to

r 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 

D
u

ti
e

s
 –

 f
o

r 
ra

c
e
, 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 g

e
n

d
e

r 
a

n
d
 n

o
w

 c
o

v
e

rs
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
: 

155



  
3

 

 
§
 

A
g
e

 
§
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
§
 

G
e

n
d
e

r 
R

e
a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t 
§
 

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 M
a

te
rn

it
y
 

§
 

R
a

c
e

 –
 t
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 e

th
n

ic
 o

r 
n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
o

ri
g
in

s
, 

c
o

lo
u

r 
o

r 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

lit
y
 

§
 

R
e

lig
io

n
 o

r 
B

e
lie

f 
–

 t
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
b

e
lie

f 
§
 

S
e

x
 

§
 

S
e

x
u

a
l 
O

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

 It
 a

ls
o

 a
p
p

lie
s
 t

o
 M

a
rr

ia
g
e

 a
n

d
 C

iv
il 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 b
u

t 
o
n

ly
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 h

a
v
e

 d
u
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t
o

 t
h
e

 n
e
e

d
 t
o

 e
lim

in
a

te
 

d
is

c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o
n

. 
 P

u
b

lic
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 d
u

ti
e

s
 a

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
: 

 
§
 

P
u

b
lis

h
 b

y
 t

h
e

 3
1

s
t  J

a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
2

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o

 d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 t
h

e
ir
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 g
e
n

e
ra

l 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 d

u
ty

; 
a
n
d

 
§
 

P
re

p
a

re
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lis

h
 b

y
 6

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

2
, 

a
n

d
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
e

v
e

ry
 f

o
u

r 
y
e

a
rs

 
th

e
re

a
ft

e
r 

o
n

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 
 O

u
r 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 

 O
u

r 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 w

e
re

 a
g
re

e
d

 b
y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 4
th
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
2

. 
T

h
e

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 w

e
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 p
ro

d
u

c
in

g
 o

u
r 

S
in

g
le

 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 (

S
E

S
) 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

/d
a

ta
 i
n

 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

‘O
u

r 
H

a
rr

o
w

, 
O

u
r 

S
to

ry
’ 
p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
 i
n
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

2
. 

 
 T

h
e

y
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 i
n

 d
e
p

th
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 o
u

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
, 

s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

, 
p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 a
s
s
is

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 a

im
s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
c
to

r 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 
(P

S
E

D
).

 T
h

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

u
r 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
m

 i
s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 b
y
 a

 n
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 b
y
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
ir
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

  

O
u

r 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

re
 

 §
 

D
e

liv
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 w
e

lc
o

m
in

g
 t

o
 a

ll 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 c
a

p
a
b

le
 o

f 
re

s
p
o

n
d

in
g
 t
o

 t
h
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
n

e
e

d
s
 

a
n

d
 a

s
p

ir
a

ti
o
n

s
 o

u
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

  
§
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 o
u

r 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 r

o
le

 a
n
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

  
§
 

M
in

im
is

e
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

e
q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
 i
n
 t

h
e

 
B

o
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g
  

§
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
im

e
s
 o

f 
e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 

h
a

rd
s
h

ip
  

§
 

P
ro

te
c
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

e
o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 h

a
rm

fu
l 
im

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

c
ri
m

e
, 

a
n

ti
-

s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d

 a
b

u
s
e

  
§
 

M
in

im
is

e
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

b
u

d
g
e

t 
c
u

ts
 o

n
 e

q
u
a

lit
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 (

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
) 

§
 

C
e

le
b

ra
te

 t
h
e

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 s
o

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 i
s
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 c
o

h
e

s
iv

e
 p

la
c
e

 w
h

e
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 a
ll 

c
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 

g
e

t 
o

n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e

th
e

r 
 

§
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t

h
a

t 
fe

e
ls

 v
a

lu
e

d
, 
re

s
p

e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
v
e

 
o
f 

th
e

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 w

e
 s

e
rv

e
  

 O
u

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 i
n
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 o

u
r 

s
e

c
o

n
d

 a
n
n
u

a
l 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o

rt
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 h

o
w

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
o

u
r 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

A
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

re
p

o
rt

in
g
 o

u
r 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 (
A

p
p
e

n
d

ix
 1

) 
it
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
ie

s
 t
o

 d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

 h
o

w
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 u
s
e

d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 d

a
ta

 t
o

 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
 n

e
e

d
, 

e
n

g
a

g
e

 w
it
h

 o
u

r 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

      

156



4
 

 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 

D
e
liv

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 
w

e
lc

o
m

in
g
 
to

 
a
ll 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 
a
n
d
 
a

re
 
c
a

p
a
b
le

 
o
f 

re
s
p
o
n

d
in

g
 

to
 

th
e
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

n
e
e

d
s
 

a
n
d
 

a
s
p
ir

a
ti
o

n
s
 

o
u
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
  

K
e

y
 H

ig
h

lig
h

ts
: 

§
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 u

s
e

rs
 w

h
o

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 
s
e

lf
-d

ir
e

c
te

d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 (
o
f 

a
ll 

c
lie

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

rs
 w

it
h

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 8

5
.1

%
, 

p
la

c
in

g
 u

s
 7

th
 i
n
 L

o
n

d
o

n
, 
o

u
t 
o
f 

3
2

 
B

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 w

it
h

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 d

a
ta

. 
 

§
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 

liv
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 h
o
m

e
s
 o

r 
w

it
h

 f
a
m

ili
e

s
 t

o
 6

9
%

 
§
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

a
d

u
lt
s
 i
n
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 
w

it
h

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tl
y
 w

it
h

 o
r 

w
it
h

o
u

t 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

o
 8

3
.9

%
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

w
a

s
 8

0
%

) 
§
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
o
f 

8
%

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

h
o

m
e

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
s
 a

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
, 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 1

0
%

. 

P
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n

 
R

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
w

h
o

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 a

c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 

B
y
ro

n
 P

a
rk

 D
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
T

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 ‘
p

la
n
n

in
g
 

liv
e
’ 
s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 i
t 

w
a

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 R
 w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

w
id

e
r 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

R
 l
iv

e
s
 i
n

 S
h
a

re
d

 L
iv

e
s
, 

(H
a

rr
o

w
’s

 S
h

a
re

d
 L

iv
e

s
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 r

e
c
ru

it
s
 c

a
re

rs
 w

h
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

o
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d

u
lt
s
 o

r 
fo

r 
th

o
s
e

 w
h

o
 s

tr
u

g
g
le

 o
n

 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

. 
O

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
im

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 a

d
u

lt
 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

h
e

lp
 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 f

u
ll 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l)
, 

a
n

d
 s

o
 i
t 

w
a

s
 d

e
c
id

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

h
e

 w
o

u
ld

 d
ro

p
 o

n
e

 d
a

y
 a

t 
th

e
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 h

is
 s

h
a

re
d

 l
iv

e
s
 c

a
re

r 
w

o
u

ld
 t

a
k
e

 h
im

 h
o

rs
e

 r
id

in
g
. 

R
 r

e
a

lly
 e

n
jo

y
s
 t

h
is

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 e
v
e

ry
 

F
ri
d

a
y
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 h

e
 i
s
 s

p
e

n
d

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
im

e
 w

it
h

 h
is

 b
ro

th
e

r 
g
o

in
g
 o

u
t 

a
n

d
 a

b
o
u

t 
a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

lis
in

g
. 

H
e

 w
a

s
 i
n

v
it
e

d
 t

o
 h

is
 n

e
p
h

e
w

s
 w

e
d

d
in

g
 

a
n

d
 h

a
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
le

x
ib

ili
ty

 a
ro

u
n

d
 h

is
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 h
a

s
 n

o
w

 m
a
d

e
 t
h

is
 r

e
a

lly
 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
. 

R
 i
s
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 t

o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

 l
it
tl
e

 c
o

n
fu

s
e

d
 a

n
d

 s
o

 t
h
e

 d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 t

a
k
in

g
 t
h

is
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
re

 s
ti
m

u
la

ti
n
g
 

R
. 

 R
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 m
e
m

o
ry

 c
lin

ic
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 

a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 h

is
 s

h
a
re

d
 l
iv

e
s
 c

a
re

r 
g
iv

in
g
 

h
im

 r
e
a

l 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
it
y
 i
n

 h
is

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
. 

 T
h

e
 s

h
a

re
d
 l
iv

e
s
 c

a
re

r 
lin

k
s
 u

p
 w

it
h

 
B

y
ro

n
 P

a
rk

 a
n
d

 s
o

 a
ll 

e
n

s
u

re
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 i
n

 R
’s

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
. 

D
is

a
b
le

d
G

o
 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 i
ts

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 
D

is
a

b
le

d
G

o
 a

n
d

 a
n

n
u

a
lly

 
re

v
ie

w
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 A

c
c
e

s
s
 G

u
id

e
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 o

u
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 u

s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 
v
is

it
o

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 u

ti
lis

e
 

H
a

rr
o

w
’s

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 G

u
id

e
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e

m
 e

n
jo

y
 t

h
e

ir
 t

im
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h
. 

T
h
e

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 G

u
id

e
 i
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 D
is

a
b

le
d

G
o
 a

n
d
 

fe
a

tu
re

s
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 1
,0

0
0

 v
e

n
u

e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
te

ls
, 

c
in

e
m

a
s
, 

re
s
ta

u
ra

n
ts

, 
s
o

lic
it
o

rs
 o

ff
ic

e
s
, 
p

u
b

s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
 s

ta
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 n

a
m

e
 a

 f
e

w
. 

 
 D

is
a

b
le

d
G

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 g

u
id

e
s
 t
o

 g
o

o
d

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 a
n

s
w

e
r 

th
e

 e
v
e

ry
d

a
y
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
d

is
a

b
le

d
 

p
e

o
p

le
, 

th
e

ir
 a

s
s
is

ta
n

ts
, 

c
a

re
rs

, 
fa

m
ily

 a
n

d
 f

ri
e
n

d
s
. 
T

h
e

 a
im

 i
s
 t
o

 u
s
e

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 e
m

p
o

w
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
o
 b

re
a

k
 d

o
w

n
 t

h
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 t

o
 

fu
ll 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
. 

 H
e
lp

in
g

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 i
n
to

 m
o

re
 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

 
A

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

S
e

p
te

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

la
u

n
c
h
e

d
 a

 n
e

w
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
h

e
lp

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 
it
s
 

te
n

a
n

ts
 m

o
v
e

 i
n

to
 m

o
re

 s
u

it
a
b

le
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
. 

R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 t

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 i
n

te
re

s
t 
fr

o
m

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

, 
b

u
t 
th

a
t 

th
e

re
 w

a
s
 

a
ls

o
 a

 l
o

t 
o
f 

w
o

rr
y
 a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 u

p
h
e

a
v
a

l 
o

f 
m

o
v
in

g
. 
 

 

157



5
 

T
h
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e

, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 a
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 p
a

c
k
a

g
e

 o
f 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
a

s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

, 
is

 t
a

ilo
re

d
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 t

e
n

a
n
t.

 I
t 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
: 
 

§
 

A
d

v
ic

e
 a

b
o
u

t 
h
o

w
 t

h
e

 m
o

v
e

 m
a

y
 a

ff
e

c
t 
th

e
 t

e
n

a
n

t 
§
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 a
b

o
u
t 

h
e

lp
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 

§
 

A
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 b

u
d

g
e

ti
n

g
 

T
h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
h
e

c
k
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 s

u
re

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 
h

o
m

e
 t
h

e
 t
e

n
a

n
t 

is
 m

o
v
in

g
 t

o
 i
s
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

e
ir
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
’ 
n

e
e

d
s
 

a
n

d
 i
s
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

. 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 t

h
re

e
 w

a
y
s
 t

e
n

a
n

ts
 c

a
n

 b
e

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 t
o

 m
o

v
e

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

ir
 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

h
o

m
e

. 
O

n
e

 o
p

ti
o

n
 i
s
 t
o

 m
o

v
e

 t
o

 s
m

a
lle

r 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

o
r 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
. 

T
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d
 o

p
ti
o

n
 i
s
 t
o

 m
o

v
e

 i
n

to
 a

 p
ri
v
a

te
 

re
n

te
d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 t
h

ir
d

 o
p

ti
o

n
 g

iv
e

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

 t
h
e

 a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 
b

u
y
 a

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
. 

S
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 l
a
u

n
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 t

w
o

 f
a
m

ili
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 m
o

v
e

d
 n

e
a

re
r 

to
 

re
la

ti
v
e

s
 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 U

K
. 
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
a
re

n
ti
n

g
 r

o
le

 
a
n
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

  

K
e

y
 H

ig
h

lig
h

ts
: 

§
 

9
8

%
 o

f 
1
6

 –
 1

8
 y

e
a

rs
 o

ld
s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 o

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
(N

E
E

T
).

 T
h

is
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

ra
te

 o
f 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o
n

 (
lo

w
e

s
t 

N
E

E
T

) 
in

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 

 
W

o
o

d
la

n
d
 A

d
v
e

n
tu

re
, 

F
o

re
s
t 

S
c
h
o

o
l 
 

H
a

rr
o

w
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

t 
A

ll 
S

a
in

t’
s
 

C
h

u
rc

h
, 

H
a

rr
o

w
 W

e
a

ld
  

in
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 
E

n
h

a
n

c
in

g
 A

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
, 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

H
a

rr
o

w
 

C
o

u
n

c
il.

 T
h
e

 l
a

rg
e

 w
o

o
d

la
n

d
 o

n
 s

it
e

 m
a

k
e

s
 a

n
 i
d

e
a

l 
v
e

n
u

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

lin
k
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 v

ic
a

r 
to

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h
e

 c
h
u

rc
h

 a
s
 a

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 v

e
n

u
e

. 
F

o
re

s
t 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 
g
e

n
e

ro
u

s
ly

 f
u

n
d
e

d
 b

y
 J

o
h

n
 L

y
o

n
’s

 C
h

a
ri
ty

. 
 F

o
re

s
t 

S
c
h
o

o
l 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 s

tu
d
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 o

f 
le

a
rn

in
g
 i
n

 a
n

 
e

x
c
it
in

g
 o

u
td

o
o

r 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 d

e
s
ti
n

a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
ir
 

le
a

rn
in

g
 a

lt
h
o

u
g
h

 a
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
E

v
a

lu
a

ti
o
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
s
tu

d
e
n

ts
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e

a
c
h

 s
e

s
s
io

n
 (

w
h

a
t 

w
e

n
t 

w
e

ll 
a

n
d

 w
h

a
t 

n
e

e
d

s
 

to
 b

e
 r

e
v
is

it
e

d
) 

in
fo

rm
s
 t

h
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 f

o
r 

c
o
n

s
e
c
u

ti
v
e

 w
e

e
k
s
. 

M
a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tu
d
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 l
o

w
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
le

v
e

ls
 a

n
d

 F
o

re
s
t 

S
c
h
o

o
l 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 

th
e
m

 w
it
h

 a
 s

e
n

s
e

 o
f 

s
e

lf
-w

o
rt

h
 a

n
d

 a
 s

e
n

s
e

 o
f 

b
e

lo
n

g
in

g
. 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 w
a

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 c

h
ild

re
n

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
y
 s

e
tt

lin
g
 i
n

 m
a

in
s
tr

e
a
m

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 m
a
n

y
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
o

 s
e

n
d

 
g
ro

u
p

s
 o

f 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 c

h
ild

re
n

, 
s
o

m
e

 o
f 

w
h

o
m

 h
a

v
e

 p
ro

fo
u

n
d

 
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
. 

C
o
u

rs
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
m

a
tu

re
 s

tu
d
e

n
ts

 
e

m
b
a

rk
in

g
 o

n
 c

a
re

e
rs

 i
n

 c
h

ild
c
a

re
, 
fa

m
ily

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 t
a

s
te

r 
d

a
y
s
 f

o
r 

a
d
u

lt
s
 i
n

te
re

s
te

d
 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 s

im
ila

r 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

s
. 

 T
e
a

c
h

e
rs

’ 
fe

e
d
b

a
c
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 v
e

ry
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 f
o

c
u

s
e

s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 

o
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
  

a
tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

, 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
in

te
ra

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
p

e
e

rs
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 F
o

re
s
t 

S
c
h
o

o
l 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

P
u

p
ils

 t
e

n
d

 t
o
 h

a
v
e

 
fe

w
e

r 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
ra

l 
in

c
id

e
n

c
e

s
 a

n
d
 s

h
o

w
 m

o
re

 w
ill

in
g
n

e
s
s
 t

o
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
ta

k
in

g
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 F
o

re
s
t 

S
c
h

o
o

l 

   

158



6
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 

M
in

im
is

e
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o

n
 h

e
a

lt
h
 

in
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
  

K
e

y
 H

ig
h

lig
h

ts
: 

§
 

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 p

re
v
e

n
te

d
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e

s
s
 i
n

 1
5
4

9
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

w
a

s
 

1
2

5
0

) 
c
a

s
e

s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

 
§
 

M
a

in
ta

in
e
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

w
o

m
e

n
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 i
n

 p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 t

o
 

u
n

d
e

r 
5

%
 (

a
c
tu

a
l 
fi
g
u

re
 w

a
s
 4

.6
%

) 
§
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 1

8
9

 (
ta

rg
e

t 
w

a
s
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
1

5
0

) 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
 (

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
, 
a

d
u

lt
s
 w

it
h

 a
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 o

r 
c
a

re
rs

 o
f 

th
o

s
e

 
w

it
h

 a
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
) 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 H

o
u

s
e

 w
a

rm
e

rs
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

F
ru

it
a
b
le

s
  

In
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

, 
a
 n

e
w

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 i
n

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

 P
a

re
n

ts
 

h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
e

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 s
e

t 
u
p

 
fr

u
it
 a

n
d

 v
e

g
 s

ta
lls

 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
la

y
g
ro

u
n

d
s
 

o
f 

fo
u

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
. 

 T
h

e
ir
 a

im
 

is
 s

im
p

le
, 
to

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 e

x
c
e

s
s
 w

e
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 g

e
t 
m

o
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 e

a
ti
n

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 

fo
o

d
s
. 

 T
o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 
c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t
o

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 h

o
w

 t
o

 c
o

o
k
 

J
a

m
ie

 O
liv

e
r 

in
s
p

ir
e

d
, 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 m

e
a

ls
 

u
s
in

g
 f

ru
it
 a

n
d

 v
e

g
e

ta
b
le

s
, 

ta
k
in

g
 

a
c
c
re

d
it
e
d

 c
o
u

rs
e

s
 i
n

 f
o

o
d

 h
y
g
ie

n
e

 a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 

a
re

 a
ls

o
 c

o
m

m
it
ti
n

g
 t

o
 s

e
t 

u
p

 t
h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 f
o

o
d

 b
a

s
e

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 t
o

 
s
p

re
a

d
 t
h

e
 w

o
rd

 f
u

rt
h

e
r.

 I
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
n

ts
 g

e
t 

v
o

u
c
h
e

rs
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

y
 c

a
n

 e
x
c
h

a
n

g
e

 f
o

r 
fr

u
it
 a

n
d

 v
e

g
e

ta
b

le
s
 t
h
e

m
s
e

lv
e

s
. 

 

 T
h
e

 F
ru

it
a
b

le
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

it
ia

te
d

 a
n

d
 

is
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h
 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 i
s
 

b
e

in
g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 T

h
ir
d

 
S

e
c
to

r 
P

o
te

n
ti
a

l,
 C

IC
 i
n

 
c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
p

a
re

n
t 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
, 

th
e

ir
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o
ls

. 
R

u
n

n
in

g
 i
n

it
ia

lly
 f

o
r 

th
e

 w
in

te
r 

te
rm

, 
th

e
 p

la
n

 
is

 f
o

r 
s
ta

lls
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 r
ig

h
t 

a
s
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

s
. 

W
it
h

 t
ra

in
in

g
, 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
, 

c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 e

n
th

u
s
ia

s
m

 a
n
d

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o
n

 
fr

o
m

 p
a

re
n
ts

 t
h

e
 F

ru
it
a
b

le
s
 i
s
 s

u
re

 t
o

 b
e

c
o
m

e
 a

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
. 

  
 H

a
rr

o
w

 H
e
a

lt
h
 W

a
lk

s
 

 

T
h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

 W
a
lk

s
 

a
re

 l
e

d
 b

y
 q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
w

a
lk

 
le

a
d

e
rs

 a
n

d
 e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 i
s
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 r

e
g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f 
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 f

it
n

e
s
s
 l
e

v
e

l.
 

 
§
 

B
e

g
in

n
e

r 
&

 i
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 w
a

lk
s
 i
n

 P
in

n
e

r 
M

e
m

o
ri
a

l 
P

a
rk

 e
v
e

ry
 

T
h
u

rs
d

a
y
  

§
 

 
§
 

N
o

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
- 

fr
e

e
 t
o

 a
tt
e

n
d

, 
n

o
 s

p
e

c
ia

l 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 n

o
 b

o
o

k
in

g
 

§
 

P
a

ti
e

n
ts

 c
a
n

 b
e

g
in

 e
x
e

rc
is

in
g
 s

lo
w

ly
 w

it
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
ro

m
 W

a
lk

 L
e

a
d

e
rs

 
§
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
B

e
n

e
fi
ts

- 
m

e
e

ti
n
g
 l
ik

e
-m

in
d

e
d

 p
e
o

p
le

 
§
 

 

159



7
 

T
iz

a
rd

 R
e
s
e

a
rc

h
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
- 

T
a

c
k
lin

g
 

O
b
e
s
it
y
 a

n
d
 D

ia
b

e
te

s
 

F
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
a

 d
a
n

c
e

, 
m

u
s
ic

a
l-

th
e

a
tr

e
 a

n
d

 s
in

g
in

g
 m

a
s
te

r 
c
la

s
s
 f

o
r 

u
s
e

rs
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
, 
th

e
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

h
a

v
e

 
o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 a
 s

e
ri
e

s
 o

f 
c
la

s
s
e

s
. 
T

h
e

 T
iz

a
rd

 C
e

n
tr

e
 (

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
K

e
n

t)
 

fu
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 K
in

g
s
 F

u
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

in
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

la
s
s
e

s
 r

u
n
 b

y
 

H
a

rr
o

w
. 

T
h

e
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 w
o

rk
 w

o
u

ld
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 t

h
e

 b
e

n
e
fi
ts

 f
o

r 
p

e
o
p

le
 

w
it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
n

 
o

b
e

s
it
y
 a

n
d
 d

ia
b

e
te

s
. 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 

S
u
p
p

o
rt

 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
in

 t
im

e
s
 o

f 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 h

a
rd

s
h

ip
  

K
e

y
 H

ig
h

lig
h

ts
: 

§
 

W
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 j
o

b
 b

ro
k
e
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

a
t 

2
0

3
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

w
a

s
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

8
0

) 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n

to
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

 
§
 

W
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
rv

iv
a

l,
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 g

ro
w

th
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 

6
3

2
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

w
a

s
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

5
0
0

) 
H

a
rr

o
w

 e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
rs

 a
n

d
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
  

§
 

1
9

.6
%

 (
ta

rg
e

t 
w

a
s
 1

8
.5

%
) 
o
f 

a
d
u
lt
s 

w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s 

w
e
re

 
in

 p
a
id

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

. 
T

h
is

 p
la

c
e

d
 u

s
 2

n
d
 i
n

 L
o
n

d
o
n

, 
o

u
t 
o
f 

3
1

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 w

it
h

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 d

a
ta

. 
  

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
t 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 l
a
s
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
t 

D
is

tr
ic

t.
 

T
h

is
 w

o
rk

 e
n

d
e

d
 w

it
h

 a
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
b

a
llo

t 
–

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 a

n
n

o
u

n
c
e

d
 o

n
 1

3
th

 D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

. 
 

T
h
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 B

ID
 w

ill
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 s
ta

rt
 a

t 
th

e
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
3

. 
T

h
e

 B
ID

 w
ill

 b
e

 f
u

n
d
e

d
 b

y
 a

 l
e

v
y
 o

n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 l
o

c
a

te
d

 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 B
ID

 a
re

a
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 m
o

n
e

y
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
: 
 

§
 

D
e

liv
e

r 
a

 s
a

fe
r,

 c
le

a
n

e
r 

a
n

d
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

§
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 H
a

rr
o

w
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

§
 

A
s
s
is

t 
in

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
c
o

s
ts

 
§
 

H
e

lp
 d

ri
v
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 t
h
e

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
e

e
t 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

§
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 v
o

ic
e

 f
o

r 
b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
  

 
X

c
it
e

 P
ro

je
c
t 

In
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
re

fe
rr

e
d

 M
rs

 G
 t

o
 X

c
it
e

. 
T

h
e

 s
h

a
k
e

 
u

p
 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

h
o

le
 W

e
lf
a

re
 s

y
s
te

m
 m

e
a

n
t 

M
rs

 G
 w

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 £
5

0
0
 p

e
r 

m
o
n

th
 w

o
rs

e
 o

ff
 b

e
c
a
u

s
e

 o
f 

B
e

n
e
fi
t 

C
a

p
s
 i
f 

s
h

e
 c

o
u

ld
n

’t
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 f
in

d
 w

o
rk

. 
N

o
w

 a
g
e

d
 5

2
, 
w

it
h

 4
 c

h
ild

re
n

, 
M

rs
 

G
 h

a
d

 n
e

v
e

r 
w

o
rk

e
d

 o
u

ts
id

e
 t
h

e
 h

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 s
h

e
 h

a
d
 b

e
e

n
 

liv
in

g
 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 
8

 y
e

a
rs

 c
o

u
ld

 s
p
e

a
k
 o

n
ly

 a
 f

e
w

 w
o

rd
s
 o

f 
E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 h

e
a

v
ily

 d
e

p
e

n
d
a

n
t 

o
n
 h

e
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 t

o
 t

ra
n

s
la

te
. 

 ‘’I
 c

a
m

e
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 m

y
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
s
ta

tu
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 g
e

t 
h

e
lp

 g
e
tt

in
g
 a

 
jo

b
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 m
y
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
. 

M
y
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

d
v
is

e
r 

s
u

g
g
e

s
te

d
 I

 a
tt

e
n

d
 t
h

e
 W

o
rk

 C
lu

b
 a

n
d

 h
e

lp
e

d
 m

e
 t

o
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
v
a

c
a
n

c
ie

s
 

fo
r 

K
it
c
h
e

n
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

ts
/C

le
a

n
in

g
 J

o
b

s
. 
A

ft
e

r 
th

is
 I

 w
e

n
t 
to

 a
 f

e
w

 
re

s
ta

u
ra

n
ts

 b
u

t 
th

e
y
 a

ll 
w

a
n

te
d

 s
o

m
e

o
n
e

 w
it
h

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

”.
 

 M
y
 a

d
v
is

e
r 

a
ls

o
 s

u
g
g

e
s
te

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
re

ta
il,

 s
o

 I
 w

e
n

t 
to

 a
 c

o
u
p

le
 o

f 
th

e
 

lo
c
a

l 
s
h

o
p

s
 a

n
d

 w
a

s
 o

ff
e

re
d

 a
 c

le
a
n

in
g
 j
o

b
. 
O

n
e

 s
h
o

p
 o

w
n

e
r 

o
ff

e
re

d
 

m
e

 a
 j
o

b
 b

u
t 

h
a

d
 s

e
c
o
n

d
 t
h

o
u
g

h
ts

 i
n

 c
a

s
e

 I
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

e
lig

ib
le

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 
th

is
 c

o
u
n

tr
y
, 

a
n

d
 h

e
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 l
ia

b
le

 f
o

r 
a

 f
in

e
. 

I 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 h
im

 w
it
h

 
p

ro
o

f 
a

n
d
 a

ll 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 b
u

t 
h
e

 w
a

s
 s

ti
ll 

in
 d

o
u

b
t.
 I

 
c
o

n
ta

c
te

d
 m

y
 a

d
v
is

e
r 

a
g

a
in

 a
n
d

 s
h
e

 p
e

rs
o

n
a
lly

 c
o

n
ta

c
te

d
 h

im
 a

n
d

 
s
e

n
t 
a

 l
e

tt
e

r 
o

n
 h

e
a

d
e

d
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

n
o

te
 p

a
p

e
r 

to
 r

e
a

s
s
u

re
 h

im
 a

ll 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 h

a
d
 b

e
e

n
 c

h
e

c
k
e

d
 a

n
d

 f
o

u
n
d

 t
o

 b
e

 g
e

n
u

in
e
 

160



8
 

S
o

m
e

 p
h

o
n
e

 c
a

lls
 l
a
te

r 
h

e
 w

a
s
 c

o
n

v
in

c
e

d
 a

n
d
 I

 h
a

v
e

 n
o
w

 s
ta

rt
e

d
 

w
o

rk
. 

I 
a

m
 s

o
 g

la
d

 t
h
a

t 
I 

c
a

m
e

 t
o

 s
e
e

k
 h

e
lp

 f
ro

m
 “

X
c
it
e

. 
 I

t 
h
a

d
 m

a
d
e

 
m

e
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 r
e

a
lly

 h
a

p
p

y
. 

N
o
 m

o
re

 v
is

it
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 J

o
b

 C
e
n

tr
e

”.
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 

P
ro

te
c
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e

o
p

le
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 

h
a
rm

fu
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
, 

a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e

h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d

 
a
b
u
s
e
  

K
e

y
 H

ig
h

lig
h

ts
: 

§
 

9
9

.5
 %

 o
f 

s
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h

ts
 w

e
re

 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
in

g
  

§
 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 9

 (
ta

rg
e

t 
w

a
s
 8

) 
a

c
ti
v
e

 p
a

rk
 u

s
e

r 
g
ro

u
p

s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

 
T

h
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 S
h
ie

ld
 p

ro
je

c
t 

 
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t,
 f

u
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 M

O
P

A
C

, 
is

 a
b

o
u
t 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 a

n
d

 
p

re
v
e

n
ti
n

g
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

w
o

m
e
n

 a
n

d
 g

ir
ls

 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
. 

 T
h
e

 k
e

y
 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
 i
s
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 
g
ir
ls

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g
 w

o
m

e
n

 f
ro

m
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 

v
ic

ti
m

s
, 

a
n

d
 b

o
y
s
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g
 m

e
n

 f
ro

m
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 t

h
e
 p

e
rp

e
tr

a
to

rs
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

n
d

 s
e

x
u

a
l 
v
io

le
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 a
b

u
s
e
. 

 T
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
ta

rg
e

ts
 1

3
-1

9
 

y
e

a
r 

o
ld

 b
o

y
s
 a

n
d

 g
ir
ls

 a
n

d
 i
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 T

h
e

 W
IS

H
 C

e
n

tr
e

 w
it
h

 a
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 r

a
p
e

 a
n

d
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
v
io

le
n

c
e

. 
  

 T
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
o

rk
s
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

e
tt

in
g
s
 –

 a
s
s
e
m

b
lie

s
 

fo
r 

a
ll 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

; 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 f

o
r 

g
ir
ls

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 a
s
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
v
io

le
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 b

o
y
s
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 m

e
n

 w
h

o
 a

re
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 

p
e

rp
e

tr
a

to
rs

; 
P

e
rs

o
n
a

l,
 S

o
c
ia

l,
 a

n
d
 H

e
a

lt
h

 E
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 l
e

s
s
o
n

s
, 

Y
o

u
th

 
O

ff
e

n
d

in
g
 T

e
a
m

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 t

e
a

c
h

in
g
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t,
 r

ig
h

ts
, 

c
o

n
s
e
n

t,
 l
e

g
a

l 
is

s
u
e

s
, 
a

s
s
e

rt
iv

e
n

e
s
s
, 

a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
. 

 T
h

e
s
e

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 t
e
e

n
a

g
e

rs
 t
o

 r
e

-t
h

in
k
 t
h

e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

v
io

le
n

c
e

, 
a

b
u

s
e

 o
r 

c
o

n
tr

o
lli

n
g
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 d
ir
e

c
t 

th
e
m

 t
o
 p

la
c
e

s
 f

o
r 

h
e

lp
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
. 

 A
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 a
ls

o
 g

iv
e

s
 t

e
e

n
a

g
e

rs
 

th
e

 c
h

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 t
h

e
s
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
ir
 p

e
e

rs
 a

n
d

 g
e

t 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 

to
 t

h
ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
. 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 m
a
te

ri
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
te

e
n
a

g
e

rs
. 

  
 A

ft
e

r 
a
n

 e
v
e

n
t 
a

t 
N

o
w

e
r 

H
ill

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
in

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1
4

, 
a

 s
u

rv
e

y
 o

f 
y
e

a
r 

1
0

 p
u

p
ils

 f
o
u

n
d

 t
h
a

t:
  

 
·
 

8
3

%
 s

a
id

 t
h
e

ir
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 m

e
a
n

in
g

 o
f 

c
o
n

s
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
. 

 

·
 

9
0

%
 s

a
id

 t
h
e

ir
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
s
e

x
u

a
l 
e

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
. 

 

·
 

9
9

%
 s

a
id

 t
h
e

y
 a

re
 m

o
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

s
o

m
e
o

n
e

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 i
n
te

rn
e

t.
 

 

·
 

7
5

%
 s

a
id

 t
h
e

ir
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
ti
n

g
 o

f 
w

a
y
s
 t

o
 s

ta
y
 s

a
fe

 
o

n
lin

e
/d

ig
it
a

lly
 h

a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

. 
 

·
 

8
7

%
 s

a
id

 t
h
e

y
 k

n
o

w
 w

h
e

re
 t
o

 g
e

t 
h
e

lp
 i
f 

th
e

y
 n

e
e
d

e
d

 i
t.

 

 
C

a
s
e
 S

tu
d

y
: 

A
u

tu
m

n
 

N
ig

h
ts

 C
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 

 In
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
, 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
b

u
rg

la
ry

 
w

a
s
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

v
o

lu
m

e
 c

ri
m

e
 i
n

 
H

a
rr

o
w

. 
 A

s
 a

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
a

ll 
c
ri
m

e
, 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
b

u
rg

la
ry

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 1

4
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

c
ri
m

e
 i
n

 
H

a
rr

o
w

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
a

ll 
th

e
 L

o
n

d
o
n

 
M

e
tr

o
p

o
lit

a
n

 P
o

lic
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
. 

 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

s
 a

 
w

h
o

le
, 

o
u

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
b

u
rg

la
ry

 

161



9
 

fi
g
u

re
 w

a
s
 b

e
lo

w
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 a
n

d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 r
a

n
k
e

d
 1

7
th

 i
n

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
b

u
rg

la
ry

. 
 N

o
n

e
th

e
le

s
s
, 
b

u
rg

la
ry

 h
a

s
 a

 h
ig

h
 p

ro
fi
le

 l
o

c
a

lly
 

a
n

d
 n

e
e
d

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
. 

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
b

u
rg

la
ri
e

s
 s

h
o
w

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

 
s
h

a
rp

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
to

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 e
a

c
h

 y
e
a

r.
  
T

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 t
w

o
 

m
a

in
 f
a

c
to

rs
 t

h
a

t 
c
o
n

tr
ib

u
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

is
 t
re

n
d
. 

 F
ir
s
t,

 w
it
h

 i
t 

g
e

tt
in

g
 d

a
rk

 
e

a
rl
ie

r,
 t

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 m
o

re
 p

ro
p
e

rt
ie

s
 t
h

a
t 
w

e
re

 o
b

v
io

u
s
ly

 u
n

o
c
c
u

p
ie

d
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 e
a

rl
y
 e

v
e

n
in

g
 g

iv
in

g
 b

u
rg

la
rs

 a
 g

o
o

d
 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 

w
e

re
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 d
is

tu
rb

e
d

 a
n
d

, 
s
e

c
o

n
d

ly
, 

th
e

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d
 

w
it
h

 D
iw

a
li,

 t
h

e
 F

e
s
ti
v
a

l 
o
f 

L
ig

h
ts

, 
fo

r 
H

in
d
u

s
 t
o

 w
e

a
r 

th
e

ir
 b

e
s
t 

o
u

tf
it
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 j
e

w
e

lle
ry

 t
h

a
t 
m

ig
h

t 
o

th
e

rw
is

e
 b

e
 k

e
p

t 
in

 a
 b

a
n

k
 o

r 
s
a
fe

. 
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
u

rg
la

rs
 w

it
h

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 i
n
c
e

n
ti
v
e

. 
 T

o
 c

o
m

b
a
t 

th
is

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 t
h
e

 P
o

lic
e

 o
b
ta

in
e
d

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

M
a

y
o

r’
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 f
o

r 
P

o
lic

in
g
 a

n
d

 C
ri
m

e
 f

o
r 

a
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 t
o

 a
le

rt
 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 a

p
p
e

a
ri
n

g
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
o

c
c
u

p
ie

d
 

a
n

d
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

im
e
 s

w
it
c
h

e
s
 w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t

o
 g

iv
e

 t
h

e
 

im
p

re
s
s
io

n
 t

h
a

t 
s
o
m

e
o
n

e
 w

a
s
 h

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 v
a

lu
a
b

le
 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 a

t 
th

is
 t

im
e

 o
f 
y
e

a
r.

 A
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 
w

a
s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 

to
 D

iw
a

li.
 

T
h

is
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o

 1
3

.8
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
b
u

rg
la

ry
 i
n

 
th

e
 1

2
 m

o
n

th
s
 t
o

 S
e

p
te

m
b
e

r 
2
0

1
4

. 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 

M
in

im
is

e
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
b
u
d

g
e

t 
c
u

ts
 o

n
 

e
q
u
a
lit

y
 g

ro
u
p
s
 (

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
) 

K
e

y
 H

ig
h

lig
h

ts
: 

 
§
 

R
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 o

u
r 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
(E

q
IA

) 
T

o
o

lk
it
 i
n

 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 i
t 
w

a
s
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

§
 

D
e

liv
e

re
d

 E
q
IA

 t
ra

in
in

g
/w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
 f

o
r 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

, 
m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 a

n
d

 
s
ta

ff
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

§
 

In
c
lu

d
e

d
 e

q
u
a

lit
y
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
 

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 d
ri
v
e

n
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 I

m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

 B
e

rn
ie

 B
e

c
k
e

tt
, 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

le
a
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

lis
e

d
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 S
c
h

e
m

e
, 

te
lls

 u
s
 a

b
o
u

t 
h

e
r 

e
x
p
e

ri
e

n
c
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
 t

h
e

 E
q

IA
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 
 “D

u
e

 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g
, 

w
e

 w
e

re
 f

a
c
e

d
 w

it
h

 s
o

m
e
 v

e
ry

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 i
n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 o

u
r 

L
o

c
a

lis
e
d

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

c
h

e
m

e
. 
 

W
e
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 u
s
e

d
 a

 m
u

lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 
th

e
 E

q
IA

 t
o

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 c

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 o
n

 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

. 
 

It
 d

o
e

s
 t
a

k
e

 t
im

e
 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

 c
o

rr
e

c
t 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
; 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 m
a

n
y
 

b
e

n
e
fi
ts

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

. 
 T

h
is

 j
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 h

e
lp

e
d

 u
s
 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 
th

e
 e

ff
e

c
ts

 o
f 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 o

n
 o

u
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

ta
ff

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 I
t 

w
a

s
 a

 h
u

g
e

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 
o

u
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

, 
a

n
d

 t
h
e

ir
 h

e
lp

 h
a

s
 p

ro
v
e

d
 i
n

v
a

lu
a

b
le

 
in

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 w

e
 t

a
lk

e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
 o

f 
p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 a
s
k
e

d
 t
h

e
 

ri
g
h

t 
q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 s
u

re
 w

e
 g

o
t 

a
n

 i
n

-d
e
p

th
 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
f 

o
u

r 
p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 

th
e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
. 

 B
y
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 i
n
 t

h
is

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
, 

it
 a

ls
o

 h
e

lp
e

d
 u

s
 t
o

 
e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
a

b
o
u

t 
a

ll 
th

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
w

a
y
s
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 c

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
n

d
 g

a
v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 u

s
e

rs
 a

n
 u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
w

h
y
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

. 
 

W
o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
d

e
 u

s
 r

e
a

lis
e

 t
h

a
t,

 a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 w
e

 m
a

y
 h

a
v
e

 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 f
o

r 
a

 l
o

n
g
 t

im
e

, 
it
 d

o
e

s
n
’t
 m

e
a

n
 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 h
o

w
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 w

ill
 a

ff
e

c
t 
o

u
r 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
. 

 W
e
 c

a
n

 
o

n
ly

 r
e

a
lly

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
b

y
 t

a
lk

in
g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
, 

s
ta

ff
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
o

s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

162



1
0
 

a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
s
e

 g
ro

u
p

s
 o

f 
p

e
o
p

le
. 
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 d

ri
v
e

n
 E

q
IA

s
 

a
re

 a
ls

o
 a

n
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 w
a

y
 o

f 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

n
d

 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 c

a
n

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 u
s
 t

o
 c

o
-d

e
s
ig

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
”.

 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d
 C

h
a
lle

n
g
e

 
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 a
ll 

c
o
m

p
e
te

d
 E

q
IA

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

s
s
u

re
d

 a
n

d
 

s
ig

n
e

d
 o

ff
 b

y
 t

h
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u

p
s
, 
a

 
s
a

m
p

le
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
. 

In
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
o

u
r 

E
q
IA

's
 a

n
d

 
e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 s

ta
n
d

 u
p

 t
o
 p

u
b

lic
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d

 
c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

, 
a

 r
a

n
d

o
m

ly
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 
E

q
IA

's
 a

re
 ‘
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u

re
d

’ 
b

y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 C

e
n

tr
e
 (

H
E

C
).

  

A
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti
v
e

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 H

E
C

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 v

e
rb

a
l 
a

n
d

 w
ri
tt

e
n

 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 E

q
IA

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 G

ro
u

p
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

th
e

n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 l
e

a
d

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

E
q
IA

s
 f

o
r 

le
a

rn
in

g
 

a
n

d
 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

E
q
IA

s
. 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 

C
e
le

b
ra

te
 t

h
e
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 s
o
 t
h
e

 
B

o
ro

u
g
h
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 c
o
h

e
s
iv

e
 p

la
c
e
 w

h
e

re
 

p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 g

e
t 
o
n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e

th
e
r 

 

K
e

y
 H

ig
h

lig
h

ts
: 

 
§
 

7
9

%
 p

e
o
p

le
 b

e
lie

v
e

 p
e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
 g

e
t 

o
n

 w
e

ll 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
(I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
T

ra
c
k
e

r)
 

§
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 t

h
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

o
u

r 
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
c
a

le
n
d

a
r 

a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

e
n
 e

v
e

n
ts

  

D
e
a
f 

A
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 D

a
y
 

In
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4

 H
a

rr
o

w
 A

s
ia

n
 D

e
a
f 

C
lu

b
, 

(N
o

w
 

H
a

rr
o

w
 U

n
it
e

d
 D

e
a
f 

C
lu

b
) 

o
rg

a
n

is
e

d
 a

 d
e

a
f 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 d

a
y
, 

b
ri
n

g
in

g
 l
o

c
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
u

n
d

e
r 

o
n

e
 r

o
o
f 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 d
e
a
f 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

a
f 

p
e

o
p

le
’s

 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

T
h
e

 t
h
e

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 d
a

y
 w

a
s
 c

a
lle

d
 '
L

o
o

k
 A

t 
M

e
' 

a
n

d
 a

im
e

d
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
d

e
a
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 r
a

is
e

 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 h

u
g
e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 d

e
a
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 f
a

m
ily

 a
n

d
 f

ri
e

n
d

s
. 
T

h
e

 e
v
e

n
t 
w

a
s
 h

o
s
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
c
o

u
n

c
il.

 
 

U
n
d
e

r 
O

n
e
 S

k
y

 
H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 l
a

rg
e

s
t 

o
u

td
o

o
r 

fe
s
ti
v
a

l 
w

a
s
 

h
e

ld
 i
n
 B

y
ro

n
 P

a
rk

 i
n

 J
u

n
e

 
2

0
1
3

. 
T

h
e

 f
e

s
ti
v
a

l 
is

 a
 

s
h

o
w

c
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
w

o
rl
d

 m
u
s
ic

, 
v
is

u
a

l 
a

rt
s
, 

s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 o

f 
a

ll 
a

g
e

s
 

a
n

d
 c

u
lt
u

re
s
. 
T

h
e

 f
e

s
ti
v
a

l 
a

ls
o

 o
ff

e
re

d
 a

 
w

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
 f

ro
m

 
e

x
p

e
rt

s
 i
n

 t
o
p

ic
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll 

b
e

in
g
, 

h
o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t.
 T

h
is

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

v
e

n
t 

b
ro

u
g
h

t 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 9

0
0

0
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
y
 c

a
n

 s
h

a
re

 t
h
e

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 i
n
 

a
 d

a
y
 o

f 
c
e

le
b

ra
ti
o

n
s
. 
 

 A
s
h

 O
b
e

ro
i,
 A

rt
is

ti
c
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
fo

r 
S

a
p
n

a
y
 D

a
n

c
e

 s
a

id
 "

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 a
t 

U
n
d

e
r 

O
n

e
 S

k
y
 b

e
fo

re
 a

n
d

 i
t's

 a
 g

re
a
t 

fe
s
ti
v
a

l.
 I

t's
 a

n
 

e
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
w

a
y
 o

f 
s
h

o
w

c
a

s
in

g
 o

u
rs

e
lv

e
s
 a

n
d
 l
e

tt
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 k
n
o

w
 w

h
a

t 

163



1
1
 

w
e

 d
o

. 
It

's
 a

ls
o

 g
re

a
t 

fo
r 

o
p

e
n

in
g
 d

o
o

rs
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

E
v
e

ry
b

o
d

y
 h

a
s
 a

 l
o
t 

o
f 
fu

n
 a

n
d
 i
t 

re
a

lly
 a

llo
w

s
 y

o
u

 t
o

 g
e

t 
to

 k
n
o

w
 o

n
e
 

a
n

o
th

e
r 

- 
it
 c

re
a

te
s
 "

c
o
m

m
u

n
a

l 
h

a
rm

o
n

y
."

 

B
la

c
k
 H

is
to

ry
 M

o
n
th

 Y
o
u
th

 O
p
p
o

rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 h
a

d
 a

 c
h
a
n

c
e

 t
o

 
g
e

t 
c
re

a
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 w

in
 p

ri
z
e

s
 b

y
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 
v
a

ri
o

u
s
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
B

la
c
k
 H

is
to

ry
 M

o
n

th
. 

 
O

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 b
y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 B
la

c
k
 H

is
to

ry
 M

o
n

th
, 

th
e

 e
v
e

n
t 
to

o
k
 p

la
c
e

 
d

u
ri
n

g
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
to

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 a
n

d
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
g
e

d
 1

3
-1

7
 

w
e

re
 i
n

v
it
e

d
 t

o
 t
a

k
e
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 t
h

re
e

 c
o
m

p
e

ti
ti
o

n
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 t
h

e
m

e
 o

f 
A

fr
ic

a
n

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 c
iv

il 
ri
g
h

ts
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 1

9
6

0
’s

. 

T
h
e

 c
o
m

p
e

ti
ti
o

n
 t

h
e

m
e
s
 w

e
re

 a
n

 e
s
s
a

y
 w

ri
ti
n

g
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o

n
; 

a
 

c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
v
e

 s
p
o

k
e

n
 w

o
rd

 o
r 

ra
p
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 o

r 
a

 p
o

e
m

 r
e

c
it
a

l 
w

it
h

 
p

ri
z
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 w

in
n

e
rs

 b
y
 t

h
e
 M

a
y
o

r 
o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

. 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
h

a
t 
fe

e
ls

 v
a

lu
e
d
, 

re
s
p
e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 w

e
 s

e
rv

e
  

K
e

y
 H

ig
h

lig
h

ts
: 

§
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 a
 S

ta
ff

 M
a

k
in

g
 a

 D
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 G
ro

u
p
 

(M
A

D
G

) 
§
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 t

h
e

 M
A

D
G

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 M
u

lt
i-
F

a
it
h

 Q
u

ie
t 

R
o

o
m

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 

§
 

W
e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
h
e

 t
o

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e

a
rn

e
rs

 w
h

o
 a

re
 w

o
m

e
n

 t
o

 5
2

.9
9

%
 

(t
a

rg
e

t 
w

a
s
 5

0
%

) 

 

M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

T
h
e

 M
a

k
in

g
 a

 D
if
fe

re
n
c
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
w

a
s
 s

e
t 

u
p

 i
n

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

ta
ff

 s
u

rv
e

y
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
n

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

. 
 

T
h
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 t

o
 e

n
g
a

g
e

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
d

e
a

s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 s
ta

ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 A

n
n
u

a
l 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
n

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 m

a
k
e

 a
 r

e
a

l 
d

if
fe

re
n

c
e
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 
a

ls
o

 c
o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 o

u
r 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 t
o

 ‘
D

e
v

e
lo

p
 a

 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t

h
a

t 
fe

e
ls

 v
a

lu
e

d
, 
re

s
p

e
c

te
d

 a
n

d
 i

s
 r

e
fl

e
c

ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
d

iv
e

rs
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 w

e
 s

e
rv

e
’.

  
 A

 M
a

k
in

g
 a

 D
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 g
ro

u
p

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 m

o
n

it
o
r 

th
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 a
c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 a

n
d

 f
e

e
d
b

a
c
k
 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 G

ro
u
p

. 

 
C

a
s
e

 S
tu

d
y
: 

L
e
a

d
e
rs

h
ip

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
  

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 L

e
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 M
a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 i
n

 
A

u
g
u

s
t 

2
0

1
4
 a

n
d

 i
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
o
u

r 
le

a
d

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 f
u

tu
re

 (
o
f 

w
h

a
te

v
e

r 
g
ra

d
e

) 
a

re
 e

q
u

ip
p

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
is

 n
e

w
 e

ra
 o

f 
p
u

b
lic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

h
e

re
 'a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 m

o
re

 w
it
h

 l
e

s
s
' 

b
e

c
o
m

e
s
 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

o
u

r 
le

a
d

e
rs

. 
 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 e

q
u

ip
 o

u
r 

le
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

, 
s
k
ill

s
, 

a
tt

it
u
d

e
s
 a

n
d

 b
e

h
a

v
io

rs
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
in

 
a

n
 e

v
e

r-
c
h

a
n

g
in

g
, 

im
m

e
n

s
e

ly
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
 a

n
d
 o

ft
e
n

 u
n

c
e

rt
a

in
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

  
T

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 o

p
e
n

 t
o

 s
ta

ff
, 

a
t 
a

ll 
le

v
e

ls
. 

In
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 
C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

, 
s
ta

ff
 f

ro
m

 u
n
d

e
r-

re
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

(B
A

M
E

, 
D

is
a

b
le

d
 a

n
d

 F
e

m
a

le
) 

a
re

 e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

d
 t
o

 a
p

p
ly

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

n
d

 F
u

tu
re

 L
e

a
d

e
rs

 S
tr

a
n

d
s
 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r.
 

 

164



1
2
 

C
a
s
e
 S

tu
d

y
: 

Q
u
ie

t 
R

o
o
m

  
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 n
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

re
q
u

e
s
ts

 f
ro

m
 s

ta
ff

, 
in

 
J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

 M
u

lt
i-

F
a

it
h

 Q
u

ie
t 

R
o
o

m
. 
T

h
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 i
s
 o

p
e

n
 t
o

 a
ll 

s
ta

ff
, 
o
f 

a
n

y
 f

a
it
h

 o
r 

n
o

n
e
, 

to
 

p
ra

y
, 

m
e

d
it
a

te
, 

o
r 

s
p
e

n
d

 s
o
m

e
 t

im
e
 i
n

 q
u

ie
t 

re
fl
e

c
ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e

 v
e

n
u

e
 i
s
 w

e
ll 

u
s
e

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

o
m

e
 v

e
ry

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 

fe
e

d
b

a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 u
s
e

rs
. 

“F
a

n
ta

s
ti
c
! 
W

e
ll 

d
o

n
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
” 

“B
e

a
u

ti
fu

l 
–

 p
ri
v
a

te
 a

n
d

 q
u

ie
t.

 N
o
 l
o

n
g
e

r 
n
e

e
d

 t
o

 h
id

e
 i
n

 t
o

ile
t 

to
 p

ra
y
” 

W
a

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 a
n

d
 R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o
n

s
  

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 b
u

ild
 o

n
 t
h

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

o
u

r 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
, 

in
 

lin
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 f

o
r 

s
o
m

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
. 

S
o

m
e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
, 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

 a
n
d

 n
e

w
 o

n
e

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 r

e
le

v
a

n
c
e

. 
T

h
e

 
re

v
is

e
d

 P
Is

 f
o

r 
2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 

a
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
. 

 

165



  
1

3
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 

 K
e

y
 -

 R
A

G
 –

 R
e

d
 A

m
b
e

r 
G

re
e

n
  

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 –

 D
e

liv
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 w

e
lc

o
m

in
g

 t
o
 a

ll 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 a

re
 c

a
p

a
b

le
 o

f 
re

s
p

o
n
d

in
g

 t
o
 

th
e

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 a
s
p

ir
a
ti
o

n
s
 o

u
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 

Directorate 

M
e

a
s
u

re
 

E
n

d
 o

f 
Y

e
a

r 
F

ig
u

re
 

C
o

m
p
a

ri
s
o

n
s
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

N
a

ti
o
n

a
l 

A
v
e

ra
g
e

 a
n

d
  

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri
n

g
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

(s
) 

C
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 

C
H

W
 

7
0

%
 8

5
%

 o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 u

s
e

rs
 w

ill
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 s
e

lf
-d

ir
e

c
te

d
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 (

o
f 

a
ll 

c
lie

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

rs
 w

it
h

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

b
y
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

8
5

.1
%

  

G
 

6
7

.5
%

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 
 

T
h

is
 p

la
c
e
d

 u
s
 7

th
 i
n

 L
o

n
d
o

n
, 
o

u
t 

o
f 

3
2

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 w

it
h

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

d
a

ta
. 

 F
in

a
l 
fi
g
u

re
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
le

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r.

 

C
H

W
 

6
8

%
 o

f 
p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 a

re
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 
h

o
m

e
s
 o

r 
w

it
h

 f
a
m

ili
e

s
, 
b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

 
6

9
.0

%
  

G
 

6
8

.5
%

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 
T

h
is

 p
la

c
e
d

 u
s
 1

6
th

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

, 
o

u
t 

o
f 

3
3

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 w

it
h

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

d
a

ta
. 

 F
in

a
l 
fi
g
u

re
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
le

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r.

 

C
H

W
 

7
0

%
 o

f 
c
lie

n
ts

 d
o
 n

o
t 

re
c
e

iv
e

 o
n

g
o

in
g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 
re

a
b

le
m

e
n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
   

8
4

.0
%

  

G
 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
fi
g
u

re
 

a
n

d
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 

c
o

m
p
a

re
d
 

T
h

is
 d

a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

p
la

c
e

d
 w

it
h

 
n

a
ti
o
n

a
lly

 c
o

m
p
a

ra
b

le
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
4
 

C
H

W
 

8
0

%
 o

f 
a
d

u
lt
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h

 s
e

c
o

n
d
a

ry
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tl
y
 w

it
h

 o
r 

w
it
h

o
u

t 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
, 
b

y
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

8
3

.9
%

  

G
 

7
8

.7
%

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 
T

h
is

 p
la

c
e
d

 u
s
 1

9
th

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

, 
o

u
t 

o
f 

3
2

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 w

it
h

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

d
a

ta
. 

 F
in

a
l 
fi
g
u

re
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
le

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r.

 

C
H

W
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 a

 h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 (
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 a

 s
c
o

re
 o

f 
0

.9
 a

n
d

 1
.1

 -
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u

ld
 

in
d

ic
a

te
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 w

h
it
e

 a
n

d
 n

o
n

-
w

h
it
e

 c
lie

n
ts

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
lik

e
lih

o
o

d
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

).
 

0
.9

9
%

  

G
 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
fi
g
u

re
 

a
n

d
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 

c
o

m
p
a

re
d
 

T
h

is
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 

n
o

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 w

h
it
e

/n
o

n
-

w
h

it
e

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
 

C
H

W
 

T
o
ta

l 
n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 w

e
 h

o
u

s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

ri
v
a

te
 R

e
n

te
d

 
S

e
c
to

r 
(3

5
0

) 
3

0
7
 

R
  

 
W

e
 s

e
t 

o
u

rs
e

lv
e

s
 a

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
5

0
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

n
't 

m
e

t 
b

e
c
a

u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 o

f 

166



  
1

4
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

e
a

rl
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

  
O

u
r 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

h
a

s
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 a
n

d
 w

e
 

o
b

ta
in

e
d

 1
8
9

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 l
a

s
t 

2
 q

u
a

rt
e

rs
 e

x
c
e

e
d

in
g
 t

h
e

 
q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 t

a
rg

e
ts

. 
 O

u
r 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 w
a

s
 o

v
e

r 
2

0
%

 
h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n

 1
2

-1
3

. 

C
H

W
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
o
f 

8
%

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

h
o

m
e

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
s
 a

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
. 

1
0

%
 

G
 

n
/a

 
T

a
rg

e
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 

C
H

W
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

ta
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
 i
n

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

9
0

%
 e

v
e

ry
 y

e
a

r)
 

 

G
 

 

T
h
e

 l
ib

ra
ry

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

o
n

ly
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 i
n
 S

e
p

t 
1
3

 s
o

 w
e

 
h

a
v
e

 o
n

ly
 j
u

s
t 

c
o
m

p
e

te
d

 a
 y

e
a

r 
a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 n
o
t 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 d
a

ta
 

y
e

t.
 T

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 n
o

t 
9
0

%
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
 b

u
t 

9
0

%
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 

o
u

tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 p
u

b
lic

 
u

s
a

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 P
e
o

p
le

’s
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 i
n

 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
 

te
c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

is
a

b
le

d
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 f

ri
e

n
d

ly
) 

a
n

d
 t

h
is

 t
re

n
d

 i
s
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

in
g
 i
n

 2
0
1

4
/1

5
. 
 

 

E
&

E
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 m
a

d
e
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

9
0

%
 o

f 
a

ll 
o

u
r 

b
u

s
 s

to
p

s
 D

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

8
7

%
 

G
 

 
O

n
 s

c
h
e

d
u

le
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
b

y
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 2
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 t
h

ro
u

g
h
 o

u
r 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
a

re
n
ti
n

g
 r

o
le

 a
n

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 n
a

rr
o

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
g

a
p

 f
o

r 
c

h
il

d
re

n
 f

ro
m

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

 m
in

o
ri

ty
 e

th
n

ic
 g

ro
u

p
s

 
 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 f

o
r 

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e

a
r 

2
0
1

2
/1

3
 

 

   

   

167



  
1

5
 

1
1

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 

a
) 

%
 B

la
c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o
n

ta
in

in
g
 m

o
re

 
th

a
n
 3

0
 p

u
p

ils
) 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
4

+
 i
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n

g
 

a
n

d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 2
 

b
) 

%
 B

la
c
k
 C

a
ri
b

b
e

a
n
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o
n

ta
in

in
g
 

m
o

re
 t
h

a
n

 3
0

 p
u

p
ils

) 
a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
4

+
 i
n

 R
e
a

d
in

g
 &

 
W

ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 2
 

c
) 

%
 A

n
y
 O

th
e

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 
(c

o
n

ta
in

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 3
0

 p
u

p
ils

) 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
4

+
 i
n

 
R

e
a

d
in

g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 2
 

d
) 

%
 A

n
y
 O

th
e

r 
W

h
it
e

 B
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 
(c

o
n

ta
in

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 3
0

 p
u

p
ils

) 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
4

+
 i
n

 
R

e
a

d
in

g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 2
 

 1
5

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 

a
) 

%
 B

la
c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o
n

ta
in

in
g
 m

o
re

 
th

a
n
 3

0
 p

u
p

ils
) 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 
m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 4
 

b
) 

%
 B

la
c
k
 C

a
ri
b

b
e

a
n
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o
n

ta
in

in
g
 

m
o

re
 t
h

a
n

 3
0

 p
u

p
ils

) 
a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
n

g
lis

h
 &

 m
a

th
e

m
a

ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 4
 

c
) 

%
 A

n
y
 O

th
e

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 
(c

o
n

ta
in

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 3
0

 p
u

p
ils

) 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 
4

 
d

) 
%

 A
n

y
 O

th
e

r 
W

h
it
e

 B
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 
(c

o
n

ta
in

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 3
0

 p
u

p
ils

) 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 
4

 
 

 a
) 

7
1

.7
%

 
  b

) 
7

4
.5

%
 

  c
) 

7
3

.3
%

 
  d

) 
6

8
.8

%
 

    a
) 

5
6

.1
%

 
  b

) 
4

7
.6

%
 

   c
) 

3
1

.3
%

 
   d

) 
5

8
.2

%
 

  

 R
e

s
u

lt
s
 b

y
 e

th
n

ic
 

g
ro

u
p

 a
re

 n
o

t 
p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
D

fE
 f

o
r 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
. 

         R
e

s
u

lt
s
 b

y
 e

th
n

ic
 

g
ro

u
p

 a
re

 n
o

t 
p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
D

fE
 f

o
r 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
. 

 N
a

rr
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 G
a
p

 f
o

r 
u

n
d
e

ra
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 p

u
p

il 
g
ro

u
p

s
 

re
m

a
in

s
 a

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n

d
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

. 
D

e
s
p

it
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

w
o

rk
 b

y
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
, 

th
is

 d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 i
s
 

d
is

a
p

p
o

in
ti
n

g
. 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n
t 

g
a

p
 i
s
 

w
id

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 f
o

c
u

s
. 
W

o
rk

 
to

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
T

h
e
 E

P
T

 a
n
d

 E
S

S
O

 
a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 o

n
 a

 d
a
ta

 
b

a
s
e
d

 r
a

ti
o
n

a
le

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
a

s
p

e
c
t.
 

C
&

F
 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 n
a

rr
o

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
g

a
p

 f
o

r 
c

h
il

d
re

n
 e

li
g

ib
le

 f
o

r 
F

re
e

 S
c

h
o

o
l 

M
e

a
ls

 (
F

S
M

) 
 

 
1

. 
A

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

u
p

ils
 e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

fr
e

e
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
m

e
a

ls
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 p

e
e

rs
, 
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 p

u
p

ils
 

R
e

s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

A
c
a

d
e
m

ic
 

y
e

a
r 

2
0

1
2

/1
3
 

 

  N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
–

 1
9

%
 

 S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l 

6
6

%
 o

f 
p
u

p
ils

 w
it
h

 F
S

M
 a

tt
a

in
e

d
 

le
v
e

l 
4

 o
r 

a
b
o

v
e

 i
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g
 &

 
W

ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

S
2

 
c
o

m
p
a

re
d
 t

o
 8

3
%

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 p

e
e

rs
 

w
h

o
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

F
S

M
. 

168



  
1

6
 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 o
r 

a
b
o

v
e

 i
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 
m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 2
 

2
. 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

u
p

ils
 e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

fr
e

e
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
m

e
a

ls
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 p

e
e

rs
, 
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 p

u
p

ils
 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

 o
r 

m
o

re
 A

* 
to

 C
 g

ra
d

e
 G

C
S

E
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
n

g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 

 

1
7

%
 

    
1

9
.9

%
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rs

 –
 1

7
%

 
  N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
–

 2
6

.7
%

 
 S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
 –

 
2

2
.6

%
 

 

  4
9

.4
%

 o
f 

p
u
p

ils
 w

it
h

 F
S

M
 

a
tt

a
in

e
d

 5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 A
* 

to
 C

 g
ra

d
e

 
G

C
S

E
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d

 
m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d
 

to
 6

9
.3

%
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 p

e
e

rs
 w

h
o

 w
e

re
 

n
o

t 
e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

F
S

M
.  

C
&

F
 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 n
a

rr
o

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
g

a
p

 f
o

r 
C

h
il

d
re

n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r  
 

a
) 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
(C

L
A

) 
fo

r 
1

 y
e

a
r 

p
lu

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

 g
o

o
d

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
E

a
rl
y
 

Y
e

a
rs

 F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o
n

 S
ta

g
e

 (
a

n
n
u

a
l)
 

b
) 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
fo

r 
1

 y
e

a
r 

p
lu

s
 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
L

e
v
e
l 
4

 a
t 
K

S
2
 i
n

 G
ra

m
m

a
r,

 S
p

e
lli

n
g
 

&
 P

u
n

c
tu

a
ti
o

n
, 

R
e

a
d

in
g
  

a
n

d
 M

a
th

s
 (

a
n

n
u
a

l)
 

c
) 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
fo

r 
1

 y
e

a
r 

p
lu

s
 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 G
C

S
E

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d

 
M

a
th

s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

S
4
 (

a
n

n
u

a
l)

 
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 

D
a

ta
 

 N
o

 C
L

A
 (

1
 

y
e

a
r+

) 
in

 
th

is
 c

o
h
o

rt
 

0
%

 

H
R

 

 
0

%
 

H
R

 

 
T

h
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
u
n

d
e

r 
‘b

’ 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

c
h

a
n
g

e
d

 b
y
 D

fE
 a

s
 E

n
g

lis
h

 h
a

s
 

n
o
w

 b
e

e
n

 e
x
te

n
d
e

d
 t
o

 I
n

c
lu

d
e

 
G

ra
m

m
a

r,
 S

p
e

lli
n

g
 &

 
P

u
n

c
tu

a
ti
o
n

, 
R

e
a

d
in

g
 

C
&

F
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

N
E

E
T

 t
o

 n
o

 m
o

re
 t
h

a
n

 
2

0
%

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 o
ff

e
n

d
e
d

 a
n
d

 t
o

 n
o

 m
o

re
 

th
a

n
 5

0
%

 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 l
e

a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

 

Y
O

T
 

(2
4

.4
%

) 

H
R

 

 
L

C
  

- 
3

3
.6

%
 

H
G

 

 

 
 

C
&

F
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

1
6

 –
 1

8
 y

e
a

rs
 o

ld
s
 

w
h

o
 a

re
 i
n

 e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 
a

t 
9
7

%
 b

y
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

9
8

.2
%

 

G
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 –
 9

4
.7

%
 

S
N

’s
 –

 9
6
.2

%
 

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 3
 -

 M
in

im
is

e
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 h

e
a

lt
h
 i
n

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

p
ri
v
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

C
&

F
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 o
b
e

s
e

 
2

0
.4

%
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

: 
1

8
.9

%
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a

lly
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

169



  
1

7
 

in
 Y

e
a

r 
6

 t
o

 b
e

 b
e

lo
w

 o
r 

in
-l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
ra

te
 o

f 
1
9

.2
%

 
b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

(2
0

1
2

/1
3

) 
a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 
o
f 

0
.1

%
 

G
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

: 
2

2
.4

%
 

B
a

rn
e

t:
 1

9
.1

%
 

B
re

n
t:

 2
3

.7
%

 
E

a
lin

g
: 

2
2

.7
%

 
H

ill
in

g
d

o
n

 1
9

.8
%

 
 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 
ra

te
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 R
a

te
 

C
&

F
 

M
o

re
 c

h
ild

re
n

, 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

re
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n

g
 

in
 s

p
o

rt
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

o
 1

0
0

%
 

o
f 

P
E

 t
e
a

c
h

e
rs

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

N
o

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

 
 

C
H

W
 

A
d

u
lt
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 1

9
.5

%
 i
n

 
2

0
1
3

-1
4

. 
 

1
9

.3
%

 
 A
 

 
A

d
u

lt
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 r

a
te

 i
n

 O
c
t 

1
3

 
w

a
s
 1

9
.3

%
 s

o
 w

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
m

e
e

t 
ta

rg
e

t 
b

u
t 
d

id
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 f

ro
m

 
1

9
.1

%
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r.
 I

n
 Q

1
 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
, 

th
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 3

1
.0

8
%

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

t 
H

a
rr

o
w

 
L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n

tr
e

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t
o

 Q
1
 i
n

 
2

0
1
3

-1
4

. 
 

C
H

W
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

ta
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
 i
n

 l
e

is
u

re
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

9
0

%
 e

v
e

ry
 y

e
a

r)
 

 

G
 

 
T

h
e

 l
e

is
u

re
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

o
n

ly
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 i
n
 S

e
p

t 
1
3

 s
o

 w
e

 
h

a
v
e

 o
n

ly
 j
u

s
t 

c
o
m

p
e

te
d

 a
 y

e
a

r 
a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 n
o
t 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 d
a

ta
 

y
e

t.
 T

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 n
o

t 
9
0

%
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
 b

u
t 

9
0

%
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 

o
u

tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

 n
e

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

g
y
m

 w
a

s
 

in
s
ta

lle
d

 i
n
 J

a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0
1

4
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

g
ro

u
p

s
 i
n

 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 w

o
m

e
n

 o
r 

th
o

s
e
 w

it
h

 h
e

a
lt
h
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 w

h
o

 
n

e
e
d

 t
o
 p

re
fe

r 
to

 e
x
e

rc
is

e
 

s
e

p
a

ra
te

ly
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 
£

3
0
,0

0
0

 o
f 

e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
w

a
s
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e

d
 t
o

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 d

is
a
b

le
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
 (

to
o

 
s
o

o
n

 t
o

 m
o
n

it
o

r 
o
u

tc
o
m

e
 y

e
t)

. 
In

 

170



  
1

8
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 s
e
e

n
 l
e

is
u

re
 

c
e

n
tr

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

th
re

e
 

q
u

a
rt

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

(t
o

 J
u
n

 
2

0
1
4

) 
a

n
d

 a
re

 r
e

q
u

e
s
ti
n

g
 a

n
 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
b

re
a

k
d

o
w

n
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 b

y
 

th
e

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 s

o
 

w
e

 c
a

n
 t

ra
c
k
 r

e
a

c
h

. 
 

C
H

W
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
o
f 

4
2

%
 o

f 
fa

m
ily

-s
iz

e
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
s
 a

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

4
1

%
  

 A
 

 
R

e
v
is

e
d

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 P

la
n

 s
e

t 
ta

rg
e

t 
o
f 

4
2

%
 i
n

 2
0
1

1
, 

c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

ly
  

fr
o
m

 
2

0
1
1

/1
2
 u

n
ti
l 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 w

e
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 4

1
%

 

C
H

W
 

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 p

re
v
e

n
te

d
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e

s
s
 i
n

 1
2
5

0
 c

a
s
e

s
 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

1
5

4
9
 

G
 

 
W

e
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

b
e

in
g
 v

e
ry

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
in

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
n

g
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 -

 a
 

5
0

%
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
n

 1
2

-1
3

 

C
H

W
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
1

5
0
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
 (

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
, 

a
d

u
lt
s
 w

it
h

 a
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 o

r 
c
a

re
rs

 o
f 

th
o
s
e

 w
it
h

 a
 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

) 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 H

o
u

s
e

 w
a

rm
e

rs
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

1
8

9
 

G
 

N
o

 c
o

m
p

a
ra

b
le

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 

L
e

tt
e

rs
 w

e
n

t 
to

 2
2

0
0

 p
e

o
p

le
; 

4
2
6

 
p

e
o
p

le
 a

t 
h

ig
h

 r
is

k
 w

e
re

 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

; 
1
8

9
 a

c
c
e
p

te
d

 o
ff

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

m
e

 v
is

it
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 a

 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 

 

C
H

W
 

M
a

in
ta

in
e
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

w
o

m
e

n
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 i
n

 p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 t

o
 

u
n

d
e

r 
5

%
 

4
.6

%
 

G
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

: 
1

2
.0

%
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

: 
5

.1
%

 
B

a
rn

e
t:
 4

.4
%

 
B

re
n

t:
 3

.2
%

 
E

a
lin

g
: 

3
.3

%
 

H
ill

in
g
d

o
n

 8
.0

%
 

 

 

E
&

E
 

F
o

o
d

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h
e

 a
re

a
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h

 
fo

o
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 (
ta

rg
e

t 
7
0

%
 7

6
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

) 
6

9
%

 

R
 

 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 h
a
d

 a
 c

h
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
 

a
n

d
 a

re
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 a

g
e

n
c
y
 

s
ta

ff
 w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

u
ld

 r
e

v
e
rs

e
 t

h
is

 
tr

e
n

d
 o

f 
d

im
in

is
h

in
g
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 

E
&

E
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 C

a
rb

o
n
 F

o
o
tp

ri
n

t 
(t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

4
%

 
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

G
o

o
d
 

171



  
1

9
 

4
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
) 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 

G
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
is

 
ta

rg
e

t.
 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 4
 -

 S
u

p
p
o

rt
 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n

 t
im

e
s
 o

f 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 h
a

rd
s
h

ip
 

E
&

E
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 I
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 

H
a

rr
o

w
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
t  

o
f 

L
o
n
d

o
n

 i
n

 r
e

s
p
e

c
t 

o
f 

J
o
b

 S
e

e
k
e

rs
 

A
llo

w
a

n
c
e

 (
J
S

A
) 

c
la

im
a

n
ts

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

 (
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
b
a

s
e

lin
e
 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
s
 1

.6
%

) 
 

1
.1

  

R
 

J
S

A
 C

la
im

s
 i
n

 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 2
.9

%
 i
n

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

J
S

A
 c

la
im

s
 i
n

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 1
.8

%
. 

T
h

e
 

%
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

 e
q
u

a
ls

 
1

.1
%

 

It
 i
s
 d

is
a
p

p
o

in
ti
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
n

 J
S

A
 

c
la

im
a

n
ts

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 r

e
s
t 
o
f 

L
o
n

d
o
n

 i
n

 c
la

im
a
n

ts
 

s
h

ru
n

k
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 g

re
w

. 
It

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
H

a
rr

o
w

 
h

a
d

  
a

 s
m

a
lle

r 
b
a

s
e

lin
e

 t
o

 b
e

g
in

 
w

it
h

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
u

n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
d

id
 

fa
ll 

b
y
 2

1
.8

%
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o
w

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
3

 a
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

, 
fr

o
m

 
3

,7
5
3

 J
S

A
 c

la
im

a
n

ts
 t

o
 2

,9
3

4
, 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

to
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

g
re

w
 (

s
e

e
 b

e
lo

w
).

 

E
&

E
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 j
o

b
 b

ro
k
e

ra
g
e

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
to

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
8

0
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n

to
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

 

 2
0

3
  

G
 

2
0

3
 (

o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 4
5

 
fr

o
m

 H
o
u

s
in

g
, 

H
E

L
P

 &
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
) 

A
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 
e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

. 
 

E
&

E
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
rv

iv
a

l,
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 g

ro
w

th
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
5

0
0
 H

a
rr

o
w

 e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e
u

rs
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
  

 

 6
3

2
  

G
 

6
3

2
 

T
h
e

 e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tw

o
 

la
rg

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

v
e

n
ts

 
(B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 E

x
p

o
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 D

e
n

 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

) 
e

n
a

b
le

d
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d
. 

E
&

E
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 t
h

e
 v

a
c
a

n
c
y
 r

a
te

 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
(B

a
s
e

lin
e

 J
u

n
e
 2

0
1

2
 A

M
R

 8
.9

5
%

) 

9
.4

%
  

R
 

    

T
h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 
v
a

c
a

n
c
y
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
0
.4

2
%

. 
T

h
e

 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

re
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 F
a
t 

C
o

n
tr

o
lle

r 
w

ill
 b

ri
n

g
 0

.3
6

%
 b

a
c
k
 

in
to

 u
s
e

. 
T

h
e

 n
o

rm
a

l 
c
h

u
rn

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

to
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

, 
h

a
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

e
 

re
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

a
rp

h
o
n

e
 

W
a
re

h
o

u
s
e

, 
N

e
w

 Y
o

rk
 C

it
y
 S

ty
le

 

172



  
2

0
 

a
n

d
 E

x
p

re
s
s
 C

o
n

v
e

n
ie

o
 

s
u

p
e

rm
a

rk
e

t 
to

 s
m

a
lle

r 
p

re
m

is
e

s
 

a
n

d
 C

o
s
ta

 t
o

 a
lt
e

rn
a
ti
v
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
. 
T

h
e

 
c
lo

s
u

re
 o

f 
A

lb
e
m

a
rl
e

 B
o

n
d

 
P

a
w

n
b

ro
k
e

rs
, 

B
e
t9

0
 .
C

it
y
 

E
d

u
c
a
to

rs
, 

G
if
t 
W

o
rl
d

, 
T

h
e

 R
a

w
 

M
a

n
g
o

 B
a

r 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 o

f 
M

r 
S

u
s
h

i,
 Y

e
llo

w
 C

h
ill

i 
In

d
ia

n
 T

a
p
a

s
 

B
a

r,
 M

o
d
e

rn
a

 A
rt

, 
S

ta
c
k
s
, 

D
u

n
k
in

' 
D

o
n

u
ts

, 
F

ra
n

k
ie

 &
 B

e
n
n

y
's

, 
N

o
rt

h
 

W
e
s
t 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
S

u
p
e

rm
a

rk
e

t,
 

W
ic

k
e

s
 a

n
d

 F
o

x
to

n
s
. 
T

h
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

d
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
 a

n
d

 i
t 
is

 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
h

a
t 

o
n

c
e

 e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d

 i
ts

 
p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

ill
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 v
a

c
a

n
c
y
 

ra
te

s
. 

C
H

W
 

1
8

.5
%

 o
f 

a
d
u
lt
s 

w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s 

a
re

 i
n
 p

a
id

 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

1
9

.6
%

  

G
 

9
.2

%
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 
T

h
is

 p
la

c
e
d

 u
s
 2

n
d
 i
n

 L
o

n
d
o

n
, 
o

u
t 

o
f 

3
1

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 w

it
h

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

d
a

ta
. 

 F
in

a
l 
fi
g
u

re
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
le

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r.

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 5
 –

 P
ro

te
c
t 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 h

a
rm

fu
l 
im

p
a

c
t 
o
f 
c
ri
m

e
, 

a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 a

b
u
s
e

 

R
E

S
 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 c
a

s
e

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

t 
M

A
R

A
C

 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 1

2
 m

o
n

th
s
 i
s
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 2
8

-4
0

%
 

1
2

%
 

H
R

 

 2
4

.5
%

 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
a

ti
c
 i
n
d

ic
a

to
r.

  
It

 
is

 d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
le

s
s
 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
ra

n
g
e

 o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
 r

e
-

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 M
A

R
A

C
 w

it
h

in
 1

2
 

m
o

n
th

s
 c

o
u

ld
 m

e
a

n
 t
h
a

t 
M

A
R

A
C

 
is

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n

g
 l
e

s
s
 t
h

a
n

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k
, 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 c

a
s
e

s
 w

h
e

re
a

s
 m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
ra

n
g
e

 i
s
 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 
s
u

g
g
e

s
t 

th
a

t 
M

A
R

A
C

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 

a
re

 n
o
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 i
n

 t
o

o
 m

a
n

y
 

c
a

s
e

s
. 

 F
o

r 
H

a
rr

o
w

, 
it
 s

u
g
g
e

s
ts

 

173



  
2

1
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 t

a
g
g
in

g
 a

n
d

 f
la

g
g
in

g
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 
c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
c
c
u

ra
c
y
 s

o
 r

e
-

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ri
ly

 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
. 

E
&

E
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
ru

it
e

d
, 

tr
a

in
e

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
 2

0
0

0
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 
C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

 

1
,0

0
6
 

H
R

 

 
T

h
e

 N
e

ig
h

b
o
u

rh
o
o

d
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
m

o
d

e
lle

d
 i
n
to

 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

b
ro

a
d
e

r 
fo

c
u

s
. 

D
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 

tr
a

n
s
it
io

n
 p

e
ri
o

d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

d
e
fe

rr
e
d

, 
a
n

d
 f

re
s
h

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 

s
e

t 
fo

r 
th

is
 s

c
h
e

m
e

 a
ft
e

r 
th

e
 

la
u

n
c
h
 

 

E
&

E
 

9
9

 %
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e

t 
lig

h
ts

 f
u
n

c
ti
o

n
in

g
 (

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

) 
 

9
9

.5
%

 

G
 

 
T

a
rg

e
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

G
o

o
d
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
is

 
ta

rg
e

t.
 

E
&

E
 

A
v
e

ra
g
e

 t
im

e
 t
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 r

e
p

a
ir
 s

tr
e

e
t 
lig

h
ts

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 a

t 
th

re
e

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 

2
.2

 d
a

y
s
 

G
 

 
T

a
rg

e
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

G
o

o
d
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
is

 
ta

rg
e

t.
 

C
H

W
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 T

e
n

a
n

t,
 L

e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
&

 R
e

s
id

e
n

t 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

c
a

s
e

 f
ro

m
 7

5
%

 i
n
 2

0
1

1
 t

o
 8

0
%

 b
y
 2

0
1

4
 

6
6

%
 

R
 

 
A

v
e

ra
g
e

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 l
e
v
e

ls
 a

s
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
d
 a

re
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
b

u
t 

is
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
s
a

m
p

le
. 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 r
a

te
s
 t

o
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 

s
u

rv
e

y
s
 s

e
n

t 
o
u

t 
a

re
 l
o
w

 w
it
h

 o
n

ly
 

3
 r

e
p

lie
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
. 
A

 d
ri
v
e

 t
o

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 h
ig

h
e

r 
re

s
p
o

n
s
e

 r
a

te
s
 i
s
 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 o

b
ta

in
 a

 m
o

re
 

m
e

a
n

in
g
fu

l 
re

s
u

lt
 

E
&

E
 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 8

 a
c
ti
v
e

 p
a

rk
 u

s
e

r 
g
ro

u
p

s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

 
9

 a
c
ti
v
e

 
p

a
rk

 u
s
e

r 
g
ro

u
p

s
 

G
 

 
T

a
rg

e
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

G
o

o
d
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
is

 
ta

rg
e

t.
 

174



  
2

2
 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 6
 -

 M
in

im
is

e
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
c
u
ts

 o
n

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 (

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
) 

A
ll 

E
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
re

c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 c
a

b
in

e
t 

a
re

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 w

it
h

 a
n

 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p

a
c
t 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

(E
q
IA

) 
G

 

 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 

y
e

a
rs

. 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
re

p
o

rt
s
 a

re
 o

n
ly

 
c
le

a
re

d
 w

h
e

n
 a

n
 E

q
IA

 i
s
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d
 

to
 t

h
e

m
. 

R
E

S
 

E
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

re
 

s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 a
n

 E
q
IA

 
G

 

 
A

ll 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
d

 
E

q
IA

's
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 a
t 

th
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 G

ro
u

p
 

A
L

L
 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 E
q
IA

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
 e

a
c
h

 y
e

a
r 

A
 

 
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
E

q
IA

's
 

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t
h

e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
la

n
s
 t
o

 
e

n
s
u

re
 a

ll 
k
e

y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

re
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 a

n
 E

q
IA

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 7
 –

 C
e

le
b

ra
te

 t
h

e
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 s
o

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 c
o

h
e

s
iv

e
 p

la
c
e
 w

h
e

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 g

e
t 

o
n
 w

e
ll 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

C
H

W
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
h
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

o
u

r 
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
c
a

le
n
d

a
r 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 a

im
 o

f 
d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 

te
n

 e
v
e

n
ts

 e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

1
0
 

G
 

 
A

ll 
te

n
 f
e

s
ti
v
a

ls
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 o

c
c
u

rr
e

d
. 

In
 t
o

ta
l 

a
ro

u
n
d

 1
,5

0
0

 a
tt
e

n
d

e
d
 t

h
o

s
e

 
fe

s
ti
v
a

ls
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

o
v
e

r 
4

,5
0

0
 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 U
n

d
e

r 
1

 S
k
y
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

d
 i
n

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 e
n

te
rt

a
in

m
e

n
t 
to

 
p

ro
m

o
te

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
 

a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 
a

g
e

s
, 
fa

it
h

s
, 

ra
c
e

 e
tc

. 
T

h
e
 A

rt
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

ls
o

 r
a
n

 
it
s
 f

ir
s
t 
B

ri
ti
s
h

 S
ig

n
 L

a
n
g
u

a
g
e

 
(B

S
L

) 
s
ig

n
e

d
 p

a
n

to
m

im
e

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

3
, 

c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 H
a

rr
o

w
 D

e
a

f 
C

lu
b

 a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h

  
a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o
n

 i
n

 c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
e

v
e

n
ts

 
a

m
o
n

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

C
H

W
 

7
7

%
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

g
re

e
 t

h
a

t 
p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
 g

e
t 

o
n

 w
e

ll 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
in

 t
h
e

ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

 (
a

s
 

7
8

%
  

 
In

 M
a

y
 2

0
1
2

 t
h
e

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 w
a

s
 s

e
t 

a
t 

7
5

%
. 

In
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
3

 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 

175



  
2

3
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 r

e
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
 t

ra
c
k
e

r 
in

 2
0
1

3
/1

4
) 

 
A

 
w

a
s
 7

7
%

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
w

a
s
 

7
9

%
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 m
id

-y
e

a
r 

fi
g
u

re
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

3
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 

a
 d

e
c
lin

e
 a

s
 t
h

e
 f

ig
u

re
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 

th
a

t 
th

a
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

 
g
e

t 
o

n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e

th
e

r 
to

 7
1

%
. 

In
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
, 
7

8
%

 a
g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
 q

u
e

s
ti
o
n

 i
n

 
th

e
 R

e
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

r,
 a

n
d

 1
9

%
 

d
is

a
g
re

e
d

. 
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 
s
e

e
n

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 f

ro
m

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 f
ro

m
 7

1
%

 t
o

 7
8

%
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
4

, 
w

e
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

ju
s
t 
b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

4
 t
a

rg
e

t 
fi
g
u

re
 o

f 
7
9

%
. 

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 8
 -

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
h

a
t 
fe

e
ls

 v
a

lu
e

d
, 

re
s
p

e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e

 o
f 
th

e
 d

iv
e

rs
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 w

e
 s

e
rv

e
 

A
L

L
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 f
e

e
l 
‘H

a
rr

o
w

 
d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
ts

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 t

h
a

t 
it
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
in

g
 

a
n

 e
q
u

a
l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

r’
 b

y
 1

0
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 

(S
ta

ff
 S

u
rv

e
y
 2

0
1

1
 –

 5
9

%
) 

a
n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
  

  
5

2
%

 
(0

.5
1

) 

H
R

 

  (0
.6

7
)  

F
a

c
ta

 C
o
n

s
u

lt
 

b
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
 

 

A
g
a

in
s
t 

a
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
 b

a
c
k
d

ro
p

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
, 

a
lle

g
a

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

a
l 
ra

c
is

m
, 

o
v
e

ra
ll,

 t
h

e
 

re
s
u

lt
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 2
0

1
4

 s
ta

ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

a
re

 d
o

w
n

 f
ro

m
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
. 

 
T

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 G

ro
u
p

 
(C

E
G

) 
h

a
v
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 t

h
e

 S
ta

ff
 

M
a

k
in

g
 a

 D
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 G
ro

u
p

 
(M

A
D

G
) 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 

fi
n
d

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
. 

A
L

L
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 f
e

e
l 
th

e
y
 a

re
 ‘
tr

e
a
te

d
 w

it
h

 
fa

ir
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
a

t 
H

a
rr

o
w

’ 
b

y
 1

0
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 (

S
ta

ff
 

S
u

rv
e

y
 2

0
1

1
 –

 6
2

%
) 

a
n

d
 r

e
d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

  
5

5
%

 
(0

.5
3

) 

H
R

 

  (0
.7

4
) 

F
a

c
ta

  
C

o
n

s
u

lt
 b

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
 

 

S
e

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 

A
L

L
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 f
e

e
l 
th

a
t 
‘S

y
s
te

m
s
 f

o
r 

 
 

S
e

e
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
 A

ls
o

 t
h

e
 

176



  
2

4
 

re
w

a
rd

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
 a

re
 f

a
ir
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
p

a
re

n
t’
 b

y
 

1
0

%
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6

 (
S

ta
ff

 S
u

rv
e

y
 2

0
1

1
 –

 3
0
%

) 
a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e

 
th

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

 
1

7
%

 
(-

0
.2

5
) 

H
R

 

 (-
0

.1
5

) 
F

a
c
ta

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
 

b
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
 

 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

lle
c
ti
v
e

 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 p

a
y
 i
s
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 t

h
is

: 
‘6

%
 o

f 
s
u

g
g
e

s
ti
o
n

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 o
n
e

 
th

in
g

’ 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t

o
 c

h
a
n

g
e
 

a
t 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

re
la

te
 t

o
 p

a
y
 a

n
d
 

p
a

y
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 –

 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 m
o

s
t 

fr
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 c

it
e
d

 t
h

e
m

e
.’
 

 

A
L

L
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

B
la

c
k
 a

n
d

 A
s
ia

n
 M

in
o

ri
ty

 
E

th
n

ic
 (

B
A

M
E

) 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 (

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 

4
2

%
 –

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
) 

4
1

.0
%

  

R
 

   3
6

.1
9

%
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

 
m

e
a
n
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
s
 t

o
 r

is
e

 
a

n
d

 i
s
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 a

t 
a
n

y
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

ti
m

e
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t,
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
a

s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r 

a
s
 a

 
re

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

re
n

d
, 
h

a
s
 

n
o

t 
b

e
e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

 C
E

G
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

w
a

y
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

. 

A
L

L
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

d
is

a
b

le
d
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
  

(t
a

rg
e

t 
o
f 

3
%

–
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
) 

1
.6

7
%

  

H
R

 

  5
.0

7
%

 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

 
m

e
a
n
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 h

a
s
 f

a
lle

n
 a

g
a

in
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

in
g
 d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
 

re
m

a
in

s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n

d
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
. 
T

h
e
 C

E
G

 c
o
n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 
m

o
n

it
o

r 
a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

w
a

y
s
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

. 
 

A
L

L
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 5
%

 o
f 

e
a

rn
e

rs
 w

h
o

 a
re

 B
la

c
k
 a

n
d

 
A

s
ia

n
 M

in
o

ri
ty

 E
th

n
ic

 (
B

A
M

E
) 

 (
ta

rg
e

t 
o
f 

2
0
%

–
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
) 

1
5

.3
8

%
  

R
 

 1
4

.8
6

%
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

 
m

e
a
n
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

in
c
e

 
th

e
 2

0
1
2

/1
3

 o
u

tt
u

rn
 p

o
s
it
io

n
. 

 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 T
h

e
 C

E
G

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 
m

o
n

it
o

r 
a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

w
a

y
s
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

. 

A
L

L
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 5
%

 o
f 

e
a

rn
e

rs
 w

h
o

 a
re

 w
o

m
e
n

  
(t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

5
0

%
 –

 M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1
4

) 
5

2
.9

9
  

 G
 

 4
7

.2
2

%
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

 
m

e
a
n
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 i
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 T

h
e
 

ta
rg

e
t 

re
m

a
in

s
 5

0
%

 a
s
 t

h
is

 
re

fl
e

c
ts

 t
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
w

o
m

e
n
 

in
 t

h
e
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
. 

A
L

L
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 5
%

 o
f 

e
a

rn
e

rs
 w

h
o

 a
re

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 t
o

 
(t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
%

 –
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

) 
0

.8
5

%
  

H
R

 

  
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 h

a
s
 s

lig
h

tl
y
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 s

in
c
e
 t

h
e

 2
0
1

2
/1

3
 

177



  
2

5
 

4
.6

5
%

 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

 
m

e
a
n
 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 b

u
t 
re

m
a

in
s
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n

d
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
. 
T

h
e
 C

E
G

 c
o
n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 
m

o
n

it
o

r 
a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

w
a

y
s
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

. 

A
L

L
 

A
ll 

n
e

w
 s

ta
rt

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t

h
e

 m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 
D

iv
e

rs
it
y
 E

-l
e

a
rn

in
g
 M

o
d

u
le

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 
6

 m
o

n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
 

7
%

 
(8

%
 o

u
ts

id
e

 
o
f 

th
e

 s
ix

 
m

o
n
th

 
p

e
ri
o

d
).

 

H
R

 

 

 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 
y
e

a
r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g
 o

n
 

th
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 W

e
 r

e
c
o
g
n

is
e

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
n
 r

a
is

in
g
 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
is

 c
o

u
rs

e
. 
  

 

178



  
2

6
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 –

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 

 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 1
 –

 D
e

liv
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 w
e

lc
o

m
in

g
 t
o

 a
ll 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 c
a

p
a

b
le

 o
f 

re
s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
n

e
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 
a

s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

u
r 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 

E
&

E
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 m
a

d
e
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
9

0
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

o
u

r 
b
u

s
 s

to
p

s
 D

D
A

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

C
H

W
 

3
5

0
  
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 h

o
u

s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

ri
v
a

te
 R

e
n

te
d

 S
e

c
to

r 
b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

 

C
H

W
 

A
d

u
lt
s
 -

 %
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 u

s
e

rs
 w

it
h

 S
e

lf
 D

ir
e

c
te

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 (

S
D

S
) 

ta
k
in

g
 u

p
 a

 c
a

s
h
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
ti
o
n

 (
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
1
4

/1
5
 i
s
 7

0
%

 )
 

C
H

W
 

A
d

u
lt
s
 -

 %
 o

f 
c
a

re
rs

 w
it
h

 S
e

lf
 D

ir
e

c
te

d
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 (
S

D
S

) 
ta

k
in

g
 u

p
 a

 c
a
s
h

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
ti
o
n

 (
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
1

4
/1

5
 i
s
 9

5
%

 )
 

C
H

W
 

A
d

u
lt
s
 -

 E
q
u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

 (
th

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 a
 s

c
o

re
 o

f 
b
e

tw
e

e
n

 0
.9

 a
n

d
 1

.1
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u

ld
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 w

h
it
e

 a
n

d
 n

o
n

-w
h

it
e

 c
lie

n
ts

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
lik

e
lih

o
o

d
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

).
 

C
&

F
 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 C
e

n
tr

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 a

c
c
e

s
s
e
d

 b
y
 7

5
%

 o
f 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
o

ta
l 
u
n

d
e

r 
fi
v
e

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 i
n

 t
a

rg
e

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
 (

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 t
o

 e
a

c
h

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
) 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
.  

 T
a

rg
e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 f

ro
m

 d
e
p

ri
v
e

d
 a

re
a

s
, 

lo
n

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

, 
c
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
, 

c
a

re
rs

 w
it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 

a
n

d
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 B
M

E
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
. 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 2
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 o
u

r 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 r

o
le

 a
n

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

C
&

F
 

R
e

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
g
a

p
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 F

o
u
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 S

ta
g
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
le

a
rn

in
g
 g

o
a

ls
 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 t
o

 
th

e
ir
 p

e
e

rs
. 

 T
a

rg
e

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 f
a
m

ili
e

s
 f

ro
m

 d
e

p
ri
v
e

d
 a

re
a

s
, 

c
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

 B
M

E
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
e

th
n

ic
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

(T
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 (

A
c
a

d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a

r)
 –

 t
o
 h

a
lv

e
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

ir
 p

e
e

rs
) 

 

C
&

F
 

W
e

 w
il
l 

n
a

rr
o

w
 t

h
e

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
g

a
p

 f
o

r 
c

h
il

d
re

n
 w

it
h

 S
p

e
c

ia
l 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 N

e
e

d
s

 (
S

E
N

) 
a

) 
A

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

u
p

ils
 w

it
h

 s
p

e
c
ia

l 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
n
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

ir
 p

e
e

rs
, 
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 p

u
p

ils
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 o
r 

a
b

o
v
e

 i
n

 
R

e
a

d
in

g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 2
  

(T
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 –

 A
ll 

S
E

N
 5

8
%

 (
S

c
h

o
o

l 
A

c
ti
o

n
 6

9
%

, 
S

c
h
o

o
l 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

lu
s
 5

0
%

, 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
4

2
%

),
 P

e
e

rs
 9

1
%

, 
G

a
p

 3
3

%
) 

 
b

) 
T

h
e

 S
p

e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 (

S
E

N
) 

/ 
n
o

n
-S

E
N

 g
a

p
 –

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

 C
 G

C
S

E
 i
n

c
. 

E
n

g
lis

h
 a

n
d

 M
a

th
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 (

T
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1
4

/1
5
 –

 A
ll 

S
E

N
 4

3
%

 (
S

c
h

o
o

l 
A

c
ti
o

n
 5

0
%

, 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
A

c
ti
o
n

 P
lu

s
 4

4
%

, 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

1
7

%
),

 P
e

e
rs

 8
2
%

, 
G

a
p

 3
9

%
) 

C
&

F
 

W
h

il
e
 i

m
p

ro
v
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

 w
e
 w

il
l 

n
a

rr
o

w
 t

h
e

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
g

a
p

 f
o

r 
c

h
il

d
re

n
 f

ro
m

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

 m
in

o
ri

ty
 e

th
n

ic
 g

ro
u

p
s

  
 1

1
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 

a
) 

%
 B

la
c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o
n

ta
in

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 3
0

 p
u

p
ils

) 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
4

+
 i
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 m
a

th
e
m

a
ti
c
s
 

a
t 

K
e

y
 S

ta
g
e

 2
 (

T
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 –

 7
7

%
) 

b
) 

%
 B

la
c
k
 C

a
ri
b

b
e

a
n
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o
n

ta
in

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 3
0

 p
u

p
ils

) 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
4

+
 i
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n
g
 a

n
d

 
m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 2
 (

T
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1
4

/1
5

 –
 8

0
%

) 

179



  
2

7
 

c
) 

%
 A

n
y
 O

th
e

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 3

0
 p

u
p

ils
) 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
4

+
 i
n

 R
e

a
d
in

g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n

g
 

a
n

d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 2
 (

T
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
2
0

1
4

/1
5

 –
 7

8
%

) 
d

) 
%

 A
n

y
 O

th
e

r 
W

h
it
e

 B
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 3

0
 p

u
p

ils
) 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
4

+
 i
n

 R
e

a
d
in

g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n

g
 

a
n

d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 2
 (

T
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
2
0

1
4

/1
5

 –
 7

4
%

) 
 1

5
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 

a
) 

%
 B

la
c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o
n

ta
in

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 3
0

 p
u

p
ils

) 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 

G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 4
 (

T
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 –

 6
4

%
) 

b
) 

%
 B

la
c
k
 C

a
ri
b

b
e

a
n
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o
n

ta
in

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 3
0

 p
u

p
ils

) 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 m
a

th
e
m

a
ti
c
s
 

G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 4
 (

T
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 –

 6
8

%
) 

c
) 

%
 A

n
y
 O

th
e

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 3

0
 p

u
p

ils
) 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 
m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 4
 (

T
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1
4

/1
5

 –
 5

5
%

) 
d

) 
%

 A
n

y
 O

th
e

r 
W

h
it
e

 B
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 3

0
 p

u
p

ils
) 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 
m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 4
 (

T
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1
4

/1
5

 –
 6

5
%

) 
 

C
&

F
 

W
e

 w
il
l 

n
a

rr
o

w
 t

h
e

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
g

a
p

 f
o

r 
c

h
il

d
re

n
 e

li
g

ib
le

 f
o

r 
p

u
p

il
 p

re
m

iu
m

 
a

)  
A

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

u
p

ils
 e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

p
u

p
il 

p
re

m
iu

m
 (

F
S

M
6

) 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir
 p

e
e

rs
, 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 p

u
p

ils
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 o
r 

a
b

o
v
e

 i
n

 
R

e
a

d
in

g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 2
  

(T
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 –

 F
S

M
6

 7
5

%
, 

P
e
e

rs
 8

8
%

, 
G

a
p
 –

 1
2

%
) 

 
b

) 
A

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

u
p

ils
 e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

p
u

p
il 

p
re

m
iu

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 p

e
e

rs
, 
b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 p
u

p
ils

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

 o
r 

m
o

re
 A

* 
to

 C
 g

ra
d

e
 

G
C

S
E

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d

 M
a

th
e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
  

(T
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 –

 F
S

M
6

 6
2

%
, 

P
e
e

rs
 7

8
%

, 
G

a
p
 –

1
5

%
) 

C
&

F
 

W
e

 w
il
l 

n
a

rr
o

w
 t

h
e

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
g

a
p

 f
o

r 
C

h
il

d
re

n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
a

) 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
fo

r 
1

 y
e

a
r 

p
lu

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

 g
o

o
d

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

t 
E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 S

ta
g
e

 
(a

n
n

u
a

l)
 

b
) 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
fo

r 
1

 y
e

a
r 

p
lu

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 L

e
v
e

l 
4

+
 a

t 
K

S
2

 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n

g
lis

h
 a

n
d

 M
a

th
s
 (

a
n
n

u
a

l)
 

c
) 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
fo

r 
1

 y
e

a
r 

p
lu

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 G
C

S
E

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d

 M
a

th
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

S
4

 
(a

n
n

u
a

l)
 

 

C
&

F
 

W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

N
E

E
T

 t
o
 n

o
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 2
0

%
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 o
ff
e

n
d
e

d
 a

n
d
 t

o
 n

o
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 2
0

%
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 l
e
a

v
in

g
 c

a
re

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

 

C
&

F
 

W
e
 w

ill
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

1
6

 –
 1

8
 y

e
a

rs
 o

ld
s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
t 

9
7

%
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
  

 

180



  
2

8
 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 3
 -

 M
in

im
is

e
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 h
e

a
lt
h
 i
n
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

p
ri
v
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g

 

E
&

E
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
fo

o
d

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

ts
 b

ro
a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h

 f
o

o
d

 h
y
g
ie

n
e

 l
a

w
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

7
0

%
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
) 

E
&

E
 

R
e

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 c

a
rb

o
n

 f
o

o
tp

ri
n

t 
(t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

4
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

) 

E
&

E
 

C
re

a
te

 7
 n

e
w

 g
re

e
n

 g
y
m

s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

E
&

E
 

T
h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 t

ra
v
e

lli
n

g
 t

o
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
b

y
 c

a
r 

is
 3

0
%

 o
r 

le
s
s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

  

C
H

W
 

D
e

liv
e

r 
1

4
0

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

 

C
H

W
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
o
f 

4
2

%
 o

f 
fa

m
ily

-s
iz

e
d

 r
e

n
te

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
h

o
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
s
 a

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

C
H

W
 

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 p

re
v
e

n
te

d
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e

s
s
 i
n

 1
2
5

0
 c

a
s
e

s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
  

C
H

W
 

1
0

0
 m

o
s
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

te
n

a
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
s
p

o
k
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

 n
a
m

e
d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 c
a

s
e

 b
y
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

6
 

C
H

W
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
s
in

g
le

 h
o

m
e

le
s
s
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 c
re

a
ti
n

g
 5

0
 n

e
w

 l
e

tt
in

g
s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
  

C
H

W
 

A
s
s
is

t 
a

 m
in

im
u

m
 o

f 
1
5

 t
e
n

a
n
ts

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 w

e
lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
 m

o
v
e

 t
o
 m

o
re

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

C
H

W
 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 A
d

v
ic

e
, 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

, 
a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

c
e

n
ti
v
e

s
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

 5
0

 p
ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
re

n
te

d
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

. 

C
H

W
 

B
ri
n

g
 b

a
c
k
 4

5
 p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 b

a
c
k
 i
n

to
 u

s
e

, 
u

s
in

g
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 W
e
s
t 
L

o
n

d
o
n

 a
n

d
 H

C
A

 g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d

s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
  

C
H

W
 

C
&

C
: 

H
o

u
rs

 o
f 

u
s
e
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 (

2
0
1

4
/1

5
 t

a
rg

e
t:

 8
8

,0
0

0
 h

o
u

rs
) 

C
H

W
 

C
&

C
: 

n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s
 t

o
 H

a
rr

o
w

 L
e

is
u

re
 C

e
n

tr
e
 (

2
0
1

4
/1

5
 t
a

rg
e

t:
 1

,1
0

0
,0

0
0

) 

C
H

W
 

C
&

C
: 

A
d

u
lt
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 s
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 (

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
a

rg
e

t:
 1

9
.5

%
) 

C
H

W
 

C
&

C
: 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 a
tt
e

n
d

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 (

2
0

1
4
/1

5
 t

a
rg

e
t:

 2
6

0
) 

C
H

W
 

N
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 s

e
tt

in
g
 a

 q
u

it
 d

a
te

 w
it
h

 S
C

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
o

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 q

u
it
 a

t 
4

 w
e

e
k
s
 (

2
0
1

4
/1

5
 t
a

rg
e

t 
7

2
0

) 
 

C
H

W
 

N
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 L

o
n

d
o
n

 A
w

a
rd

s
 (

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
a

rg
e

t 
1

4
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 (
1

0
0

%
) 

6
 s

e
c
o
n

d
a

ry
 (

6
6

%
))

 
 

C
H

W
 

N
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

e
lig

ib
le

 p
e

o
p

le
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 c
h
e

c
k
s
 (

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
a

rg
e

t 
6

,4
5

0
) 

 

C
H

W
 

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 n
u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
m

o
th

e
rs

 t
h
a

t 
s
m

o
k
e

 a
t 

ti
m

e
 o

f 
d
e

liv
e

ry
 (

2
0

1
4

/1
5
 t

a
rg

e
t 

>
=

 5
%

) 
 

C
H

W
 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

g
e

d
 4

-5
 c

la
s
s
if
ie

d
 a

s
 o

v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
o

r 
o

b
e

s
e

 (
2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
a

rg
e

t 
2
1

.2
%

) 
 

C
H

W
 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

g
e

d
 1

0
-1

1
 c

la
s
s
if
ie

d
 a

s
 o

v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
o

r 
o

b
e

s
e

 (
2

0
1
4

/1
5

 t
a

rg
e

t 
3

4
.2

%
) 

 

181



  
2

9
 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 4
 -

 S
u

p
p
o

rt
 l
o

c
a

l 
b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
im

e
s
 o

f 
e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 h

a
rd

s
h

ip
 

E
&

E
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 j
o

b
 b

ro
k
e

ra
g
e

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
1

0
0
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n

to
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

 

E
&

E
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
rv

iv
a

l,
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 g

ro
w

th
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

5
5

0
 H

a
rr

o
w

 e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
rs

 a
n

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

E
&

E
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 t
h

e
 v

a
c
a

n
c
y
 r

a
te

 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 (
B

a
s
e

lin
e

 9
.4

1
%

) 
b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

  

E
&

E
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 5
0
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 s
u

s
ta

in
e

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
–

 j
o
b

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d

 f
o

r 
6

 m
o

n
th

s
 o

r 
m

o
re

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
 

C
H

W
 

T
o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
e

c
o

n
o
m

y
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 R

e
p

a
ir
s
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 t
o

 e
m

p
lo

y
 5

 a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

C
H

W
 

A
d

u
lt
s
 -

 %
 o

f 
a

d
u

lt
s
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 i
n

 p
a

id
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
(t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
1

4
/1

5
 i
s
 1

8
%

) 

C
H

W
 

A
d

u
lt
s
 -

 %
 o

f 
M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 c
lie

n
ts

 i
n

 p
a

id
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
(t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
1

4
/1

5
 i
s
 8

.5
%

) 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 5
 –

 P
ro

te
c
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 h

a
rm

fu
l 
im

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

c
ri
m

e
, 
a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n
d

 a
b

u
s
e

 

E
&

E
 

W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
c
ru

it
, 

tr
a

in
 a

n
d

 r
e

ta
in

 1
1
0

0
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

E
&

E
 

9
9

%
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e

t 
lig

h
ts

 f
u
n
c
ti
o

n
in

g
 (

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
) 

E
&

E
 

A
v
e

ra
g
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
a
y
s
 t

o
 r

e
p

a
ir
 s

tr
e

e
t 
lig

h
ts

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 a

t 
3

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
 

E
&

E
 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 1
0

 a
c
ti
v
e

 p
a

rk
 u

s
e

r 
g
ro

u
p

s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

 

E
&

E
 

T
h
e

 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 i
s
 5

 o
r 

le
s
s
 p

e
r 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

C
H

W
 

9
0

%
 o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

c
a

s
e

s
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 p

e
r 

q
u

a
rt

e
r.

 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 6
 -

 M
in

im
is

e
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

b
u
d

g
e

t 
c
u

ts
 o

n
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 (

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
) 

A
L

L
 

E
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
re

c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 c
a

b
in

e
t 

a
re

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 w

it
h

 a
n

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p

a
c
t 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

q
IA

) 

R
E

S
 

E
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 a

n
 E

q
IA

 

A
L

L
 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 E
q
IA

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 7
 –

 C
e

le
b

ra
te

 t
h
e

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 s
o

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 c
o

h
e

s
iv

e
 p

la
c
e

 w
h

e
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 a
ll 

c
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 g

e
t 
o

n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e

th
e

r 

C
H

W
 

C
&

C
: 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
/g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
s
p

re
a

d
 o

f 
a

u
d

ie
n

c
e

, 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 b

o
o

k
in

g
 t

ic
k
e

ts
 i
n

 p
o

s
tc

o
d

e
 a

re
a

s
 H

A
3

 6
, 
H

A
3

 5
, 
H

A
2

 6
, 

H
A

2
 

7
, 

H
A

1
 4

 (
2
0

1
4
/1

5
 t
a

rg
e

t:
 1

,1
1
5

) 

C
H

W
 

C
&

C
: 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 &

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
e

v
e

n
ts

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

H
a

rr
o

w
’s

 C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
C

a
le

n
d

a
r 

(2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
a

rg
e

t:
 1

0
 

C
H

W
 

C
&

C
: 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 a
g
re

e
 t

h
a

t 
p

e
o
p

le
 g

e
t 
o

n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e

th
e

r 
io

n
 t
h

e
ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

 (
re

p
 t

ra
c
k
e

r)
 (

2
0

1
4
/1

5
 t

a
rg

e
t:

7
9

%
 

C
H

W
 

C
&

C
: 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n
 c

u
lt
u

ra
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

le
is

u
re

 c
e

n
tr

e
 v

is
it
s
, 

m
u

s
e
u

m
 v

is
it
s
, 

a
rt

 c
e

n
tr

e
 v

is
it
s
, 

lib
ra

ry
 v

is
it
s
) 

(2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
a

rg
e

t:
 2

,4
2

6
,0

0
0

) 

182



  
3

0
 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 8
 -

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
h

a
t 
fe

e
ls

 v
a

lu
e

d
, 

re
s
p
e

c
te

d
 a

n
d

 i
s
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 w

e
 s

e
rv

e
 

A
L

L
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 f
e

e
l 
‘H

a
rr

o
w

 d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
ts

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 t
h

a
t 

it
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

in
g
 a

n
 e

q
u

a
l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

r’
 b

y
 1

0
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 (

S
ta

ff
 S

u
rv

e
y
 2

0
1

1
 –

 5
9

%
) 

a
n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

ta
ff

 w
it
h

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
  

A
L

L
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 f
e

e
l 
th

e
y
 a

re
 ‘
tr

e
a
te

d
 w

it
h

 f
a

ir
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

a
t 
H

a
rr

o
w

’ 
b

y
 1

0
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6

 (
S

ta
ff

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

2
0

1
1

 –
 6

2
%

) 
a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

ta
ff

 w
it
h

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

A
L

L
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 f
e

e
l 
th

a
t 
‘S

y
s
te

m
s
 f

o
r 

re
w

a
rd

 a
n
d

 r
e

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o
w

 a
re

 f
a

ir
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
p
a

re
n

t’
 b

y
 1

0
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
6

 (
S

ta
ff

 S
u

rv
e

y
 2

0
1

1
 –

 3
0

%
) 

a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

A
L

L
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

B
la

c
k
 a

n
d

 A
s
ia

n
 M

in
o

ri
ty

 E
th

n
ic

 (
B

A
M

E
) 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

4
2

%
 –

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
5

) 

A
L

L
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

d
is

a
b

le
d
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
  

(t
a

rg
e

t 
o
f 

3
%

–
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

) 

A
L

L
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 5
%

 o
f 

e
a

rn
e

rs
 w

h
o

 a
re

 B
A

M
E

  
(t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

2
0

%
–

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
5

) 

A
L

L
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 5
%

 o
f 

e
a

rn
e

rs
 w

h
o

 a
re

 w
o

m
e
n

  
(t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

5
0

%
–

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
5

) 

A
L

L
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 5
%

 o
f 

e
a

rn
e

rs
 w

h
o

 a
re

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 t
o

 (
ta

rg
e

t 
o
f 

3
%

–
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

) 

A
L

L
 

A
ll 

n
e

w
 s

ta
rt

e
rs

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
h

e
 m

a
n

d
a

to
ry

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 (
e

it
h

e
r 

fa
c
e

 t
o

 f
a

c
e

 o
r 

E
-L

e
a

rn
in

g
 M

o
d
u

le
) 

w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 
8

 w
e

e
k
s
 

o
f 

th
e

ir
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t.
 

A
L

L
 

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

h
e

 m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 r
e
fr

e
s
h
e

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 (

e
it
h

e
r 

fa
c
e

 t
o

 f
a

c
e

 o
r 

E
-L

e
a

rn
in

g
 M

o
d

u
le

) 
b

y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
5

 (
Q

1
 –

 2
5

%
, 

Q
2

 –
 5

0
%

, 
Q

3
 –

 7
5

%
, 

Q
4

 1
0

0
%

) 

 

183



184

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 

Review of the Corporate Equality Objectives 

28th November 2014 

 

Introduction: 

 

In April 2012, Harrow Council published eight equality objectives as required by the Equality Act 
2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED). They were developed based on extensive 
research, consultation and evidence. These objectives must be reviewed at least every four 
years. However, the Council has decided to review it’s objectives a year early in order to bring 
the review process into alignment with the election cycle and enable the Corporate Equality 
Objectives to be integrated with the Corporate Plan. 
 
Given the importance of the Equalities agenda to the Administration, there was felt to be a logic 
in merging the Council’s Equality Objectives with the Corporate Plan, to give greater status to 
the Equality Objectives and at the same time rationalise the Council’s policy framework. This is 
in line with the process other authorities have also adopted. 
 
To review the objectives an online questionnaire was developed and made available over a 
period of 3 weeks to key stakeholders, all staff and all Councillors to complete and feed in their 
views. The following activity was undertaken: 
 

· Hard copies were sent to all Members in the Green bags and followed up with an email. 

· Internal communications went out regularly in the Staff Updates, Grapevine and on the 
Hub. An article was also supposed to have gone in the October edition of Purple Pages, 
but it was never released. 

· Hard copies were sent to the Depot for staff with no internet access 

· Specific communications also went out to all members of CEG, the ETG chairs and the 
Making a Difference Staff Group asking them to encourage staff to respond. 

· Specific communications also went out to key stakeholders representing the protected 
characteristics and was followed up with phone calls. The following groups were 
approached: 

o Age UK 
o Senior Residents Association 
o Youth Parliament 
o HAD 
o MIND 
o Mencap 
o Harrow United Deaf Club 
o West London LGBT group 
o Mumsnet 
o NCT 
o Harrow Equalities Centre 
o Inter-faith Forum 
o Women’s Centre 

This report sets out the results of the questionnaire and puts forward some suggested 

amendments for discussion. 

 

 

 

185



2 | P a g e  

 

Outcome: 

 

There were 82 responses to the questionnaire. Whilst 68% believed the objectives did not 

need to be altered, we did receive some compelling arguments for why some of the 

objectives should be amended. The full summary of the responses is included in Appendix 1.  

 

In suggesting amendments to the objectives we have also taken into account comments 

received around simplifying the objectives, not making them too wordy and ranking them in 

order of priority according to the survey responses. There was a mixed response as to 

whether the objectives should be more specific and identify the particular protected 

characteristics or groups in the borough that the objective should be targeting or whether the 

objectives should apply to striving towards equality for all.  

 

During the exercise we also received a lot of other comments. We have captured these in 

appendix 2 and would appreciate your thoughts on how best we can take them forward. 

 

The following revisions to the Corporate Equality Objectives are therefore suggested and we 

would welcome your thoughts and views. 

 

1. Protect vulnerable people from the harmful impact of crime, anti-social 

behaviour and abuse 

 

This was the top priority with 93% saying it was still relevant to either an 

extremely large or large extent. No-one believed it was no longer relevant.  

 

Feedback pointed to evidence from the Time to Change campaign about 

mental health stigma and how this is a major cause of discrimination in the 

community. 

 

 Suggestion: Amend objective to cover stigma 

 

2. Develop a workforce that feels valued, respected and is reflective of the 

diverse community we serve 

 

This was the second highest ranked objective with 91% of respondents 

saying it was relevant to either an extremely large or large extent. 

 

Most of the comments relate to how we do this which will need to be reflected 

in the organisation’s response to the staff survey and fed into the MADG 

group. 

 

 Suggestion: No Change 

 

3. Deliver services which are accessible and welcoming to all communities and 

are capable of responding to the different needs and aspirations our 

customers have. 

186



3 | P a g e  

 

 

This was ranked third with 88% saying it was relevant to either an extremely 

large or large extent. 

 

Again there were comments on how we do this and a range of suggestions 

for savings and efficiencies. The main comment is around given the changing 

role of the Council, this objective should not just be about the services we 

directly provide, but also about those we commission or support the voluntary 

sector or community to do for themselves. 

 

Suggestion: Amend objective to read: Ensure all services delivered by or on behalf of 

the Council are accessible and responsive to the needs and aspirations of all 

communities 

 

 

4. Improve opportunities for vulnerable young people through our corporate 

parenting role and individual support 

 

This was the fourth ranked objective with 83% saying it was relevant to either 

an extremely large or large extent. 

 

There was some comment that this should be about improving opportunity for 

all young people. 

 

 Suggestion: No Change 

 

5. Minimise the impact on health inequalities and deprivation in the borough 

through partnership working 

 

This was the fifth ranked objective with 79% saying it was relevant to either 

an extremely large or large extent. 

 

There were a lot of comments on how we do this and the action we should be 

taking which would need to feed into the JSNA and Public Health team. 

Particular evidence was provided that pointed to the inequalities experienced 

by Harrow refugee communities (Somali, Afghan, Tamil, Iranian, Iraqi) in 

accessing mental health and social care services. And that the number of 

black African mental health inpatients were double the local population. 

 

Suggestion: Amend objective to read: Minimise health inequalities and deprivation in 

the borough. 

 

6. Celebrate the diversity of Harrow so the borough is an increasingly cohesive 

place where people from all communities get on well together. 

 

187



4 | P a g e  

 

This was ranked sixth with 74% saying it was relevant to either an extremely 

larger or large extent. 

 

Respondents felt there were more important priorities than celebrating 

diversity, particularly in times when resource is an issue. 

 

Suggestion: Amend the objective to read: Encourage pride in the diversity of our 

borough 

 

7. Minimise the impact of budget cuts on equality groups (protected 

characteristics) 

 

This was ranked seventh with 59% saying it was relevant to either an 

extremely larger or large extent. 

 

Given the incorporation of the equality objectives into the Corporate Plan and 

the corporate priority about making a difference to the vulnerable, there is an 

opportunity to reflect the administration’s desire to minimise the impact of 

budget cuts on the most vulnerable/equality groups as one of the principles 

underpinning our priorities in the plan. 

 

Suggestion: Cover as a principle underpinning our priorities in the Corporate Plan 

 

8. Support local businesses and residents in times of economic hardship 

  

This was the lowest ranked objective with 58% saying it was relevant to either 

an extremely larger or large extent. 

 

Most of the comments were reflecting that there was a difference between 

supporting businesses and supporting residents and that the objective should 

be strengthened. Evidence was provided about the groups in Harrow that 

experience disadvantage in accessing employment opportunities (those with 

mental health issues, Somali and Afghan women.) The reference to times of 

economic hardship was felt to be dated particularly as the objectives are 

being set for the period 2015 - 2019. Given the administrations priorities 

around regeneration and supporting the vulnerable and their pledge to create 

an additional 500 apprenticeships and jobs for young people, consideration 

should be given to amending the objective to focus more on skills and 

employment opportunities. 

 

Suggestion: Amend the objective to read - Improve the skills and employment 

opportunities for disadvantaged groups. 

 

 

 

 

188



5 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Actions & Next Steps: 

 

We are now engaging with CEG, MADG, CSB, Ops Board, scrutiny and the political groups 

during December and early January to seek their feedback and input on the suggested 

amendments.  

The final agreed Corporate Equality Objectives will then be incorporated into the Corporate 

Plan which will go to Scrutiny, Cabinet and Council in February for approval before being 

published. The objectives would then not need to be reviewed again until 2019. 

The aim is for the monitoring of the Corporate Equality Objectives to be aligned with the 
process for monitoring delivery of the Corporate Plan. In that measures for each objective 
will be agreed with directorates and integrated into the Council’s overall performance 
scorecard. This is then reviewed quarterly through Improvement Boards and performance is 
reported to Cabinet and Scrutiny through the Council’s Quarterly Strategic Performance 
Report. We should also ensure that if any specific or additional actions are agreed in order to 
deliver these objectives, that these are included in the Equalities Action Plan. We will 
continue to publish equality impact assessments, the annual employment profile and our 
annual statutory equalities information. 
 
Appendix 2 contains an issues log which captures all of the other comments received during 
the exercise. We would welcome your input in completing this table and agreeing the best 
way to take these comments forward. Our intention is to send this appendix and the revised 
set of equality objectives out to everyone we approached to participate in the review as a 
way of closing the consultation loop and showing how their input has been taken into 
account. 
 
 
 
 
Rachel Gapp 
5th December 2014  
  

 

189



190

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

PERFORMANCE & 

FINANCE SCRUTINY SUB-

COMMITTEE 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

6 January 2015 

Subject: 

 

Performance at Quarter 2, 2014/15 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Alex Dewsnap, Divisional Director, Strategic 
Commissioning 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

All 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Wards affected: 

 

All 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 – Watch List 
Appendix 2 – Corporate Scorecard 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

 
This report provides the Sub-Committee with an update on the Chair’s review 
of the Watch List and Corporate Scorecard in relation to Quarter 2 
performance 

 
Recommendation:  
 
That the Sub-Committee note the report. 
 

 

Agenda Item 10
Pages 191 to 218

191



Section 2 – Report 
 
 
Introductory paragraph 
It is the practice for the Chair and Vice-Chairman to review quarterly 
performance across the organisation using the Corporate Scorecard and bring 
matters to the Sub-Committee or to the attention of Scrutiny Leads where 
necessary. Matters requiring further review at the Chair’s briefing are 
recorded in a Watch List, which is itself updated on a quarterly basis. 
 
The Chair’s briefing was held on 2 December to review performance for 
Quarter 2, 2014/15 (July to September). The Watch List, updated as a result 
of that discussion, is at Appendix 1 and the Corporate Scorecard is at 
Appendix 2. 
 
There were no matters referred to the Sub-Committee on this occasion. 
 

Financial Implications 
There are no financial implications associated with this report.  
 

Performance Issues 
This report deals with matters of service performance throughout. 
 

Environmental Impact 
There is no environmental impact associated with this report. 
 

Risk Management Implications 
There are no risk management implications associated with this report.  
 

Equalities implications 
An Equality Impact Assessment was not carried out as the report includes no 
proposals for service change.   
 

Council Priorities 
The work of the sub-committee addresses all of the council priorities.  
 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
Not required for this report. 
 
 

 

Ward Councillors notified: 

 

 

NO  
 

 
 
 

192



Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
 

Contact:  Martin Randall, Business Intelligence Partner 
(Resources, Community & Culture) Tel. 020 8424 1815 
 
 

Background Papers: Corporate Plan 2014 (available at 
www.harrow.gov.uk) 

193



194

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

In
d

ic
a

to
rs

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
t 

P
&

F
 C

h
a

ir
's

 b
ri

e
fi

n
g

 (
W

a
tc

h
 L

is
t)

U
p

d
a

te
d

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 o

n
 2

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
 

S
e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
2
 

s
ta

tu
s

U
p

d
a
te

 a
t 

Q
2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 Q
2
 

m
e
e
ti

n
g

K
e
e
p

 o
n

 

W
a
tc

h
 

L
is

t?

M
a
k
in

g
 a

 d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

C
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 n
o
t 

in
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

 (
a
g

e
 1

9
 -

 2
1
)

(W
a
s
: 

a
t 

a
g

e
 1

9
)

Q
2
, 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
H

G
R

e
c
o
rd

in
g

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 Q

2
 f

ig
u
re

s
.

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

ro
u
n
d
 4

 m
o
n
th

s
 o

f 

s
u
b
je

c
t'
s
 b

ir
th

d
a
y
 o

n
ly

 a
n
d
 n

o
t 

a
t 

a
n
y
 

g
iv

e
n
 d

a
te

 a
n
d
 s

o
 i
f 

a
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
rs

o
n
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
s
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 l
a
te

r 
in

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
n
 

th
is

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
u
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f

ro
m

 W
a
tc

h
 L

is
t

N
o

S
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

(%
a
g

e
 

o
f 

C
L
A

 w
it
h
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 2

 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

m
o
v
e
s
)

Q
1
, 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

(e
n
q

u
ir
y
 

o
n
ly

)

H
G

In
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
a
s
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 

a
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
, 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 f

ig
u
re

. 
In

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
fi
g

u
re

. 
 

A
t 

Q
2
, 

9
 o

u
t 

o
f 

1
8
6
 C

L
A

 h
a
v
e
 h

a
d
 2

+
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

m
o
v
e
s
 Y

T
D

.

-
Y

e
s

T
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

, 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 4

5
 

w
o
rk

in
g

 d
a
y
s
 (

y
e
a
r 

to
 

d
a
te

)(
C

h
ild

re
n
 &

 F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

(p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

: 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
5
 d

a
y
s
)

Q
1
, 

2
0
1
3
/1

4

(p
re

v
io

u
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

)

A
A

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

8
8
.2

%
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

9
0
%

-
Y

e
s

P
F

 C
h

a
ir

's
 b

ri
e

fi
n

g
 w

a
tc

h
 l

is
t 

Q
2

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
.x

ls
x

P
a

g
e

 1
 o

f 
7

195



In
d

ic
a
to

r 
 

S
e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
2
 

s
ta

tu
s

U
p

d
a
te

 a
t 

Q
2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 Q
2
 

m
e
e
ti

n
g

K
e
e
p

 o
n

 

W
a
tc

h
 

L
is

t?

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s
: 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

ti
m

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 f

ro
m

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
; 

a
n
d

D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
ts

: 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 f

ro
m

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

to
 D

F
G

 a
p
p
ro

v
a
l

Q
2
, 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 

(I
n
fo

 o
n
ly

)

H
G

H
G

(n
e
w

ly
 s

e
le

c
te

d
)

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

ti
m

e
. 

Is
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 s

e
t 

a
 m

o
re

 

c
h
a
lle

n
g

in
g

 t
a
rg

e
t?

N
o
 (

In
fo

 

o
n
ly

)

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
e
tt

in
g

 a
 

q
u
it
 d

a
te

 w
it
h
 S

m
o
k
in

g
 

C
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
o
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 q

u
it
 a

t 
4
 w

e
e
k
s

(p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 q

u
it
te

rs
)

Q
2
, 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

(p
re

v
io

u
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

)

-
Q

2
 d

a
ta

 n
o
t 

y
e
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

.
-

Y
e
s

C
lo

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 g

a
p
 -

 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
tt

a
in

m
e
n
t 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs

Q
2
, 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
H

R
/H

G
N

e
w

ly
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 

ta
k
e
n
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 u

n
d
e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
; 

a
n
d
 

re
fe

r 
to

 C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 F
a
m

ili
e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

L
e
a
d
s
 f

o
r 

fo
llo

w
-u

p
.

N
o

M
a
k
in

g
 a

 d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

V
io

le
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 i
n
ju

ry
 -

  

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u
s
e

(p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

: 
R

e
p
e
a
t 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

 

o
f 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
) 

Q
2
, 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

(p
re

v
io

u
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

)

N
o
n
e

D
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 G
ro

u
p
 

2
8
/1

0
/1

4
 -

 e
n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 f

o
r 

h
is

to
ri
c
 d

a
ta

 o
n
 V

io
le

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 I

n
ju

ry
 f

ro
m

 

th
e
 P

o
lic

e
 o

r 
M

O
P

A
C

. 
D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

n
d
 

S
e
x
u
a
l 
V

io
le

n
c
e
 n

o
w

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

-
N

o

P
F

 C
h

a
ir

's
 b

ri
e

fi
n

g
 w

a
tc

h
 l

is
t 

Q
2

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
.x

ls
x

P
a

g
e

 2
 o

f 
7

196



In
d

ic
a
to

r 
 

S
e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
2
 

s
ta

tu
s

U
p

d
a
te

 a
t 

Q
2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 Q
2
 

m
e
e
ti

n
g

K
e
e
p

 o
n

 

W
a
tc

h
 

L
is

t?

F
o
o
d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

a
re

a
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h
 

fo
o
d
 h

y
g

ie
n
e
 l
a
w

Q
2
, 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
H

R
A

 6
4
%

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 

fi
g

u
re

 i
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
 

b
a
c
k
lo

g
 o

f 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 n

e
w

 

p
re

m
is

e
s
, 

th
a
t 

c
o
u
n
t 

a
s
 "

n
o
n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
t"

 

u
n
ti
l 
in

s
p
e
c
te

d
. 

 A
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 F

o
o
d
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 

th
e
s
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
. 

 

W
h
ile

 n
o
t 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
t,

 i
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 e

ff
e
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 f

ig
u
re

 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 i
t 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 

ta
rg

e
t.

 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 b

ri
e
fi
n
g

.

G
a
ry

 A
ld

e
rs

o
n
, 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n

v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 (
In

te
ri
m

),
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 a
n
d

 d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

h
a
n
d
 t

o
 r

e
c
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 b

a
c
k
lo

g
 o

f 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
ru

it
 t

o
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

fo
r 

a
n
 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 p

e
ri
o
d
. 

C
o
p
y
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 t

o
 b

e
 

s
u
p
p
lie

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

n
d
 V

ic
e

-

C
h
a
ir
m

a
n
. 

E
&

E
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 L

e
a
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 m

a
y
 r

a
is

e
 a

t 
a
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 w
it
h

 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r.

Y
e
s

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 

a
n
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
: 

- 
N

I 
1
9
5
a
 –

 l
it
te

r 

- 
N

I 
1
9
5
b
 –

 d
e
tr

it
u
s
 

- 
N

I 
1
9
5
c
 –

 g
ra

ff
it
i 
(n

o
w

: 

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ri
v
a
te

 l
a
n
d
)

- 
N

I 
1
9
5
d
 -

 f
ly

 p
o
s
ti
n
g

 

Q
2
, 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

(l
it
te

r/
 

d
e
tr

it
u
s
);

 

Q
4
, 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

(g
ra

ff
it
i)

Q
1
, 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 

(f
ly

 p
o
s
ti
n
g

)

L
G

H
R

H
G

H
R

F
ly

-p
o
s
ti
n
g

 i
s
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 a

s
 a

n
y
 p

ri
n
te

d
 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 
a
n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 

in
fo

rm
a
lly

 o
r 

ill
e
g

a
lly

 f
ix

e
d
 t

o
 a

n
y
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

It
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

n
y
 s

iz
e
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a
l 

fr
o
m

 s
m

a
ll 

s
ti
c
k
e
rs

 u
p
 t

o
 l
a
rg

e
 p

o
s
te

rs
 –

 

o
ft

e
n
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 p

o
p
u
la

r 
m

u
s
ic

 

re
c
o
rd

in
g

s
, 

c
o
n
c
e
rt

s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

e
v
e
n
ts

. 
It

 

e
x
c
lu

d
e
s
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 m
a
n
a
g

e
d
 a

n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 h

o
a
rd

in
g

s
 a

n
d
 

v
a
lid

, 
le

g
a
lly

 p
la

c
e
d
 s

ig
n
s
 a

n
d
 n

o
ti
c
e
s
.

T
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(I
n
te

ri
m

) 
c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 

o
w

n
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 g

ra
ff

it
i 
o
n
 p

ri
v
a
te

 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
s
to

re
d
, 

s
u
b
je

c
t 

in
 

e
a
c
h
 c

a
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 i
n

d
e
m

n
it
y
.

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

m
a

d
e
 f

o
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

Y
e
s

R
e
g

a
rd

in
g

 s
p
lit

ti
n
g

 N
I 

1
9
5
 f

ly
 p

o
s
ti
n
g

 

fi
g

u
re

s
 i
n
to

 p
ri
v
a
te

 a
n
d
 p

u
b
lic

 l
a
n
d
, 

a
s
 f

o
r 

g
ra

ff
it
i,
 i
t 

is
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
lly

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 s

p
lit

 

o
u
t 

th
e
 r

a
w

 d
a
ta

 m
a
n
u
a
lly

, 
b
u
t 

th
is

 i
s
 

q
u
it
e
 t

im
e
 c

o
n
s
u
m

in
g

. 
A

s
 t

h
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 a

re
 

s
o
 s

m
a
ll 

(2
%

 i
n
 Q

2
) 

it
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

s
e
e
m

 w
o
rt

h
w

h
ile

.

U
p
d
a
te

 o
n
 p

ri
v
a
te

 o
w

n
e
rs

 &
 g

ra
ff

it
i 

re
m

o
v
a
l 
to

 f
o
llo

w
.

P
F

 C
h

a
ir

's
 b

ri
e

fi
n

g
 w

a
tc

h
 l

is
t 

Q
2

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
.x

ls
x

P
a

g
e

 3
 o

f 
7

197



In
d

ic
a
to

r 
 

S
e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
2
 

s
ta

tu
s

U
p

d
a
te

 a
t 

Q
2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 Q
2
 

m
e
e
ti

n
g

K
e
e
p

 o
n

 

W
a
tc

h
 

L
is

t?

N
o
. 

o
f 

h
o
u
rs

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 b

y
 

v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 t
h
e
 

d
ir
e
c
t 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

&
 C

u
lt
u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
1
, 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

(e
n
q

u
ir
y
 

o
n
ly

)

L
R

A
n
a
ly

s
is

 t
o
 f

o
llo

w
.

A
n
a
ly

s
is

 t
a
b
le

d
.

F
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 A

rt
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
 t

o
 b

e
 

fo
rw

a
rd

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

n
d
 V

ic
e
-

C
h
a
ir
m

a
n
 w

h
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
.

N
o

%
a
g

e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 s
ta

rt
e
rs

 w
h
o
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
d
a
to

ry
 

E
q

u
a
lit

y
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

(e
it
h
e
r 

fa
c
e
 t

o
 f

a
c
e
 o

r 
e
-

le
a
rn

in
g

 m
o
d
u
le

) 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

fi
rs

t 
8
 w

e
e
k
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

(P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

: 
F

ir
s
t 

s
ix

 m
o
n
th

s
)

Q
2
, 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

(p
re

v
io

u
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

)

H
R

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

t 
Q

1
 w

a
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 

S
D

B
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

w
it
h
 a

 m
e
s
s
a
g

e
 g

o
in

g
 

to
 a

ll 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
ta

ff
 w

e
re

 

a
w

a
re

. 
It

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

a
c
k
 a

t 
th

e
 3

 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

.

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 H

R
D

:

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 

g
o
 o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 S

ta
ff

 U
p
d
a
te

 r
e
m

in
d
in

g
 n

e
w

 

s
ta

rt
e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
d
a
to

ry
 

E
q

u
a
lit

y
 T

ra
in

in
g

. 
T

h
is

 m
e
s
s
a
g

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
p
e
a
te

d
 e

a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

. 
 

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h
is

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 

re
in

fo
rc

e
d
 i
n
 n

e
w

 s
ta

rt
e
rs

' 
W

e
lc

o
m

e
 

L
e
tt

e
r,

 I
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 C

h
e
c
k
lis

t,
 I

n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 a

n
d
 P

ro
b
a
ti
o
n
a
ry

 g
u
id

e
lin

e
s
. 

T
h
is

 m
e
s
s
a
g

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

re
in

fo
rc

e
d
 

b
y
 H

R
D

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 

L
e
a
d
s
. 

 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 n

a
m

e
s
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e
 t

ra
in

in
g

, 
a
s
 t

h
is

 w
a
s
 t

h
e
 

a
re

a
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

. 
 

-
Y

e
s

M
a
k
in

g
 a

 d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

V
a
c
a
n
c
y
 r

a
te

s
 i
n
 T

o
w

n
 

C
e
n
tr

e

Q
2
, 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
H

R
N

e
w

ly
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 f

o
o
tf

a
ll,

 i
f 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

.

Y
e
s

P
F

 C
h

a
ir

's
 b

ri
e

fi
n

g
 w

a
tc

h
 l

is
t 

Q
2

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
.x

ls
x

P
a

g
e

 4
 o

f 
7

198



In
d

ic
a
to

r 
 

S
e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
2
 

s
ta

tu
s

U
p

d
a
te

 a
t 

Q
2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 Q
2
 

m
e
e
ti

n
g

K
e
e
p

 o
n

 

W
a
tc

h
 

L
is

t?

M
a
k
in

g
 a

 d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

fa
m

il
ie

s
 

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s

- 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

e
 

a
s
s
is

t 
w

it
h
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r 

(H
o
u
s
in

g
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

Q
2
, 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

(a
s
 a

 s
u
it
e
)

H
G

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

3
0
%

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 1

3
-1

4
, 

s
e
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
lo

w
.

-
N

o

T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 

to
 w

h
o
m

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 a

 

fu
ll 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 d

u
ty

Q
1
, 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
H

R
S

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t:

 

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 t

a
c
k
le

 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 h

ig
h
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

ra
te

s
. 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

b
u
d
g

e
ts

. 
W

e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 

a
n
d
 w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
. 

In
 

s
p
it
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t,

 w
e
 

a
re

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t

o
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 f

ro
m

 b
e
c
o
m

in
g

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
, 

w
it
h
 

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

e
s
t 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 i
n
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
. 

O
u
r 

w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s
 t

o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

ra
is

e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 

s
e
c
to

r 
is

 o
n
g

o
in

g
.

-
Y

e
s

- 
N

o
. 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 B

&
B

 a
t 

e
n
d
 o

f 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

- 
s
n
a
p
s
h
o
t 

(N
o
t 

o
n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 o

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

s
c
o
re

c
a
rd

s
)

-
M

e
a
s
u
re

 w
a
s
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 s
c
o
re

c
a
rd

 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
n
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 b

u
t 

it
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 t

e
a
m

 -
 s

e
e
 c

h
a
rt

 b
e
lo

w
 

ta
b
le

 f
o
r 

Q
2
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

-
Y

e
s

P
F

 C
h

a
ir

's
 b

ri
e

fi
n

g
 w

a
tc

h
 l

is
t 

Q
2

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
.x

ls
x

P
a

g
e

 5
 o

f 
7

199



In
d

ic
a
to

r 
 

S
e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
2
 

s
ta

tu
s

U
p

d
a
te

 a
t 

Q
2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 Q
2
 

m
e
e
ti

n
g

K
e
e
p

 o
n

 

W
a
tc

h
 

L
is

t?

E
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 

%
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d

Q
1
, 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

(f
o
rm

e
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 

s
e
le

c
te

d
 Q

2
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
)

R
S

e
p
a
ra

te
 p

a
p
e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 o

n
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 a
t 

Q
2
: 

W
e
 a

re
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 t

o
 r

e
in

tr
o
d
u
c
e
 

n
e
g

o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 l
iv

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 e
n
a
b
le

 u
s
 t

o
 m

o
v
e
 c

lo
s
e
r 

to
 

th
is

 t
a
rg

e
t.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 i
s
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
n
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
in

g
 v

a
lid

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 

p
a
s
s
e
d
 t

o
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
it
h
in

 a
 w

e
e
k
, 

to
 a

llo
w

 

ti
m

e
 f

o
r 

re
v
is

io
n
s
 a

n
d

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 r
e
-c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
.

E
&

E
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 L

e
a
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 a

n
d
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

o
 e

n
q

u
ir
e
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
.

N
o

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

 

y
ie

ld

Q
2
, 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
H

R
N

e
w

ly
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 

A
d
d
 t

o
 W

a
tc

h
 L

is
t;

 a
n
d
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

ra
te

s
 r

e
ta

in
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

Y
e
s

S
ta

ff
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 -

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 d

a
y
s
 

p
e
r 

F
T

E
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

Q
1
, 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
H

R
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 

A
 m

o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
d
 

fo
r 

th
e
 S

u
b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
's

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

.

-
Y

e
s

P
F

 C
h

a
ir

's
 b

ri
e

fi
n

g
 w

a
tc

h
 l

is
t 

Q
2

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
.x

ls
x

P
a

g
e

 6
 o

f 
7

200



In
d

ic
a
to

r 
 

S
e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
2
 

s
ta

tu
s

U
p

d
a
te

 a
t 

Q
2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 Q
2
 

m
e
e
ti

n
g

K
e
e
p

 o
n

 

W
a
tc

h
 

L
is

t?

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 w

it
h
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 

(f
o
rm

e
rl
y
 I

P
A

D
) 

in
 l
a
s
t 

1
2
 

m
o
n
th

s

Q
1
, 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
H

R
O

v
e
ra

ll 
F

ig
u
re

 8
3
%

 (
ta

rg
e
t 

9
5
%

) 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 -

 9
3
%

C
&

F
 -

 7
1
%

C
H

W
 -

 7
8
%

E
&

E
 -

 9
4
%

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

u
t 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 m

e
t.

 D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

re
 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 I

iP
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 f

o
r 

Q
3
. 

In
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 Q

2
 f

ro
m

 5
1
%

 

to
 7

1
%

. 
W

o
rk

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
.

-
Y

e
s

O
v
e
ra

ll 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

te
n
a
n
ts

' 
re

n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 (
£
k
)

Q
4
, 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
-

R
e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 C

H
W

 S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 L

e
a
d
s
. 

S
e
e
 c

h
a
rt

 b
e
lo

w
 t

a
b
le

 f
o
r 

Q
2
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

-
N

o

P
F

 C
h

a
ir

's
 b

ri
e

fi
n

g
 w

a
tc

h
 l

is
t 

Q
2

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
.x

ls
x

P
a

g
e

 7
 o

f 
7

201



202

This page is intentionally left blank



M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

F
u

ll
 S

c
o

re
c

a
rd

: 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f

o
r 

2
n
d
 o

r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
ti
m

e
 

(w
it
h
in

 t
w

o
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

la
s
t 
p
la

n
)

L
o
w

e
r

6
%

2
.0

%
�
�

6
%

9
.6

%
�
�

6
%

8
.5

%
�
�

F
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 t
o
 Y

o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S

ys
te

m
 (

ra
te

 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 o

f 
1
0
-1

7
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
) 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

 r
o
lli

n
g
 

p
e
ri
o
d

L
o
w

e
r

1
0
6

6
2

�
�

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

8
0

�
N

o
n
e

A
p
r 

2
0
1
2
 t

o
 

M
a
r 

2
0
1
3

 
A

p
r 

2
0
1
3
 t

o
 

M
a
r 

2
0
1
4

C
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 n
o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 (

1
9
 -

 2
1
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
)(

a
m

e
n
d
e
d
)

L
o
w

e
r

3
1
.8

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

2
5
%

1
4
.3

%
�
�

2
5
%

2
1
.7

%
�
�

T
h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 
to

 w
h
ic

h
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

h
a
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c

a
re

 n
e
e
d
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

(r
o
lli

n
g
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
)

H
ig

h
e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
9
3
%

8
8
.2

%
�
�

9
3
%

9
0
.3

%
�

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

fo
r 

o
v
e
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

 
L
o
w

e
r

6
%

4
.5

%
�
�

3
%

0
.9

%
�
�

3
%

0
.5

%
�
�

S
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

(%
a
g
e
 o

f 
C

L
A

 w
it
h
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 2

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

m
o
v
e
s
)

L
o
w

e
r

1
1
%

3
.0

%
�
�

9
%

8
.1

%
�
�

9
%

4
.8

%
�
�

R
e
p
e
a
t 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 (
w

it
h
in

 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
)

L
o
w

e
r

1
5
%

1
1
.5

%
�
�

1
5
%

7
.6

%
�
�

1
5
%

1
1
.1

%
�
�

T
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

, 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 4

5
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
ys

 (
ye

a
r 

to
 d

a
te

) 

(C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

H
ig

h
e
r

9
0
%

8
4
.0

%
�
�

9
0
%

8
5
.9

%
�

9
0
%

8
8
.2

%
�

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4

a
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 c
h

il
d

re
n

, 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

ly
 c

a
re

d
 f

o
r,

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 

th
e
m

 f
ro

m
 h

a
rm

 a
n

d
 a

b
u

s
e

Q
1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

1

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

203



M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

F
u

ll
 S

c
o

re
c

a
rd

: 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
h
e
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
S

h
o
rt

 T
e
rm

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

s
e
q
u
e
l 
to

 

s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
)

tb
c

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
N

o
t 
s
e
t

5
8
.2

%
T

B
D

-
3
6
.7

%
N

o
 T

a
rg

e
t 

%
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 u
s
e
rs

 w
it
h
 s

e
lf
-d

ir
e
c
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

ta
k
in

g
 u

p
 a

 c
a
s
h
 p

a
ym

e
n
t 
o
p
ti
o
n

H
ig

h
e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
5
0
%

4
6
%

�
�

5
8
%

5
0
.9

%
�
�

%
 o

f 
c
a
re

rs
 w

it
h
 s

e
lf
-d

ir
e
c
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
a
k
in

g
 u

p
 a

 

c
a
s
h
 p

a
ym

e
n
t 
o
p
ti
o
n

H
ig

h
e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
9
5
%

1
0
0
%

�
�

9
5
.0

%
1
0
0
.0

%
�
�

%
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 u
s
e
rs

 w
h
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 s

e
lf
-d

ir
e
c
te

d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

H
ig

h
e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
7
5
%

7
6
.4

%
�
�

7
6
%

8
1
%

�
�

%
 o

f 
c
a
re

rs
 w

h
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 s

e
lf
-d

ir
e
c
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

H
ig

h
e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
9
5
%

1
0
0
%

�
�

9
5
.0

%
1
0
0
%

�
�

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s
: 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 f

ro
m

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
 (

w
e
e
k
s
)

L
o
w

e
r

3
3

2
0

�
�

3
0

2
2

�
�

3
0

2
0

�
�

D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
ts

: 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 

fr
o
m

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

 D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
t 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
(w

e
e
k
s
)

L
o
w

e
r

3
0

8
�
�

2
7

1
0

�
�

2
7

1
4

�
�

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4

b
. 

H
a
rr

o
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 a

s
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

tl
y
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 g
iv

e
n

 c
h

o
ic

e
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

th
e
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
li

s
a
ti

o
n

Q
1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

2

204



M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

F
u

ll
 S

c
o

re
c

a
rd

: 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

d
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 l

if
e
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
lt

h
 i

n
e
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s
 g

a
p

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
e
tt
in

g
 a

 q
u
it
 d

a
te

 w
it
h
 

S
m

o
k
in

g
 C

e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
o
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 

q
u
it
 a

t 
4
 w

e
e
k
s

H
ig

h
e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
1
7
5

1
7
5

�
�

N
o
n
e

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
lig

ib
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 c

h
e
c
k
s

H
ig

h
e
r

1
,6

5
0

8
6
9

�
�

9
0
0

1
0
5
9

�
�

N
o
n
e

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o
p
ia

te
 u

s
e
rs

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

d
ru

g
 f

re
e
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 
re

tu
rn

in
g
 t
o
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
w

it
h
in

 6
 

m
o
n
th

s

H
ig

h
e
r

-
-

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
1
 o

n
ly

8
.2

%
1
2
.6

0
%

�
�

-
-

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
1
 o

n
ly

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
o
n
-o

p
ia

te
 u

s
e
rs

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
d
ru

g
-f

re
e
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 
re

tu
rn

in
g
 t
o
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

w
it
h
in

 6
 m

o
n
th

s

H
ig

h
e
r

-
-

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
1
 o

n
ly

4
0
.2

%
4
3
.7

0
%

�
�

-
-

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
1
 o

n
ly

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
h
e
 %

 o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 a

 g
o
o
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
  
C

h
ild

re
n
 a

re
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

r 
e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 

th
e
 E

a
rl
y 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 G

o
a
ls

 i
n
 t
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
a
s
:

1
. 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 &

 L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
; 
2
. 
L
it
e
ra

c
y;

 3
. 

M
a
th

s
; 
4
. 
P

e
rs

o
n
a
l,
 S

o
c
ia

l 
&

 E
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t;
 5

. 
P

h
ys

ic
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
(A

n
n
u
a
l)
 

H
ig

h
e
r

4
5
%

N
o
 t
a
rg

e
t

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
2
 o

n
ly

5
5
%

6
1
.5

%
�
�

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
2
/1

3

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
3
/1

4

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
Q

1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

e
. 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 g

a
p

 b
e
tw

e
e
n

 e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
tt

a
in

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
re

 v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 a
n

d
 d

is
a
d

v
a
n

ta
g

e
d

 g
ro

u
p

s
 o

f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
c
h

il
d

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4

Q
2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

Q
1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

3

205



M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

F
u

ll
 S

c
o

re
c

a
rd

: 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

y 
g
a
p
 i
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
th

e
 E

a
rl
y 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 G

o
a
ls

 a
t 
E

Y
F

S
 

(A
n
n
u
a
l)
 

L
o
w

e
r

3
7
.9

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
2
 o

n
ly

3
0
%

3
4
.9

%
�
�

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
2
/1

3

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
3
/1

4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

fo
r 

1
 y

e
a
r 

p
lu

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
4
+

 a
t 
K

S
2
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n
g
lis

h
 

a
n
d
 M

a
th

s
 (

a
n
n
u
a
l)

H
ig

h
e
r

6
6
.7

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
2
 o

n
ly

0
.0

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
2
/1

3

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
3
/1

4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

fo
r 

1
 y

e
a
r 

p
lu

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 G
C

S
E

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 

a
n
d
 M

a
th

s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

S
4
 (

a
n
n
u
a
l)

H
ig

h
e
r

8
.3

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
2
 o

n
ly

0
.0

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
2
/1

3

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
3
/1

4

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

u
p
ils

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

fr
e
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 p

u
p
ils

 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 R

e
a
d
in

g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)
 

L
o
w

e
r

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
3
 o

n
ly

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
2
 o

n
ly

1
5
.0

%
1
4
.0

%
�
�

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
2
/1

3

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
3
/1

4

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

u
p
ils

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

fr
e
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 p

u
p
ils

 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 G
C

S
E

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 

m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 4

 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

L
o
w

e
r

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
3
 o

n
ly

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
2
 o

n
ly

1
9
%

2
1
.6

%
�
�

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
2
/1

3

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
3
/1

4

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

u
p
ils

 w
it
h
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 R

e
a
d
in

g
 &

 

W
ri
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)
 

L
o
w

e
r

(n
e
w

 

m
e
a
s
u
re

)
4
8
.8

%
-

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
2
 o

n
ly

3
9
%

5
2
%

�
�

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
2
/1

3

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
3
/1

4

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
Q

1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

4

206



M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

F
u

ll
 S

c
o

re
c

a
rd

: 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

u
p
ils

 w
it
h
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 G
C

S
E

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 4

 

L
o
w

e
r

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
3
 o

n
ly

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
3
 o

n
ly

3
7
.0

%
4
7
.3

%
�
�

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
2
/1

3

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r 

1
3
/1

4

C
h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r:

 r
a
te

 o
f 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

s
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
h
ild

re
n
 

L
o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

L
o
w

e
r

0
%

0
%

�
�

0
%

0
%

�
�

0
%

0
%

�
�

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

b
s
e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 s
c
h
o
o
l 

a
m

o
n
g
s
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r,

 i
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
ye

a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 

L
o
w

e
r

1
0
%

6
.1

%
�
�

9
%

8
.3

9
%

�
�

9
%

1
0
.6

4
%

�
�

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 o
f 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
E

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

s
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 (

N
o
t 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 Q

1
)

L
o
w

e
r

0
.0

4
%

0
.0

3
%

�
�

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
2
-Q

4
0
.0

2
%

0
.0

2
%

�
�

S
u
m

m
e
r 

T
e
rm

 1
2
/1

3
S

u
m

m
e
r 

T
e
rm

 1
3
/1

4

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 o
f 

F
ix

e
d
 T

e
rm

 E
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

s
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 (

N
o
t 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 Q

1
)

L
o
w

e
r

0
.8

5
%

0
.7

3
%

�
�

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
2
-Q

4
0
.7

0
%

0
.5

9
%

�
�

S
u
m

m
e
r 

T
e
rm

 1
2
/1

3
S

u
m

m
e
r 

T
e
rm

 1
3
/1

4

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 o
f 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

(N
o
t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 Q

1
)

L
o
w

e
r

4
.5

0
%

4
.1

1
%

�
�

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
2
-Q

4
4
.5

%
3
.7

%
�
�

S
u
m

m
e
r 

T
e
rm

 1
2
/1

3

 
S

u
m

m
e
r 

T
e
rm

 1
3
/1

4

Q
2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4 5

207



M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

F
u

ll
 S

c
o

re
c

a
rd

: 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 o
f 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 r

a
te

 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 (
N

o
t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 Q

1
)

L
o
w

e
r

5
.0

0
%

6
.1

0
%

�
�

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
2
-Q

4
5
.0

%
6
.5

%
�
�

S
u
m

m
e
r 

T
e
rm

 1
2
/1

3
S

u
m

m
e
r 

T
e
rm

 1
3
/1

4

f.
 R

e
d

u
c
e
 i

n
c
id

e
n

c
e
s
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

N
o
. 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t/
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 

B
e
n
e
fi
t/
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ra

u
d
 s

a
n
c
ti
o
n
s

H
ig

h
e
r

-
-

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
8

8
�
�

8
4

�
�

N
o
. 
o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 f

ra
u
d
 s

a
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 (

a
ll 

ty
p
e
s
 n

o
n
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t)

 
H

ig
h
e
r

-
-

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
8

1
1

�
�

8
1
1

�
�

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
Q

1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

6

208



M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
ll

 S
c

o
re

c
a

rd
: 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
, 

lit
te

r
L
o
w

e
r

6
%

1
4
%

�
�

1
0
%

1
0
%

�
�

1
0
%

1
0
%

�
�

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
, 

d
e
tr

it
u
s
 

L
o
w

e
r

9
%

9
%

�
�

9
%

9
%

�
�

9
%

1
2
%

�
�

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
, 

g
ra

ff
it
i 
(e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ri
v
a
te

 l
a
n
d
)

L
o
w

e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
3
%

1
%

�
�

3
%

1
%

�
�

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
, 
fl
y 

p
o
s
ti
n
g

L
o
w

e
r

1
%

1
%

�
�

1
%

3
%

�
�

1
%

2
%

�
�

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

N
o
. 
o
f 

h
o
u
rs

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 b

y 
v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

th
e
 d

ir
e
c
t 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

&
 C

u
lt
u
re

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

H
ig

h
e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
4
,9

5
0

4
,1

5
7

�
�

6
,3

0
0

5
,7

0
7

�
�

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

v
is

it
s
 t
o
 l
e
is

u
re

 

c
e
n
tr

e
, 
m

u
s
e
u
m

, 
a
rt

s
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 
lib

ra
ri
e
s
)

H
ig

h
e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
6
4
1
,0

0
0

6
2
1
,9

1
8

�
6
0
4
,0

0
0

6
4
5
,7

6
2

�
�

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 (

R
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
r)

H
ig

h
e
r

N
o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 

N
o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
b
u
rg

la
ri
e
s
 

L
o
w

e
r

3
4
4

2
7
8

�
�

3
3
1

2
0
8

�
�

3
0
7

2
6
7

�
�

c
. 

T
o

 b
e
c
o

m
e
 t

h
e
 s

a
fe

s
t 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 b
y
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 l

e
v
e
l 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e
, 

a
n

d
 i

n
c
id

e
n

c
e
s
 o

f 
a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d

d
. 

W
o

rk
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 f

e
a
r 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h

Q
1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4

Q
1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

Q
1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

a
. 

T
o

 b
e
c
o

m
e
 t

h
e
 c

le
a
n

e
s
t 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 b
y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

, 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 &

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

g
e
th

e
r 

to
 

k
e
e
p

 H
a
rr

o
w

’s
 s

tr
e
e
ts

, 
b

u
il

d
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e
s
 c

le
a
r 

o
f 

li
tt

e
r,

 f
ly

-t
ip

p
in

g
 a

n
d

 v
a
n

d
a
li

s
m

b
. 

E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
v
o

lu
n

te
e
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e
 s

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 m

a
k
e
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

lo
o

k
in

g
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4 7

209



M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
ll

 S
c

o
re

c
a

rd
: 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

R
a
te

 o
f 

p
ro

v
e
n
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 b

y 
yo

u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

L
o
w

e
r

3
3
.5

%
4
4
.0

%
�
�

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

3
5
.0

%
�
�

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

3
5
.4

%
�
�

O
c
t 

2
0
1
0
 t

o
 

S
e
p
 2

0
1
1

J
u
l 
2
0
1
1
 t

o
 

J
u
n
 2

0
1
2

O
c
t 

2
0
1
1
 t

o
 

S
e
p
 2

0
1
2

F
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 t
o
 Y

o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S

ys
te

m
 (

ra
te

 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 o

f 
1
0
-1

7
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
)

L
o
w

e
r

4
3
6

2
6
2

�
�

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

3
4
3

�
N

o
n
e

 
A

p
r 

2
0
1
2
 t

o
 

M
a
r 

2
0
1
3

A
p
r 

2
0
1
3
 t

o
 

M
a
r 

2
0
1
4

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o
p
ia

te
 u

s
e
rs

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

d
ru

g
 f

re
e
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 
re

tu
rn

in
g
 t
o
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
w

it
h
in

 6
 

m
o
n
th

s

H
ig

h
e
r

-
-

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
1
 o

n
ly

8
%

1
1
.9

%
 

(Q
4
)

�
�

-
-

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
1
 o

n
ly

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
o
n
-o

p
ia

te
 u

s
e
rs

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
d
ru

g
-f

re
e
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 
re

tu
rn

in
g
 t
o
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

w
it
h
in

 6
 m

o
n
th

s

H
ig

h
e
r

-
-

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
1
 o

n
ly

4
0
%

4
9
.4

%
  

(Q
4
)

�
�

-
-

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
1
 o

n
ly

V
io

le
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 i
n
ju

ry
 -

 t
o
ta

l 
o
ff

e
n
c
e
s
 (

n
e
w

)
L
o
w

e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
1
,1

8
4

N
o
 t
a
rg

e
t

1
,2

2
3

N
o
 t
a
rg

e
t

V
io

le
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 i
n
ju

ry
 -

 D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u
s
e
 (

n
e
w

)
L
o
w

e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
4
8
3

N
o
 t
a
rg

e
t

4
8
2

N
o
 t
a
rg

e
t

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
fo

o
d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 
w

it
h
 

fo
o
d
 h

yg
ie

n
e
 l
a
w

 
H

ig
h
e
r

7
6
%

7
0
%

�
�

7
6
%

6
5
%

�
�

7
6
%

6
4
.6

%
�
�

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
t 
lig

h
ts

 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
in

g
H

ig
h
e
r

9
9
%

9
9
.6

%
�
�

9
9
.2

%
9
9
.4

%
�
�

9
9
%

9
9
.5

%
�
�

A
c
tu

a
l 
fo

r 
Q

1
 

1
3
/1

4

A
c
tu

a
l 
fo

r 
Q

4
 

1
3
/1

4

A
c
tu

a
l 
fo

r 
Q

1
 

1
4
/1

5

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 r

e
p
a
ir
 s

tr
e
e
t 
lig

h
ts

 (
d
a
ys

)
L
o
w

e
r

3
1
.9

0
�
�

3
2
.3

0
�
�

3
1
.5

0
�
�

A
c
tu

a
l 
fo

r 
Q

1
 

1
3
/1

4

A
c
tu

a
l 
fo

r 
Q

4
 

1
3
/1

4

A
c
tu

a
l 
fo

r 
Q

1
 

1
4
/1

5

Q
2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
Q

1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

8

210



M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
ll

 S
c

o
re

c
a

rd
: 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
3
rd

 p
a
rt

y 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
s
p
e
n
d
 p

la
c
e
d
 

w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

H
ig

h
e
r

1
0
.6

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

1
7
%

N
o
 t
a
rg

e
t

1
9
.4

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 w

h
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
k
e
s
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

’ 
v
ie

w
s
 w

h
e
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

(R
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
r)

H
ig

h
e
r

-
-

N
o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 w

h
o
 f

e
e
l 
th

a
t 
th

e
y 

c
a
n
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
 (

R
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 

T
ra

c
k
e
r)

H
ig

h
e
r

-
-

N
o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 

g
. 

P
e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 a

ll
 b

a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

s
 f

e
e
l 

th
e
y
 a

re
 r

e
s
p

e
c
te

d
, 

tr
e
a
te

d
 f

a
ir

ly
 a

n
d

 g
e
t 

o
n

 w
e
ll

 t
o

g
e
th

e
r

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

 A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le

 

fr
o
m

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 g

e
t 
o
n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

in
 

th
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
 (

R
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
r)

H
ig

h
e
r

 
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 

E
q
u
a
lit

y 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
)

In
 r

a
n
g
e

0
.9

 -
 1

.1
0
.9

9
�

0
.9

-1
.1

0
.9

4
�

0
.9

-1
.1

0
.9

6
�

%
a
g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 s
ta

rt
e
rs

 w
h
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
h
e
 

m
a
n
d
a
to

ry
 E

q
u
a
lit

y 
M

a
tt
e
rs

 t
ra

in
in

g
 (

e
it
h
e
r 

fa
c
e
 t
o
 

fa
c
e
 o

r 
e
-l
e
a
rn

in
g
 m

o
d
u
le

) 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
8
 w

e
e
k
s
 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 e

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t

H
ig

h
e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
1
0
0
%

5
%

�
�

1
0
0
%

1
9
%

�
�

Q
2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

Q
2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

Q
2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

f.
 H

a
rr

o
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 f

e
e
l 

th
e
y
 c

a
n

 h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
ir

 s
a
y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
tt

e
r 

m
o

s
t 

to
 t

h
e
m

. 
T

h
e
y
 a

re
 i

n
v
o

lv
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

a
re

 w
e
ll

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 a
n

d
 m

a
k
e
 a

 p
o

s
it

iv
e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
ir

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4

e
. 

E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

, 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

ir
d

 s
e
c
to

r 
o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
 c

a
p

a
b

le
 o

f 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 

lo
c
a
l 

p
u

b
li

c
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 o
p

ti
m

is
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
p

it
a
l 

in
 H

a
rr

o
w

Q
1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

Q
1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

Q
1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

9

211



M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
ll

 S
c

o
re

c
a

rd
: 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

%
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

ta
ff

 (
a
s
 a

t 
A

p
ri
l 
'1

4
) 

w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
d
a
to

ry
 E

q
u
a
lit

y 
M

a
tt
e
rs

 

re
fr

e
s
h
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 (

e
it
h
e
r 

fa
c
e
 t
o
 f

a
c
e
 o

r 
e
-l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

m
o
d
u
le

)

H
ig

h
e
r

 -
 -

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 

fr
o
m

 Q
2

 -
 -

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 

fr
o
m

 Q
2

2
5
%

2
2
%

�
�

h
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
o

s
e
 w

h
o

 p
la

y
 b

y
 t

h
e
 r

u
le

s
 s

e
e
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
to

 d
o

 s
o

, 
a
n

d
 t

h
o

s
e
 w

h
o

 d
o

n
’t

 a
re

 d
e
a
lt

 w
it

h
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

ly

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
o
m

e
s
 r

e
tr

ie
v
e
d
 b

y 
a
n
ti
-f

ra
u
d
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 (

a
n
n
u
a
l)

H
ig

h
e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
-

0
R

e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
4
 o

n
ly

-
2

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
4
 o

n
ly

N
o
. 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t/
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 

B
e
n
e
fi
t/
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ra

u
d
 s

a
n
c
ti
o
n
s

H
ig

h
e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
8

8
�
�

8
4

�
�

N
o
. 
o
f 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 f

ra
u
d
 s

a
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 (

a
ll 

ty
p
e
s
 n

o
n
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t)

 
H

ig
h
e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
8

1
1

�
�

8
1
1

�
�

Q
1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

Q
2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4

Q
1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4

1
0

212



M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

L
o

c
a
l 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s

F
u

ll
 S

c
o

re
c

a
rd

: 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
J
S

A
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 (
a
m

e
n
d
e
d
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
)

L
o
w

e
r

1
.6

%
1
.3

%
�
�

1
.6

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

1
.5

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

R
e
s
id

e
n
t 
p
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
to

w
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 

s
h
o
p
s
 (

R
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
r)

H
ig

h
e
r

N
o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 

N
o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 

V
a
c
a
n
c
y 

ra
te

s
 i
n
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
L
o
w

e
r

8
.3

0
%

8
.8

%
�
�

9
.4

1
%

9
.4

%
�
�

8
.3

%
1
0
.6

%
�
�

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
3
rd

 p
a
rt

y 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
s
p
e
n
d
 p

la
c
e
d
 

w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

H
ig

h
e
r

1
0
.6

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

1
7
%

N
o
 t
a
rg

e
t

1
9
.4

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

C
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 n
o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 (

1
9
 -

 2
1
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
)(

a
m

e
n
d
e
d
)

L
o
w

e
r

3
1
.8

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

2
5
%

1
4
.3

%
�
�

2
5
%

2
1
.7

%
�
�

1
6
 t
o
 1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 (

N
E

E
T

) 
L
o
w

e
r

3
.5

%
1
.9

%
H

G
3
.5

%
2
.0

%
�
�

3
.0

%
2
.0

%
�
�

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
 /
 w

o
rk

 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

p
la

c
e
s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 b

y 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il

H
ig

h
e
r

-
-

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
1
0

1
3

�
�

2
2

2
2

�
�

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
Q

1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

a
. 

H
a
rr

o
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 n
e
w

 h
o

u
s
in

g
, 

tr
a
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u

lt
 o

f 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 g

ro
w

th
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h

1
1

213



M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

F
a
m

il
ie

s
F

u
ll

 S
c

o
re

c
a

rd
: 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

R
e
s
id

e
n
t 
p
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
to

w
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 

s
h
o
p
s
 (

R
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
r)

H
ig

h
e
r

N
o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
3
rd

 p
a
rt

y 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
s
p
e
n
d
 p

la
c
e
d
 

w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

H
ig

h
e
r

1
0
.6

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

1
7
%

N
o
n
e

1
9
.4

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 (

g
ro

s
s
)

H
ig

h
e
r

6
8

7
4

�
�

0
1
3

�
�

2
5

2
5

�
�

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 f
a
m

ily
 h

o
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

H
ig

h
e
r

8
8

�
�

0
3

�
�

1
8

1
5

�

N
o
 o

f 
e
m

p
ty

 p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

b
a
c
k
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
, 
u
s
in

g
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 W
e
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 a

n
d
 

H
C

A
 g

ra
n
t 
fu

n
d
s

H
ig

h
e
r

2
0

2
3

�
�

1
0

1
2

�
�

2
1

2
8

�
�

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
o
c
ia

l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 h

o
m

e
s
 f

re
e
d
 u

p
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 /
 G

ra
n
ts

2
M

o
v
e

H
ig

h
e
r

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

Q
4
 o

n
ly

1
4

1
6

�
�

2
8

2
8

�
�

T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 t
o
 w

h
o
m

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 

a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 a

 f
u
ll 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 d

u
ty

L
o
w

e
r

8
5

7
3

�
�

5
5

4
6

�
�

1
0
5

1
4
5

�
�

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
J
S

A
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

  
(a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
)

L
o
w

e
r

1
.6

%
1
.3

%
�
�

1
.6

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

1
.5

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

C
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 n
o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 (

1
9
 -

 2
1
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
)(

a
m

e
n
d
e
d
)

L
o
w

e
r

3
1
.8

%
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

2
5
%

1
4
.3

%
�
�

2
5
%

2
1
.7

%
�
�

1
6
 t
o
 1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 (

N
E

E
T

) 
L
o
w

e
r

3
.5

%
1
.9

%
�
�

3
.5

%
2
.0

%
�
�

3
.0

%
2
.0

%
�
�

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4

a
. 

H
a
rr

o
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 n
e
w

 h
o

u
s
in

g
, 

tr
a
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u

lt
 o

f 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 g

ro
w

th
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h

Q
1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

1
2

214



M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

F
a
m

il
ie

s
F

u
ll

 S
c

o
re

c
a

rd
: 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 (

R
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
r)

H
ig

h
e
r

N
o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 

N
o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
B

u
rg

la
ri
e
s

L
o
w

e
r

3
4
4

2
7
8

�
�

3
3
1

2
0
8

�
�

3
0
7

2
6
7

�
�

R
a
te

 o
f 

p
ro

v
e
n
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 b

y 
yo

u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

L
o
w

e
r

3
3
.5

%
4
4
.0

%
�
�

y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

3
5
.0

%
�
�

y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

3
5
.4

%
�
�

O
c
t 

2
0
1
0
 t

o
 

S
e
p
 2

0
1
1

 
 

J
u
l 
2
0
1
1
 t

o
 

J
u
n
 2

0
1
2

O
c
t 

2
0
1
1
 t

o
 

S
e
p
 2

0
1
2

F
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 t
o
 Y

o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S

ys
te

m
 (

ra
te

 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 o

f 
1
0
-1

7
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
)

L
o
w

e
r

4
3
6

2
6
2

�
�

y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

3
4
3

�
N

o
n
e

A
p
r 

2
0
1
2
 t

o
 

M
a
r 

2
0
1
3

A
p
r 

2
0
1
3
 t

o
 

M
a
r 

2
0
1
4

V
io

le
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 i
n
ju

ry
 -

 t
o
ta

l 
o
ff

e
n
c
e
s
 (

n
e
w

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
)

L
o
w

e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
1
1
8
4

N
o
 t
a
rg

e
t

1
2
2
3

N
o
 t
a
rg

e
t

V
io

le
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 i
n
ju

ry
 -

 D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u
s
e
 (

n
e
w

 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
)

L
o
w

e
r

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

N
e
w

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
4
8
3

N
o
 t
a
rg

e
t

4
8
2

N
o
 t
a
rg

e
t

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
fo

o
d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 
w

it
h
 

fo
o
d
 h

yg
ie

n
e
 l
a
w

 
H

ig
h
e
r

7
6
%

7
0
%

�
�

7
6
%

6
5
%

�
�

7
6
%

6
4
.6

%
�
�

Q
2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

b
. 

T
o

 b
e
c
o

m
e
 t

h
e
 s

a
fe

s
t 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 b
y
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 l

e
v
e
l 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e
, 

a
n

d
 i

n
c
id

e
n

c
e
s
 o

f 
a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d

c
. 

W
o

rk
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 f

e
a
r 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
Q

1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

1
3

215



E
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
n

d
 E

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

F
u

ll
 S

c
o

re
c

a
rd

: 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 w

h
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 g

o
o
d
 

v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y 

(R
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
r)

H
ig

h
e
r

N
o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 w

h
o
 f

e
e
l 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

k
e
e
p
s
 t
h
e
m

 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 i
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

(R
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
r)

H
ig

h
e
r

N
o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

w
a
y 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

ru
n
s
 t
h
in

g
s
 (

R
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
r)

H
ig

h
e
r

N
o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 
-

-
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y 

th
is

 q
tr

 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 (
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
) 

L
o
w

e
r

1
7
%

2
0
%

�
�

1
7
%

1
4
.0

%
�
�

1
7
%

1
5
%

�
�

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 r
e
s
o
lv

e
d
 a

t 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 
p
o
in

t 
o
f 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 

H
ig

h
e
r

9
0
%

9
0
%

�
�

9
0
%

9
3
.0

%
�
�

9
0
%

9
3
%

�
�

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
w

e
b
 f

o
rm

s
 a

n
d
 w

e
b
 v

is
it
s
 a

s
 a

 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 

H
ig

h
e
r

7
0
%

6
9
%

�
7
5
%

7
6
.0

%
�
�

7
5
%

7
5
%

�
�

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 c

o
s
t 
p
e
r 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
 (

£
) 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

)
L
o
w

e
r

£
0
.8

0
£
0
.7

2
�
�

£
0
.7

5
£
0
.6

1
�
�

£
0
.7

5
£
0
.6

0
�
�

T
e
n
a
n
t 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
p
a
ir
 a

n
d
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 (

%
) 

H
ig

h
e
r

9
0
%

8
8
%

�
9
5
%

8
2
%

N
/A

9
5
%

9
8
.9

6
%

�
�

T
o
ta

l 
d
e
b
t 
c
o
lle

c
te

d
, 
a
t 
ye

a
r 

to
 d

a
te

, 
a
s
 a

 %
 o

f 

to
ta

l 
d
e
b
t 
ra

is
e
d

H
ig

h
e
r

7
0
%

7
1
%

�
�

7
0
%

5
2
%

�
�

7
0
%

7
8
%

�
�

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 d

e
b
to

r 
d
a
ys

, 
p
e
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
r

L
o
w

e
r

6
0

2
6

�
�

6
0

4
4

�
�

6
0

2
0

�
�

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
H

ig
h
e
r

5
7
%

5
6
.5

6
%

�
3
0
%

3
0
.0

6
%

�
�

5
7
%

5
6
.7

2
%

�

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
o
n
-d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 r

a
te

s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
H

ig
h
e
r

6
1
%

5
8
.2

9
%

�
3
4
.5

%
3
3
.0

3
%

�
6
0
%

5
8
.3

6
%

�

Q
2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
Q

1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

1
4

216



E
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
n

d
 E

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

F
u

ll
 S

c
o

re
c

a
rd

: 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

G
o

o
d

 =
T

a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

T
a
rg

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

 y
ie

ld
 

H
ig

h
e
r

2
.5

%
1
.0

1
%

�
�

1
.5

%
0
.9

%
�

1
.0

0
%

-1
.6

0
%

�
�

T
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
d
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
n
e
w

 c
la

im
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 

(d
a
ys

) 

L
o
w

e
r

1
1

1
0
.0

8
�
�

1
2

9
.4

1
�
�

1
2

1
0
.2

9
�
�

S
ta

ff
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 -

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 d

a
ys

 p
e
r 

F
T

E
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

L
o
w

e
r

8
.1

8
9
.3

9
�
�

8
.1

8
9
.3

8
�
�

8
.1

8
9
.4

8
�
�

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 w

it
h
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
in

 l
a
s
t 
1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 

(p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 I
P

A
D

)
H

ig
h
e
r

9
5
%

8
6
%

�
�

9
5
%

8
0
%

�
�

9
5
%

8
3
%

�
�

%
 o

f 
n
e
w

 s
ta

rt
e
rs

 w
h
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
d
a
to

ry
 

E
q
u
a
lit

y 
M

a
tt
e
rs

 t
ra

in
in

g
 (

e
it
h
e
r 

fa
c
e
 t
o
 f

a
c
e
 o

r 
E

-

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 M

o
d
u
le

) 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
8
 w

e
e
k
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
(n

e
w

)

H
ig

h
e
r

9
5
%

8
6
%

�
�

1
0
0
%

5
%

�
�

1
0
0
%

1
9
%

�
�

%
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

ta
ff

 (
a
s
 a

t 
A

p
ri
l 
'1

4
) 

w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
d
a
to

ry
 E

q
u
a
lit

y 
M

a
tt
e
rs

 

re
fr

e
s
h
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 (

e
it
h
e
r 

fa
c
e
 t
o
 f

a
c
e
 o

r 
E

-

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 M

o
d
u
le

) 
(n

e
w

)

H
ig

h
e
r

9
5
%

8
6
%

�
�

-
-

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 

fr
o
m

 Q
2

2
5
%

2
2
%

�
�

Q
2
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
Q

2
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
Q

1
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

1
5

217



218

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Revenue and Capital Monitoring
	Revenue and Capiral - Appendix 4 Capital Schemes, 11/12/2014 Cabinet

	8 Staff Survey Results and  Sickness Absence
	Resources_Staff Survey Response November 2014_1a
	C+F_Staff Survey Response October 2014_1b
	CHW_Staff Survey Response November 2014_1a
	EE ESD Follow-up Staff Survey  Report and  Recommendations_v1 1
	Mss Screen shot showing sickness dates presented to a Manager
	Abs Impact screen sho
	Copy of BW - 01-10-13 to 30-09-14 - Absence by Cal  Day excl  Sch Data
	Copy of BW - 01-10-13 to 30-09-14 - Absence by Cal  Day excl  Sch Graph - by Cal  Day
	Copy of BW - 01-10-13 to 30-09-14 - Absence by Cal  Day excl  Sch Graph - by Weekday
	Copy of BW - 01-10-13 to 30-09-14 - Absence by Grade excl  Sch Data
	Copy of BW - 01-10-13 to 30-09-14 - Absence by Grade excl  Sch Graph
	Resources Action Plan- Absence 2014-15
	Overview action C and F
	CHWB Absence Action Plan 2014-15
	EE Action Plan 2014-15 for Scrutiny Panel Dec 2014 (2)

	9 Corporate Equality Objectives - Annual Monitoring and Refresh
	Appendix 1 - Annual Equalities Progress Report 2013-14 Final
	Appendix 2 - Equality Objectives Review 2014

	10 Performance at Quarter 2, 2014/15
	Appendix 1 PF Chair's briefing watch list Q2 2014-15 updated following meeting
	Appendix 2 SPR Q2 amended scorecard 10Dec14


